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KEY HIGHLIGHTS

» Sports Retail gross margin increased by 170 bps to 44.6%

* Group underlying EBITDA increased by 15.7% to £383.2m ™
» Underlying profit before tax up 20.5% to £300.3m™

® Underlying free cash generation of £301.8m

* Sports Retail like-forlike stores gross contribution increased
by 7.4% (FY14:10.5%)®

» (Continued rofl-out of large format city cenre stores
® Successful UK launch of Click and Collect in FY15 H2
* Record EBITDA achigved v. 4th year Share Scheme target

o Nei debf decreased fo £59.7m®

(1} Underlying EBITDA, undedying profit before toxation and undestying EPS exclude realised oreian exchonge
qains Aosses in selling and administrotion costs, exceptional costs and the profit /loss on sale af sotegic
investments. Undedying EBITDA alsc excludes the Shore Scheme charges.

{2) Underlying fre cosh generation & dfined as operoting cosh flow before working copital, mode up
of underlying FBATDA (belore Share Schema costs) plus reafised forsign exchange gains and losses, less
corporation lax paid.

(3) Excludes contiibution in Sport Evbl and Sports Experfs AG (EAG) and Spartland Intemational Group AS
(SIG} s the prioi yeor compaiativa is not o full year,

{4) Met debt is bomowings less cosh held.

GROUP REVENUE +4.7 °/o

April 15 £2,832.6m

April 14 £2,706.0m

Apiil 13 £2185.6m

Apiil 12 £1,807 7m

Bpil 11 £1,59%.2m

UNDERLYING EBITDA +15.7%

April 15 £383.2m

April 14 £331.1m

April 13

April 12

il 11 £211.0m

REPORTED PBT +30.9%

April 15 £313.4m

April 14 £239.5m

il 13

Apiil 12

April 11

UNDERLYING EPS +21.2%

April 15

Aprif 14

April 13

Apiil 12

pil 11




“The Group has delivered another solid set of results in spite of challenging trading
conditions including the odverse impact on performance during the period of
England’s early departure from the FIFA World Cup in Brozil and unseasonably
mild weather during autumn, reduang footfall

"However, with our ongoing focus on providing customers with exceptional quahty
and unbeatable value, we have confinued to grow Group revenues and EBITDA
and have succeeded in surpassing our fourth and final EBITDA target under the
2011 Share Scheme The first of these awards will vest with parhapants in
September 2015 and the second in September 2017 We owe our continued
success to the commitment and hard work of those participants and we are
dehghted that we are able to reward them in this way

“Trading since the penod end has been in line with management expectahons
and will continue te be driven by improvements in product range and avallability,
optimisation of both our ivstore and web offerings, the introduchion of Click and
Collect i the UK and further nvestment in our store portfoho

Dave Forsey
Chief Executive

16 July 2015
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EVERYTHING IS CHANGING
SPORTS DIRECT NATIONAL DISTRIBUTION CENTRE, SHIREBROOK

Phase Three of the expansion of our National Distnbution Centre n Shirebrook, the construction of on additonal ¢ 700,000 sq f
warehouse and office facility, 15 now well underway, with completion scheduled for late 2015

We hove olso commenced work on an additiono! reta! unit and traning centre ot our Shirebrook campus, with completion also onticipated
for lote 2015 These expansions will have a range of benefits for the Group, mcluding an improved enwironment for staff traning

BUILDING ELECTRICAL DATA

29,000 m® Concrete 60 km Cable 28 km Fibre optic cable
3,600 tonnes Steelwork 30 km Lighting bus-bar 250 km Category 6 data cable
68,000 m? Roof clodding 11,000 Light fittings 3,000 Information outlets
21,000 m? Wall dodding 7 km Cobling containment

8 km Pipework 14km Fire alorm pipework

1 5 km Bullding penmeter

FVERYTHING IS CHANGING
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EVERYTHING IS CHANGING
GROUP BRANDS

Kaenmor lounched thexr new mulhchannel runamg
compaign, with predominant focus on TV, dagital, and
mstore chonneks, to comeide with the world renowned
London Marathon The compoign focused on the |atest
running apparel and footwear but also contmbuted to the
lounch of the new Kormmor Elte running app 2014 also
saw Kommeor expond ther ambussador line-up by agreeing
a thiee year deal with Couniryfila presenter Helen Skelton
and resigning Olympic Gold Medallist James Cracknel for
a further two yeors

'
> <
karrimor

Throughout the year Lonsdale has continued to go from
strength to skength, further estoblishing its posinon i the
fight sports market The Lonsdale biond hs been showtased
at various events such as BAMMA and the Queenshury

m Boxing Leogue [t was also o mom spansor of one of the
biggest fights of 2014 which sow Lonsdole’s leoding brand

NE'B&LE ambassodor Carl Frach knock out George Groves in front of
80,000 o Wembley Stodium The pay per view event wos
viewed by milions across the globe Furthermore, Lonsdale
signed boxer Nathan Cleverly for o three yeor deal which wall
carry the partnership nto 2017

[§ e
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USA Pro lounched s new “Jam Our Movement’ campaign
which facused on wibrant hero prints and demanstrated the
depth and breadth of the USA Pra collechon The campaign
fectured women of the top of thewr game to show that USA

P10 15 not ust o stylish fimess brand Lounched i USC and US A PRO

Sports Direct ocross o number of channels induding TV,
retod and digital, the *Join Qur Movement” campaign s 0
perfect reflechon of how USA Pro 15 continuing to expond
its product offenng ond increose s domnance in the
female fimess market

Stozenger and The Championships, Wimbledon agreed fo
exfend therr Ion?esr standing sperting sponsorship n the
history of spart for a further three year term which will toke
the overall agreement 1o 116 yeurs The partnershup 15 @

perfect reflection of the preshge and longewty of the brand

and the extension will conhinue fo showcose Slozenger
lazenger worldwids on the biggest stoge there is

Also this year, Slazenger’s ¢ncket ambassodor, England

fost bowler Jimmy Andersen, surpassed Sir lan Botham as

England’s ‘alime fest wicketoker” wath his 384th wicket in

his 100th match




EVERYTHING IS CHANGING
PARTNER BRANDS
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Followng the successful lounch of Nike’s MPT (morkes ploce
transformation) area in our Shirebrook store in FY14, we
deaded to fead our new Oxford Street flagship store of the
he%:nmng of FY15 with an mpressive Nike men’s !mlnlng area
in the entronce The dike oren and overall store merchandising
stondards and customer service have been maintained to o
vary ligh standard since opening and both businesses are
pleased with the feedback and il results We bove shored
plons to roll out further Nike branded areas in our lorge format
c:rz centre stares and will confinye fo work clasely with our
Nike team in Shirghrook in develugmg product and retl
soluhons to give our customers enhanced shopping expenences
throughout our store partfolio

We see tha Under Armour brand es a significant
future gunne: for the Sports Direct business ond
in FY135 committed 1o a long term joint busiess
[}Iun In July 2015 we oﬁened 03,000sq ft
ndar Armour “shop i shop’ in our le(enay
refurbished and extended glusgow City Centre
store on Argyle Street We are planning oddihonal
spoce for the Under Armour brand as it grows
in populanty in the new lorge format aty centre
stores as they roll aut In ugdmun to this, 200
stores will glso feature bespoke Under Armaur
base loyer fixtures by the end of the 2015
calendar year

1

The adides Group hos committed o mveshing several million pounds with
Sports Direct across FY16 to buld upon the reposinaning work starfed

i FY15 To date this hos tncluded two oll door (Sports Direct) window
marketing compaigns, 0 170 door roll out of o new football Bootroom pane!
toncept, branded space m key loconan doors and continued markening
support {Ultro Boost) for the Sweatshop busimess In FY16 Sports Direct wall
Be o key portmer for theu new foatball dlo lounch ‘Ace v X wluding anathe
all door window compaign and Bootroom update There are olso plans to roll
out refreshed fixtures for men's apparel across the wider estate ond a more
focused Monchester United lounch in oppropriate stores The edidas Group

5 olso |nveshn;1 in 0 much larger shawreem space at our Shirebrook Heod
Qffice which will feature o statf training facility and o dedicoted space for the
Reehok brand which we are alse plonaing 10 triol with some branded apparel
space in key doors n FY16

Puma confinue 1o be a key strategic porter for the

Direct business and m FY15 cemented thew shategic
investments in the football caregory by rofling out 15¢
Boatroom centre panels to showcase thewr new boot

concepts which wos supported by an extensive pen
stoff tromng They are afso taking o signdicontly lo
© office ond showroom space in our Shwebrook Heod

{ffice ond have invested in o dedicated retoil speachst
to monoge thex branded space roll out and assorment

plonming process

Sperts

od of
rgey
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EVERYTHING IS CHANGING
SPORTS DIRECT FITNESS

SPORTS DIRECT

During the year, the Group entered the fitness industry with the development
of Sportsdiract Fitness.com, comprising 25 standolone gyms purchased from

LA Fitness end an addifional two new builé combined retcil ond gym spaces. A
further two gyms in St Helens and Dundee are plonned for sory autumn 2015.
Membership continues o grow and we have aready surpassed out full yenr
fargets.
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EVERYTHING IS CHANGING
MEGASTORES

We hove worked hord 1o improve and invast in ow store portfalio during the
year, with o particulor focus on loiges city cantre stores. During the yeor we
ielocctad out Oxford Street store to the ¢ 50,000 sq. f1. former HMY store ond
have completad a ¢ 30,000 sq. #. extension of our Glosgow stare. We hove
iecently also ocquired the freehold of the former Primark store in Leeds. Woeks
are cunrently underway on this four floor, ¢.50,000 sq. ft. store which is due to
open this summer.

MEGASTORES OPEN

SHIREBROCK - €.57,000 50. 1.
(XFORD STREET - €.50,000 SO. F1.
AINTREE - C.40,000 S0. FT.
GLASGOW ARGYLE - €.50,000 SQ. Fi.
LEEDS - (.50,000 5Q. F1.

EVERYTHING IS CHARGING
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GLASGOW, ARGYLE STREET BEFORE AND AFTER
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SPORTS DIRECT AT A GLANCE

The Group operates though three strategic busness segments Sports Retail, Premium Lifestyle ond Brands

PORTS RETA 85% TOTAL REVENUE £2,398.6m Up 5.5%

The Group’s Sports Retoll drasion supplies o wide range of sports and leisure equipment, Geross an orrdy of global brands,
including Group owned bronds such as Dunlap, Slazenger and Lonsdle, third party ond licensedn brands This wade
tange of products, combmed with extremely competitive pricing, attracts customers o both our stores and website In ever
increasing numbers

As at 26 Apnl 2015 Sports Retall operated out of 661 stores in the UK and the rest of Europe (excluding Northem
Irelend) The majonty of stores trade under the SPORTSDIRECT com fasao

We continue to expand and develop our stores, with several relocations taking place i the year into larger and better
configured space, so that we ore better able to serve the needs of oue customers Investment has also confinued m
speaialst performonce oreas, with wsua! merchandising improving across the whole of the division

In Europe, the Group’s growth has continued, with our products being offered vio wholly-owned refal cutlets, jomt
venhures with other retarlers and stores wathin anather refaler’s store We have conhnued the mtegratio of the recently
ocquired Sport Eybl and Sports Experts AG (EAG), ond over the commg year will re-brand key Eybl Megastares to the
Lilhywhites foscio

During the year, os port of our Eutopesn growth programme, we increased our European store portfolio by nine stores ond
entered one new country, wath the apening of our Bem store in Swizerand Our strategy remains to wdeniry poriners n
new temtones while continuig fo expand our operahons i the countnies where we currently frade

Qur onfme sales continue to merease, enhanced in the yeor by the successful mtroduction of UK Click and Collect and the
development of o streamlingd checkaut process

PREMIUM LIFESTYLE 7% TOTAL REVENUE

Raniondhsation of the dmsion hos token ploce throughout the yeor, nduding the dosure of lossmaking stores, the
migoton of operating costs and the relocaton of back-office funchons

The Premsum Ufestyle dnasion 1s o must for those fashion conscious shoppers who demand high-end and on trend oppore!
The dwision centres on contemporary luxury with a brand focus, and leading stacked brands include Paul Smith, Fend
and Alexander McQusen The dvision enables customers to express their indwiduality, with new collechans reqularly being
odded Recent additons mcude White Premrmta, Carven and Canada Goose

BRANDS 8% TOTAL REVENUE

The Baands division hicenses our brands to partners across the world through a committed network of licensing and
distnbunion partners The unique, ntegioted approach to brond management ensures comsistency, and encoutages
continunl mvestment and global success for the bronds

Focus on our brands 1s mamiained through sponsorship of high-profile medin personclities, events, teams and venues
Bolddog, o motorcycle display team made fomous n the 2014 seres of Brfmin's Got Tolent, ore o recent oddihon to the
Ne Fear brand, and Sao Zone i Reading 15 o winter sports venue which 1s sponsored by our Mewica brand The Slozenger
brand has recently signed a renewal sponsorship of The Champronsfups, Wimbledon Slozenger has sponsored the event
since 1902, moking this one of the longest parmerships m sporhng history




SPORTS STORES ACROSS EUROPE

Rote Inctudes associates in lcefand, Republic of Irelond and Northern Irelond that trade ondes the SPORTSDIRECT com fascin

FVERYTHING IS CHANGING
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

| am pleased fo report the Group has once agam achieved anather solid result, defivering growth in both Group revenues and EBITDA

EXPANSION

The construction of Phase Three of our Shirebrook campus expansion ts naw well underway It consists of an oddmonal warehouse and affice faali, spanming a ¢ 700,000 sq f
foetprnt Occupancy of the first worehouse aren 15 about fo commence, with population of the remaining oregs of the warehouse plannied far later n 2015, on schedule We have olso
commenced work on on additisnd! retalt unit ond traiming centie ot our Shrebrook compus, with complenion anfiapated for late 2015 The expansions will have o range of benefits for he
Group, meluding on smproved emvironment for staff traming

Our Oxford Street store has now been apen for over 12 months and has been welltecerved by both customers ond supphers The property, which wos the former HMV Flgship store,
allows us to trade over four floors, with ¢ 50,000 sq ft of retaul spoce Our Glasgow City Centre store has undergane aa extensian of approximately 28,000 sq ft, more than doubing
its previous footprnt and we have colloborated with Under Armous 1o offer our customers an excepiono! shopping envionment We have also recently ocquired the fraehold of the

¢ 50,000 sq ft former Pamark stare in Leeds, which 15 expected to open this summer

We ore confident in the suceess of the format used in the stores, which we intend to roll out further

Qur Fimess dwision now hos 27 fully operanonal gyms ocross England Duning the year the Group purchasad 25 former LA Fimess gyms, and developed an addihonal two gyms wath
separate retall premuses, ensuring that custorers can purchase therr everydoy gym essenfials on site

STRATEGIC INVESTMENTS

Strategic Investments are an infegral part of the Boord strategy o explore new apporfunihes to bing our product to market

The Group enhaniced ifs relationship with Debenhams during the year with the purchese of an addwanal srategic investment  the business, increasing our beneficil interest fom 6 &%
1o 15 0% at the year end date of 26 Apnl 2015, which has subsequently reduced since the year end to 10 5% We ore currently tmofking four cancessions vathn Debenhoms stores

SHARE SCHEMES

| am plaosed to confirm that we have achieved the finol Adjusted Underying EBITDA target under the 2011 Share Scheme ond Executive Share Scheme We hope to reward
porhtipating employees under the 2011 Share Scheme for thew loyaly and motaton by woy of share awards The fist award under the 2011 Share Scheme s due to vest later in
2015, which will distmbute ¢ 5m shares 1o ¢ 2,000 perhcipating employees The Group’s Share Schemes ore some of the most generous schemes m the couniry, and are key tools in
motrvation and refenhon

LY £155m |
2009 SCHEME | o | 2009 & 2011 scHEme TARGETS [
Y £715m ; 2009 & 2011 ScHeme AcwisVED [
o c250m — 2015 SCHEME TARGETS [}
2011 SCHEME :
BRUEN £300m |
iy £420m*
QA £570m
2015 SCHEME
il £650m

*Proposed revsed FY14 torget under the 2015 Shara Scheme Shareholder approval to amend this forget from £480m 1o £420m wil be sought ut the AGM on § September 2015




To the extent that o sgnihicant numben of pomopuning employees ele to sell some or el of then shares, whilst the Compeny hos no obligomon to by bodk the shares, the Bourd wll
conswder o number of opions open to i, nduding whether to (1) implement on on-morket buy bock of shares pursuont to the cuthonty given by shareholders ot the Compory's AGM

in 2014, or (u) fund the Company's Employee Benefit Trust so os to allow it to acquira shares in the market fo replace those shares transferred fo pariapating employses pursuont to
the veshng

As part of aur shategy to closely align the mterests of our team wath those of our shareholders, the 2015 Share Scheme wes approved by shoreholders ot o Generol Megting in July
2014 The vesning of owards under the 2015 Share Scheme 15 cenditionl upon the ochievemant by the Group of four demanding EBITDA torgets, which span batwaen FY16 and FY19
The ewards will vest in 2019 and 2021, subject to successful complehon of all four trgets, ond other specfic performance condihons The Executve Deputy Charman, Mike Ashley,
withdiew from the Scheme dunng FY15 Mke remoins fully commitied to the achievement of the Scheme’s torgets, but would like the focus to be on ensunng that the Scheme dligns
with the wider Sports Direct team, and therefore chose to wathdraw from the Scheme

As we enter FYT6 1115 clear, ond ofso understood by the market, that plonned ocquistions in FY15 did not fully matenafise Followang ifs recent review, the Board now recommends

to shareholders a revised £¥14 Adjusted Underlying EBITDA target of £420m, rather than the exishing target of £480m whech 1s now considered to be unreosonably chollenging Thus
compares 1o the Undertying EBITDA of £383m achieved n FY15 Al ather rorgets for the further three years of the Scheme cumently remain the same The Boord will continue to review
the rabustness of the 2015 Share Scheme on an annual boss

THE BOARD

Dunng July 2014, it was announced that Charles McCreevy, o Non-Executve Director of the Group, would not be standing for re-election of the 2014 AG# Charlie, who hod spent over
three years with the Group, had extensive olround business knowledge, with partcular refevance to Compefition Regulotions | would kke ta thank hum for his veluable contbution to the
Bourd We are in the process of appointing @ replocement and hape to make on announcement within the near future

I am defighted o welcome Matt Pearson to the Board in the posifian of Acting Chief Financiol Officer Matt jomed the business over eight years ago and since then has gomed on in depth
knawledge of the finances of the Group Matt has been leading our Group Finance Team for several yeors and 1s therefore perfectly ploced to toke on the addihonal responsibilhes of this
role Further detals relating to the recruitment of the Board can be found on poges 37 and 42

CASUAL WORKERS

Much of the commant regarding the Group’s use of zero hour contracts has been unfounded ond maccurate We camply fully wath oll lagal requirements which relate to casual workers,
including sick pay, holidoy pay, and freedom to goin other employment Casuol workers also parhaipate i general incentive schemes

DIVIDEND

The Board hos decided not to propose o dnedend i relation to FY15 The Board remains of the opimion that it 1s in the best interests of the Group and its shareholders fo preserve financial
flexibality, focktating the pursuit of potennal acqursiion and other growth opportunines The payment of dwdends remains under review i future years

CONCLUSION

Despite ongoing challenging market condinons, and the weother, we vet agom exceeded our targets in FY15 Such success, yeor on year, 15 a testoment to the hord work ond dedicanon
of oll our workforce for which the Bomd thank and congrotulate them

Dr Keith Hellowell QPM
NonExecutive Chairman

16 Juy 2015

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL

Qur business model 1s focused on long-ferm sustanable growth Whilst we corttinue to grow our business in the UK, we are now keen fo use
the skills and knowledge we have gained to build and expand our Sports Retall business across the rest of Europe

1. IDENTIFY

Bread acquisitions & property
enhoncement

4. PROMOTE

Group-owned

ACHIEVE

Targets &
brands Group success

2. INVEST

Store portfolio &
workforce

3. DEVELOP

Website & m(omherce,
enhanced product ranges

Our offenng hos developed further in specialist sports eategones and more foshionbased
retaling We are constantly refurbishing and upgrading our stores, in order o prowide our
customers with a compeling consumer expenence The continued development of our
dedicated specialist oreas and on-gaing collaborohon with key supphers such os Under
Armour and Evropean brands such as Saloron on instore concepts are further exomples
of this

Acquisthrons and strategic mvestments in related businesses ore an important part of our
strategy Opporfuninies o develop mto new product categones or morkets, or fo strengthen
our posthon 1n existng arecs, wil conhnue to be cansidered on o cose by cose bosis

We mm to momiam our position as the market leader in the Sports Reteil sector m the UK,
while also gammg momentum i ow expansion into Europe The busmess mode! provides
gudance for the Group fo implement an effecive growth strategy to momtain end develop
the success achieved so for bt compares our racent successes wath our future smbihions in
order that we con assess how to progress in the future

The Group hos stgnificant momentum ond we must ensure thot our product ofenng and
customer propasition confinug to grow and develop in order to reton our current customer
base and to atwact more customers in the future

Developing brand owareness 15 o key factor m ensunng a sustanable future, and the
oppropnate level of mvestment in odvertising and technology ore importont components
n qchieang this

Our infesnational presence conhnues 1o grow through over 260 brand hicensing partners,
our onhine presence ond on-gomg European store apenings The Gioup’s appointment of
internationay-1ecognised celebaties and sporting professionals os key ambussodors also
promotes our bronds on a global basis




OUR STRATEGY

OBJECTIVE |SO FAR

1. IDENTIFY

IN-STORE

Qur Oxford Street store opened in May 2014, and our Glasgow City Cenire extension was
completed i spang 2015

Across the UK and Europe, we have connnued to invest 1n speaalist performance areas and product
collections, ncluding Karmer and Sondica Improved wsuol merchandising hos enhanced the
customer shopping expenence We have on-going collaboranons with key brands such es Under
Amour, along with Eurapean brands such as Salomon, to deliver enhonced in-stare merchandising

| WHAT NEXT?

Bue to the success of the Oxford Street ond Glusgow (ity
Centre stores, we ore now looking to replicte the look ond
feel in other major markets, storhing with our new Leeds
store, which is set to open in summer 2015

ACQUISITIONS

2. INVEST

The Group has acquired 25 former LA Fitness gyms, all of which ore located in the UK

A number of other acquisions hava token place in the year, including Gul Watersparts, lthough
the nuenber hos semoined somewhat smoller than anhopated

Dunng FY15, we opened 39 stores in the UK, closing 16, and opened a further 16 stores in
Europe, closing seven As at 26 Apnl 2015, Sports Retod aperated in 20 countries i Europe, as
well as in the UK

Acquisthions remam a high priosity, porticulady outside of
the UK, which wall broaden the customer offenng across the
Group We onhoipate that the number of acquisiions wall
icrease over the coming yeor

The Group intends to confinue to enhance ifs store portfolio
in both the UK and internahonally The Group will continus
with the strateqy fo dentfy stiategic partners n new

:L?:::OLIO Our Oxford Sheet store and our newdy expanded Glasgow City Centre store both now span terntones white expanding aperohons n thase countries
50,000 sq ft We endeavour to rephicate this i other major cihes Whe"’d“’“- cwrently rllm apresence Plans ace in ploce fo
The construchon of o further retad unit on our Shiebrook compus s currently underwy, with expond Spors Refol operaions info ol the moor countmes
completion due m ke 2015 in the European Economic Areg
The efforts of our dedicated stoff have been mstrumentol to the success of the Gioup Due fo the success of the 2009 Share Scheme, parhopanng
The 2011 Share Scheme has been a key toul used in mofvanon and retenfion The forgets hove | émployees are further ncenvised by the 2011 and 2015
PEOPLE been successfully achieved and the scheme vests for parhoipants loter n 2015 ondn 2017 Share Schemes

WEBSITE

4. PROMOTE

BRANDS

The 2015 Share Scheme was approved by shareholders dunng FY15 Mike Ashley hos withdrown
from the Scheme in order to ensure that the focus remains on aligning targets with the wider
Sports Direct team, ond nok on fus potential personal allocation

Following successful tnols dunng the year, Chek and Collect has now been launched n the UK in
both Sports Dect and USC and has proved very suecesstul Over 20% of all UK Sports Retoil onhine
ordars ond over 15% of USC onling orders are now being delivered by Chick and Collect

We have re-designad aur checkout, iniroduemg o guest checkout aption ond streambining the
checkout process

Customers are now also oble to purchose ond redeem gift cards online

Particulor attention has been paid to improwing the language and currency conversian on our sites
for noerEnghsh speaking countnies The improvements have led to a signicant reduchon o dropped
boskets, most notably in Fronce and Germany

Following investment into out monle platforms, mobale visits now equote to over 50% of wisits fo
SPORTSDIRECT com

The Group has continued fo exploit ifs bronds by offenng whelescle and hicensing apportunihes,
in additian ta selling brands in Group retal outlets Wholesale and licensing enables on increosed
area of distnbution, following which bronds con reoch audiences which would otherwise

remain Untapped

The tocus 15 fo remaim on temational wholesole, ncluding the USA, whach currently represents
¢ 40% of the tota! wholesale revenue

Sparts Dwect Retad licensing continves to grow with 14 stores now open m Malaysia and 13 open
in the Muddle East

Licensing 15 @ key drver of the Brands dwision 58 new license ogreements were signed during
FY15, guaranteeing o mimmesm of $25m i royatiies over the contract penods

The brand portfolio tnereased dunng the year through the acquisition of the Duntop ond Slazenger
rghts m the Austrolosia region

Our aim 15 1o 1all out Click ond Collect across other UK
Group wehsites

To improve the customer experiance i Europe, we plan fo
introduce dedicated websites and ollow customers to use
gdditional payment metheds while shopping online, including
Ideal, Giro and Sofort

We will provide conhinued mvestment in the online business
Onking wistts and soles hove shown notoble increases yeor
on yeqr

We plon to mireduce o fost poy checkout soluhon, allowing
customers fo purchase o lorge number of products m o small
number of clicks

Exponsion of the hentage bronds, including Everlast, Dunlop
ond Slozenger, 15 expected to continue

Dunlop remans a key focus for expansion, parhicutorly into
«otegones which hove not previously been explored by the
Group, including outomotive occessories

Acquisthons of key brands will remain o ugh pronty,
icreasing our brand portfofio and weakening the posinon of
competitors

Asta Pacidic will remain a main area of focus clang with
Australasia, exponding the globel presence of the Group

Our well established bronds, including Slozenger ond Dunfop,
will leod the way in the region

Investment i key Group bronds 1s expected fo continue
in ordet to ollow produdts 10 reach new markets
and customers

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Board morstors the Group's performonce by reference o o number of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs), which are discussed in this Chief Executive’s Report, and alse i the Financiot
Review The most mporfont of these KPls are

52 weeks ended

26 April 2015 77 Aok 2014 28 Aprid 2013
FINANCIAL KPIS
Group revenue £2,832.6m £2,706 Om £2,185 ém
Underying EBITDA 1 £383.2m £331 1m £787 9m
Sparts Retoil gross margin 44.6% 42 9% 40 3%
Sparts Reto! hkedordike stores gross contribution ™ +1.4% +10 5% +10 6%
(nling revenue os a percentoge of total Sports Retail revenug & 16.5% 151% 15 0%
Underlying eomings per share 33.% 321p 26%
HON-FINANCIAL KPS
o of Sports Retol stores 661 629 498
Workforce tumover 187% 19 2% 155%
Cordboard recycling 9,526 tonnes 9,230 tonnes 8,893 tannes

(1) The methed for cokuloting underhang EBITDA & set out i the Fisanciol Review

(2) Sports Retail hkefordike contmbution 15 definad as the percentuge change n gross conmbution e the successwe 12 manth penod A likeor{ike store 15 ane that hos been trading for the full 12 months 1n bath penods and has ot been
affected by o sgnificont chonge, such os o major refurbshement Exchades contnbution m EAG and SIG s the pror year comparotve ts aot o ful year

(3) Excludes wholasale revenue
{4) The methed for codasinfng underymy esmmmgs per shere & set out i the Fenonoal Review
{5) Excuding assooates ond stores i the Balhe states that wade under foscwos other than SPORTLAND or SPORISDIRECT com




RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO THE GROUP’S BUSINESS

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Booid hos o responsibility to gove the Group in the nterest of the shareholdess
Comments ond suggestions of sharehalders are olways considered by the Boord
Where the Board considers thot o nsk has not been fully mingated, follow-up meetmgs
will be oanged to ossess the nsk ond formulote mingahon strategies A specialist
monagement teom of Directors and semor monagers highhght nsks as and when they
become opparent The teom then i tum ossists the Board in devising controls fo
minimise the Group's exposure

THE GROUP’S APPROACH TO RISK

The identicahon and manogement of nsk 15 o confinuous process, and the Group’s system
of intemal controls and the busness conturty progrommes are key elements of that The
Group mantoms @ system of controls to manage the business and to pratect ifs ossets
with the development of contingency plons and 1opid response fo changing arcumstances
and does much to migate the nsks focng the Group The Graup confinges to invest n
people, systems ond n IT o manage the Group’s operations and 11s finances effectively

O

1. RISKS ARE IDENTIFIED
2. RISKS ARE EVALUATED

3. ACTION IS TAKEN TO MANAGE THE RISKS
4. PRACTICES ARE REVIEWED AND MONITORED TO LIMIT THE RISK

The specichst manogement feoms ore responsible for the identificotion, analyss,
evafuohien ond minigation of the sigificant nsks appheable to therr oreas of business

The teams meet regulorly to discuss the idenified nsks, and how these should be reviewed
ond mondtored The Board ensures that the appropnate arrangements are in ploce under
which stoff con raise concerms about possible finanaol or other impropriety, which are then
appropately nveshigated

The Board 15 osssted by the Audit Comemittea in fulfilling vis overview tesponsibilines,
reviewng the reporting of financrol and nonfinoacao! information to shoreholders and
the: oudit process, sahsfying itself that appropnate systems of nternol control ond nsk
manogement are i place and are serving to dentify and manoge nsk

Tha Group operates a Retml Support Unit which prowdes strong eperahonal infernal gudit
services In the Retail diviston, ond there are procedures  ploce in the Brands dsion to
monitor and control licensees. The Audd Commuttee hos also appoimted B0 as wternal
audit odvisers (see Audit Committee report an page 40)

The externol oudifors are invited to ottend oll meefings of the Audit Committee, save for
those parts of ony meeting when the Committes reviews the performance of the ouditors

The Group’s system of internal control and nsk management and its effectveness is
monitored and reviewed by the Board, the Audit Comanttee and manogement, and the
Board befieves that the Group has maintmned thioughout the year and up fo the date of
tpprovel of the Annu! Report and accounts on effective embedded system of inteinal
control and has complied with the FRC's Risk Gudonce

The systems of interngl control and nsk management are designed to manage, rather than
eliminate, the nsk of foiling to ochieve business obectives

RISK POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

Business plans ond budgets for each busmess imctude financiol ond sategic forgets ogomst
which performance 1s monitored Monitonng includes the examinahon of and changes

to rolling annual ond quorterly forecosts, monthly measwiement of actual achievement
ogainst key performance fargets and plons, and weekly reviews of performonce

The Group has dear procedures for the approvel and control of expenditure Strategic
ivestment decisions invaking both caprial ond revenue expenditure ore subject 1o farmal
detated approssol and review according to approval levels set by the Boord Operoting
expenditure 1s controllad within each busimess with approval levels for such expenditure
being determined by the indnadual businesses

Theie 15 an opproved whistieblowing policy within the Group The palicy was estoblished
to be unhised by stoff who wish to ruse any 1ssues or concerns relating to the Group’s
actvines, ond oll matters ore discussed on o confidentrol basis

KEY RISKS

CONTROL ENVIRONMENT

The Group’s operating procedures mclude o comprehensve system for reporting
informatian to the Boord including

o assessment of thiee years of strategy plons for business development;
» creation ond assessment of legal polices, and

« review of the Group af each Board meening, focusing on potential new nsks (such as
key chonges in the morket ond succession plonning)

CONTROL PROCEDURES

Deteiled operational procedures have been develeped for each of the Group's operating
businesses that embody key cantrols The implicaions of changes in low and regulanions
ore taken into occount within these procedures

FINANCIAL REPORTING PROCESS

The Group has in place itesnal control and sk management systems m relotion fo

the Group’s financial reporting process and the Group's process for the preparation of
consolidated occounts These include clearly defined ings of accountobiity and delagation
of outhority, policies and procedures that coves financiol plonning and reporting, prepanng
consolidated accounts, capital expendiure, project govemance and mformation secunty

The Audit Committee 15 responstble for overseeing ond monrtonng these processes, which
are designed to ensure that the Gioup comphies with relevant regulatory reporhng and
fiing prowisians. As ot the end of the penod covered by this Report, the Audit Commitiee,
with the parhcipation of the Chief Executrve, evelunted the effectveness of the design
and cperation of disclosure controks ond praceduies designed to ensure thal mfermation
required to be disclosed in financinl reports 15 recorded, processed, summansed and
reported within speqfied ime penods

FYERYTHING IS CHANGING
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RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO THE GROUP’S BUSINESS

CONTINUED

PRINCIPAL RISKS AFFECTING THE GROUP

The Group has identfied the following factors in the followang table as patentiol asks to, and uncertainties concernng, the successful aperanon of its business The Group s, however,
exposed 10 o wider ronge of nsks than discussed below but these are the prncipol nsks that have recently been discussed by the Boord and Audit Commities ond are of pnmary concem

AREA

The Group opetates itemahanally so 1s
rehiant an the successul distrbution of
goods from when they are distrbuted by
the monufacturer to when they ore sold
In the stores

The Group t5 1ehont on manufocturers m
developing countries os the majonty of
the Group’s products are sourced from
outside the UK

RISK

The Group 1s subject to the nsks associated with
internanonol frode and transpert as well os those
relating to exposure to diferent legal and other
stondords Porhculor nsks including worker strikes,
fulure to meet mmmum code of conduct stondards,
and tronspert delays for products which could ol
cause substannal difficuthies

Disasters m or around the foctores of our supphiers
could bng negative medio atiention to the Group

MITIGATION

The Group requires oll supphiers to sign up to the Group’s Code of Ethics/Supply
Policy which enables the Group to monitor ond benchmark the performance of
the suppher It dllows the Group fo camy out inspactions of premises o ensure
comphance with the Group’s codes for continunty and quality of supply The Pahicy
extends throughout the duration of the Group’s contract with each suppler and
ollows the Group to conduct nspechons of suppher premises at rendom intervals

Mony nisks relating to the supply chain, rehance on non-UK suppliers, ond to the
reputahion of the Group's brands are manoged and mingated by the implementahon
of these policies Strong Service Level Agreements and maintaining refakenships
with ofl parhes ivolved m the supply chain also mingate these nsks

KEY SUPPLIERS

The Group 1 rebont on good
relaonships with rts mojor
manufocturers, key bronds or
brand suppliars

Afailure to reploce any of its mojor manufocturers

or suppliers on commerawlly reasonoble terms could
hove an adverse effect on the Group's business,
operating prafit or overall finoncial condihon It may
meon that customers shop elsewhere if stores connot
supply the required product

The Group follows policies of forging tong-term relahonships with supphers ond
of utilising two leading supply chain compamies fo procure much of the Group’s
own branded goods This close relaonship bngs @ better understanding of
the suppher’s resources enabbng the Group to react quickly to changes in the
mternatonal supply market

Lengttry conmocts are often used by the Group to ensure that key monufacturers are
aware of our commutment to them

TREASURY AND FINANCIAL RISK

The Gtoup operates mtemanonally The
mojonty of foreign contracts relofing to
the sourang of Group branded goods
me denommated w US Dollars and the
Euro, thus lemvng exposure to foreign
exchange nsk

The Group hos net boriowings, which
are prncipally at floating interest rates
tinked to bank base rates or LIBOR

CREDIT AND LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group 1s exposed fo foreign exchange nisk onsing
from various curency exposures and o sirengthening

of the US Dallar or o weakening of the Pound making
goods more expensive

Forergn exchonge nsk anses when future commercrol
fansactions or recogrised assets or hobries are
denominated 1n o currency that i not the entity's
funchonal currency, os exchange rates move This
could significantly reduce profitabrhity

The Group seeks to mingate the FX fluctuations by hedging wia forward foreign
currency contracts which are designated os cash flow hedges

The Group also holds assets oversens in local currency, and these ossets ore
revolued in accordance with cumency movements This currency nisk 1s not hedged

The Group 1s cash generotrve ond 15 now targeting tts deb levels to miigate nterest
rote nisk and currently has debt levels of less than 1 x undedying EBITDA

The Group, primanly the Brands drasion,
provides credit to some of ifs customess

Funding and hquidity for the Group’s
operations are provded through
bonk foans, overdrafts ond
shoreholders’ funds

The Group could have o credit nsk if credit evaluahons
were not performed on oll customers requinng credit
over 0 certoin omoynt

The Group's objective 1s to maintamn sufficient funding
and haudity for vis requirements, but the avarlobity
of adequate cosh resources from bank foclines and
acheewing contiurty of funding in the current finaneial
chmate could be o nsk to the Group in future years

The purchase of acqusihons to strengthen and
comphment the Group may be hindered

Relanonshups with suppliers could break down if
we ore unable to pay them in hne with our
controctual obhigonons

The Growp's key supphers also face credt sk and as such the Group regulorly
assesses the wiobilty of its suppliers and ensures there are plans to source from
alternanive businesses should key supphers fail

Rigorous procedures are in place o migate s credit sk The Group has ¢ creds
policy m plote and the exposure to nsk 1s monitered on an engoing basis

Credn evaluahons ore performed an all customers requinng credit over o certan
omount, and concentration of credit nsk s managed

Investment of cash surplus, borrowings and dervative nvestments are made
through banks and companies which have credit ratings and ivestment critena
approved by the Boord

The Group miigotes hqudity nsk by keepng debt levels low and the current finance
fackty 1 held with a club of 13 banks, thereby spreading the nsk




SUCCESSION PLANRING

Key indwduals within the Group

have such o level of knowledge ond
expenience of the busmess which makes
them essentiol to contimue to further the
wiarests of the business

Noturel disaster, dinass, mpry, or the sudden
restgnation of key indwiduals could change the
direction of the Group

Qur departments work together to develop therr understanding of each depariment
and of the Group Senior monagers work ot ground level fo help to ossess the
strengths wittun thex teams and to offer development opportunities where
oppropnate This can be of assistance when considering the suitohilty of infemal
condudates for vacancies

Promonion opportunities, o competency framework, and requlor approsals gve saff
@ voice, encouroge 6 sense of responsibidity and suppart coreer progression

Qur stuctwed tolent monagement progrommes, and speaatst mosterclasses,
encourage intengl progression within the Group

Executrve development 15 importont to us and we am fo promote mtemally rather
than recruit external indmduals wha are unknown to the Group This con be best
seen through the recent promaotton of Matt Pearson to Acting Chief Frnancia! Officer

QOur Share Schemes seek to reward and rete:n our key members of staff

The Nommatian Commuttee regulady reviews the succession plan of the Group, and
discusses who would take aver roles f key teom members were fo legve

SPORTS DIRECT com

MARKET FORCES

The Sparts Retol industry 1s highly
campetive and the Group cunently
competes of nohoagl and bocal levels
with o wide vanety of refarlers of
voryng sizes who may have competive
odvantoges New compentors may enfes
the market

OPERATIONAL

The competinen continues fo place pressure on the
Group’s pescing siategy, morgins and profitability

The Group hos o discount pricing policy to help reduce the nsk of inceeased
compehtion in the industry

The Group has @ sirong property partfolio, and confinues 1o siengthen this by
relocoing and improving stores to adop? to market condions

A number of key brands are ewned by the Group, reduang pressure on morgins
The Group’s focus an acquinng compeitars enables us to refain our discounted
pricng systems withaut pnce ncreases from the brand owners

The Group 1s rehiant on the Head Office
ond Nanonol Cistnbunon Centie ot
Shirebrook operating without disruption,
olong with the wnmterrupted running of
the Group’s flest of vehicles

The majonity of the Group's reverive 1s
denved from the UK

CYBER FAILURES AND ATTACKS

Any desruphion to the Heod Office, Nahonal
Distnbution Centre or the fleet of vehicles might
significantly impact the Group’s abihty to monage
its operanons, distribute praducts to its stores and
maintam its supply chain

Any longrerm mterruphon of the Group's 1T systems
would have o significant impact on the Group's
operation, parhicutarly in the Retad dwision

Terronst attacks, armed conflicts, government achions
or adverse weather oHfecting the rood networks
within the UK could result in a significant reduction in
consumer confidence, which would n tun have on
adverse offect on sales in stores

The Group has a streng businass conhnuity plon that s regularly reviewed to
oddress operational nsks

The Board s confident that os for as it 1s prachcal, the nsks end uncertainties
that face the Group are being monitored end monoged and that, where required,
gppropriate achon 15 being foken

The Group constantly monitors the business emaronment and the nature
of the busingss model allows for the Group to act swiftly under
extioordinary cucumstances

The Group 15 extending the Heod Office and Natanol Distnbution Centre so that
these 15 oddihonal room for storage ond workers, for future business needs and in
cose of disoster

{nlina soles ond adversing are key
to the Group's strategy going forward
However cyber aftacks are becomng
more sophisheated ond frequent,
commonding heodines and losing
Customers’ frust

Reputatonal imphicaons i the attack 1s reported
o the media, ncluding a loss of sales whilst the
site 15 down, and longer term loss of sales through
the detenoration of customer confidence Possible
sanchens ond penolhes from overseeng bodies,
ond the loss of compentive advantage agamst
market competitors

The Group has a stiategy and processes in place which relate to out IT secunty
Warking with internal and exteral parhes, our callsagues contnuously monitor
our systems to enswe that they ore sufhciently strong 1o deal with ever ncreasing
cyber risks

Dunng 2014, o review of the IT nisks was completed The ewew looked into the
resiience of the curient systems, highbghting the mejor pownts of concem regarding
the Group IT systems The matters roised wall be worked on over the next two to
three yeor period in o follow up monitonng progiomme

Qur IT and Risks teams have held workshops fo ossess the key technotogy threats
o the Groug, and fook into where polies require updating and amending

FVERYTHING IS (HANGING
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RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO THE GROUP’S BUSINESS

CONTINUED

HEALTH & SAFETY

Health and sefety 1s key ocross all areos
of the Group Pohicies are implemented,
in conjunchon with legal standards, to
protect our staff and customers

Potenial ijunes, distress and fatahhes could

result from o failure to establish ond maintain safe
envivonments Lack of competence in health and
safety reporting could Yead to legal cloms which are
difficult to defend

We ensure thot each Compony within the Group 15 fully trained to the required
stondords applicable in each requisite country

Tizining courses are regularly offered and staff wre encouraged to learn essennal
health ond safety techmiques

The team ot Head Office 1s always on hond fo visit and assist stores with health and
safety 1ssues, assess inadents ond refer reportoble matters to RIDCR Dunng the
year the team has gained another strand by creafing o teom of employees which 1s
dedicated to solely dealing with dmums and complaints

The madents within the Group ore reported to the Board reqularly, os are the
tagal dlams that onse fram these The Boord consider ways to reduce the number
of doims

The Group’s trade marks, patents,
designs and other miellectual property
nghts are cental to the value of the
Group’s brands

The Group’s retail businesses are subject
10 sesonal peaks The inadence of ond
parheipation In MOjor sporiing evands
will hove o porteudor impact on the
Sports Retail business

The Group beheves that s licensees, supphers,
agents ond distrbutors are in matenal compliance
with employment, emaronmentol and other lows
The wiolafon, or allegahions of o violahan, of such
lows o requlations, by any of the Group’s heensees,
suppliers, agents or distnbutors, could feod fo
adverse publicriy and a dechine i public demand for
the Group’s products, or require the Group to ncur
expenditure or make changes to ifs supply chain ond
other business arrangements to ensure compliance

The Group may need fo resort 1o lihgohion in the
futuse fo enforca its miellectual property nghts and
any liganon could result in substanhal costs ond o
dwversion of resources

Third parnies may try to chollenge the ownership of or
counterfert the Group’s intellectual property

Prolonged unseasanal weothes condinons or
temporary severe weather dunng peak trading
seasons could hove o motenal odverse effect on the
Group’s businesses The Group 15 dependent upon the
store portfoho ond consumess’ spending habis

Customer tostes could change ond stocked items
could no longer be surtable for the morket

The Group hos an inhouse legel team who have knowdedge of a vanety of
legol areas that apply to the Group This ihouse expernse 15 vital in mitigating
such issues

The legal team work closely with external consultants 1o assisi with, ond gain
knowledge on, matters outside thair orens of expertise

The Group's legal ream octwely monitor rade mark opphicatons by other
companies, os well as the stock of rvol retolers, to ensure that eur nghts ore not
infrnged and where these are mfinged, to toke oppropnate ochion

The legol team corefully draft ofl conrespandence to ensure that documentahon
is clear and legally binding Drafting templates and key paints are shared so that
knowledge 1 retomed withn the Group

Although unable to muhgate enviranmental condinions, the Group 15 gble to influence
the reforl partfolio and therefore constontly monitors development of stores and

the Group's aim to merease the square footege through vioble new refall space By
monifarng stock levels through sales forecashng the Group can manage the peaks
in demand qnd trading profiles con be predicted

Building soles units at our Head Office gnd Notonel Distbution Centre allows us to
tnal and monrtor differng sales techmques ond products, before rolling these out to
the rest of the Group

Qur team keep ahead of the trends, conducting market research on our customers
and monitoring our compentors Sophishicated ordenng systems ensure that tems
which sell well i parnculor ares wil be restocked Our strang relahanship with

supphers ensures thot we oie able fo source key items cf short nofice, should ths

be required



CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT & BUSINESS REVIEW

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

| am plegsed to report that, despite the adverse impact on performance of Englond’s early departure from Yost year's FIFA World Cup in
Brozil and the unseasonably mild weather during autumn reducing footfall, the Group has, yet again, succeeded m delivenng another solid

set of results

The Group has ochieved another yeor of revenue and profit grawth in o challenging reral
enwironment, dnven by continued exponsion both in the UK and ocross Europe Dunng
the yeor we have mcreased our store portfolio in the UK by 23 stores ond hove odded

a further mine stores to our European store portfalio We have also continued to develop
lorge aity centre formot stores

We have olso estoblished o Friness division in the year, Sportsduect Fitness com,
comprising 27 gyms including two combied gym and retall sites

| om dekghted to announce that the Group has now met the finol torget under the 2011
Shore Scheme The first oward under this Scheme 15 due to vest later in 2015 and will
reward ¢ 2,000 participahing employaes for therr hard work and dediconon The Group’s
continued success fruly retterates how important the Shore Schemes hove been in
mofvahing paricipants to work towards o shored goal

GROUP

Group revenue wcreased by 4 7% to £2,332 ém n the year Ths wos pnmarly due fo
the Sports Retul divsion, whese we grew revenues by 5 5% Premium Lifestyle revenve
fell by 3 0%, largely due to the closure of lossmaking stores i the penod

Group gross margin i the yeor ncreased by 110 basis ponts from 42 7% 1o 43 8%
Sports Retal division gross morgin increased by 170 basts poinis to 44 6% (FY14
47 9%), while Brands dwision gross margin decreased to 40 3% (FY14 43 1%)

Group operating <osts increosed 4 2% to €860 Sm (FY14 €826 1m) We continue to
balonce revenues and gross margun, while mamtaining a ight focus on eperating costs
and as  result grew Growp undertying EBITDA {pre-scheme costs} for the yeor by 15 7%
to €383 2m (FY14 £331 1m) Within this underlying EBITDA, we increased the Retal
drvesion EBITDA by 16 0% 1o £349 1m (FY14 £300 $m) while ihe Bronds dvision
EBITOA mereosed by 12 9% to €34 1m (FY14 £30 2m)

Excluded from underlying EBITDA s 0 €10 1m (FY14 €11 9m) chorge n respect of the
2009 and 2011 Share Schemes This charge has been token centrally ond, except in note
4 to the Annua! Report, s not reflected in the divsional (Retarl and Brands) numbers in
this teport

For the year, Group underlying profit before tox increased 20 5% to €300 3m, prmonly
as a result of the €52 Im increase n EBITDA (pre-scheme costs) Underbying EPS for the
year ncreased by 21 2% to 38 %p (FY14 32 1p)

Ner debt at 26 Aprd 2085 was €59 7m (27 Apnl 2014 £212 Om), which 15 0 16 fimes
teported EBITDA (27 Apnl 2014 © 66 tmes) Reported EBITDA ichudes realised foreign
exchange goins /losses i selling and odmenistranon costs and the Share Scheme charges

REVIEW BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

RETAIL REVENUE:
52 weeks ended
26 Aol 2015 27 April 2014
(£'m) (£'m)
Sports Retal 23984 22744
Premum Lifestyle 207 & 2141
Total Retoil revenue 2,606 2 24885
Cost of sales (1,456 6} (1,427 3)
Gross profit 1,149 4 10612
Gross margin percentage 44 1% 47 6%
BRANDS REVENUE:
52 weaks ended
26 hpnl 2015 27 dprl 2014
fm (£'m)
Wholesole 1933 1852
licensing 331 323
Total Bronds revenue 2264 N75
(ost of solos {1352) (1238}
Gross margin 912 937
Gross margin percentage 40 3% 43 1%
SPORTS RETAIL

Sparts Retoll revenue hos grown in the penod as we confinue to imvest in product range
and avoilobility, ncreasing the proportion of ‘better” ond ‘best” Group bronded products,
ophimse both our in-store ond web offenngs ond further invest in our store portfolio

Sports Retol sales grew 5 5% 10 £2,398 ém (FY14 £2,274 dm), diven lorgely by
growth in the UK, offset by o weok winter sports season across Europe ond adverse
foreign cumency movements Sports Retoul gross margin for the year increosed by 170
bosis points to 44 6% (FY14 42 9%) Ths inciense 1s pnmanly attributable to on-going
tvestment in our ‘better and best’ product tanges, further enhanced by efficiencies guined
by our strang supply chaim disciplines

Sales in the second holf of the year were up 2 6% to 1,147 6m (V14 H2
£1,138 3m) Gross margins £or the second hatf of the year improved to 44 6% (FY14
H2 42 5%)

Sports Retail kke-fordke gross contnbution, which exdudes online, increased by 7 4% &
marking the sixth consecutive yeor of growth in this KPL (FY14 +10 5% / FY13
+106%/FN2 «0 7% /FY1T +6 8% /FN0 +3 7% Sports Retoll hkefordike
contrlbution 15 defined os the percentoge change n gross contnbution in the successve
12-month penod A Ekefordike store is ong thot has bean toding for the full 12 manths
i both penods and has not been affected by a significant change, sudh os 0 major
refurbishment The number of stoses included m this year's KPL1s 432 {FY14 339)

{1) Excudag £A5 and SIG as the pror veor comparetve 5 ngt o full yeor

FVERYTHING IS CHANGING
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Sparts Retoel aperating costs increased by 9 0% i the year to £715 2m (FY14

£656 3m) compored to o 5 5% merease i soles and 0 9 7% mcrensa in gross profit due
to the full year mpact of proporhonally gher costs i our recently acquired European
busimesses Opetating costs n HZ screosed by 4 6% to £361 4m (FY14 H2 £345 5m)
compared to o 7 6% increase in sales ond o 7 7% incrense in gross profit

Stare wages wers up 13 1% in the yeor to £239 2m (FY14 £211 4m) butos o
pescentage of soles ncreased only to 10 0% (FY14 9 3%) due to the annualised

effect of new store openings combined with the ful year mpact of proporhonlly hugher
costs in our recently ocquired European businesses and reduced sales due to a dificu
winter sporis saason in Europe Sports Refuil stor prereses costs wnaeosed by 9 5% to
£211 Om (FY14 £192 7m), due 1o investment n new stores ond the full veor effect of
comporatively higher cosis m our new European businesses Other operating casts were
up 13 9% 10 €280 8m (FY14 £244 6m), increasing as o percentuge of sates to 17 7%
(FY14 10 8%) due 1o costs m our recently established Fitness dwsion

The cunency impact on aperating costs of the change i the Euro Sterling exchange i owr
European businesses rate was a goin of £15 7m (FY14 @ loss of £5 ém)

Undertying EBIFDA for Sports Retail was £356 8m (FY14 £321 3m), an increase of
11 0% for the year This increass was drven by o £94 2m mcreose m gross proft dve
10 the growth in stere contnbution and online sales, offset by the £59 (m ncrease in
operahng costs

The Group's retall businesses performed strongly i o difficult economic emironment Qur
retal madel, offenng cutstanding volue to our customers, rematns restlient, both in the UK
ond internationally Thoughout the year, we contnued to focus an effering our customers
the most comprehenswe product range, the best avadobiliry ond value while mimmusing
operating costs o5  percentage of gross soles

Online revenue hos incrensed by 14 4% from €335 4m to £383 8m in the year, drven
lorgely by the successful bounch of Click and Collect in the UK duning the second half of
the year, which now occounts for aver 20% of oll UK online orders This pesfarmance 1s
extephonal considenng we thorge £4 99 for this serace Onfine sales represented 16 5%
of Sports Retoil sales (FY14 15 1%), excluding wholesalz sales

Our mobile stte conhnues fo dove sales and the Group wos recently ronked in the top four
refarlers m the FTSE 100 in terms of molule website performance, occording o  recent
study released by The Search Agency™ Mobile affic now accounts for over 50% of dll
onfine wisits We have olso re-designed our checkout, ntroducing a quest checkout ephon
and sveamfining the checkout process

We hove worked hord to improve the customer expenence in Europe, widening the
longuoge ond currency conversian aphons on our sites for nan-Enghsh speaking countmes,
and gowng forwed, plan fo nfroduce dedicated webstes for aur European businessas and
oddtional poyment methods including Ideal, Grro ond Sofort

Following successful rofs dunng the yeor, customers are now able to purchose ond redesm
gt cords online We are also warking towards the introduction of o “fost pay” checkout

system, allowing customess to purchase o large number of products i a small number of
clicks

The dmsion has continued to expand, with the development of Sportsdirect Fitness

com, comprsing 25 stondalone former LA Fimess gyms ond an addihonal two new build
combined retal and gym spaces A further two gyms m St Hefens and Dundee are planned
for early outumn 2015 Membesship continues to grow and we have alreody surpossed our
full year torgets

* The Semch Agency UK's Mobile Expanence Scorecard FTSE 100 Compomes ~ hitg //qo thesearchagency com/
mobile-expenance-scorecorddise 100-2015

We have continued fo invest n staff traming, with o key focws this vear on our *Home
{own” Tolent Manogement programme, Customer Sernce Trang and Manogernent
Induchion Dunng the yeor over 58,000 hours were invested info fraimng and developing
our workforce A great dea! of this maing took place ot our Traming Academy on our
Shirebrook compus, which 15 the onty framing centre in the werd supported by bath
Nike and Pumno We ore commirted fo the coninued development of our statf, ahways
mming to promote mtemally wherever possible and dunng the year ran owr first Graduate
Recruitment Programme, ‘Talent Bank’, where groduates were placed i our Finance and
Ecommerce teams for eight-week summer placements and offered the opporturityy to
compete for o permanent role, with the best beng rewaided

Phase Three of the development of our Notionol Distbunion Centre 1n Shirebrook, the
construchon of an addrtionol ¢ 700,000 sq f footpnnt warehouse and office facdity, 1s
now well underway, with complenon scheduled for late 2015

We have worked hord to enhonce and invest in our store portfolio dunng the year, with o
parhcular focus on larger ¢ty centre stores Dunng the year we relocated our Oxford Sreet
store o the ¢ 50,000 sq ft former HMV store and have completed a ¢ 28,000 sq ft
extension of our Glosgow store which mcludes a store w store concept orea with Under
Armour We have recently also acquired the freehold of the former Pmark store n Leeds
Works are cerrently underway on this four floor, ¢ 50,000 sq ft store which 1s due to
open ths summer

Dunng the year we opened 3% stores i the UK, closing 16, and hove opened on oddimonal
16 stores n Europe, closing seven 17 out of the 16 UK dlosuses were relocohions

into lorger and better configured spoce 428 of the UK store fasao are now bronded
SPORTSDIRECY com, on merease of 27 from lnst year (FY14 401)

Peniod end square-fontoge ncreased fo ¢ 4 75m sq # ™ (FY14 ¢ 4 5m) i the UK and
remaned ot ¢ 3 Omsq B @ {FY14 ¢ 3 Om sq ft ) across the rest of Eurape

{1 Dus to difenng methodolagues, thrs mglies o range between 4 Smsq b S Omsq ft
{2) Due to diffenng methodologues, this umplies o range between 2 5msa Rt 3 5msg

UK STORE PORTFOLIO™
anl2005 27 Apnl 2014
Stores af Yeor End 440 417
(pened 39 32
(losed 14 11
SPORTSDIRECT com foscias 418 401
Other 13 17
Aiea (sq ft) ¢4 75m ¢4 5m

(1) Exduding Northern irekind

In the 57 wesks to 26 Apnl 2015, rent reviews have been ogreed on 33 stores, of which
26 stores were ogreed ot nil incrense Of the remaining seven stores the averoge meease
in rent wos 13 87%, gving a toral averaga mcreose over the 33 stores of 2 88% (0 57%
annuol equivalent)  There are currentty 52 rent reviews outstanding with a further 42
folling due n FY16 Qur lease expiry profile over all leasehold stores (excluding Lflywhites
Piccodilly) 15 now 4 6 years, ncluding 37 stores with conactual expines or break dates
within the next 12 menths This significant amount of flexibiity wathin our portfolio

allows us to continue to morstor and adapt our formot fo the ropidly chonging multe
channel enviionment

In the cuerent fnancial yeor, we are forgeting to open between 30 and 40 stores, ¢ 30%
of which are expected to be relocations. We ore also torgefing to re-fit ¢ 300,000 sq ft of
retoil space across the LK



INTERNATIONAL STORE PORTFOLIO™

PREMIUM LIFESTYLE
Premuwm Lifestyle soles decreased 3 0% to €207 ém (FY14 £214 1m), due to the

26 hped 2015 27 hord 2014
e % 0 tlosure of lossmaking stores in the year Premum Lifestyle gross margin for the year
0 decrensed by 150 basis points to 38 8% (FY14 40 3%} due to onfine deatance of legacy
Belgrum 43 44 sock in the yeor
(2
Estomo 2 N Premm Ufestyle operating costs decreased by 17 3% to £88 2m (FY14 €106 7m) due
Latwo™ 13 13 1othe connued rohonohsation of the USC and Republic businesses and synergies gained
Lithuania® 12 12 by the consolidaon of key heod office functons in Flanaels, Cruise and Van Mudert and
Pornogd 17 5 the itegrahon of the distribuion function
Slovenio 15 15 The Underying EBITDA loss for Premim Lfestyle decreased to £7 7m (FY14 £20 4m
Poland 10 7 loss) os we began to see the benefit of the re-stuctuning of Republic i the pnor year
and rahanahsation of the ether businesses We wak see further benefits of this i the
France 7 ] coming year
(zech Republic b 4
Online revenue n the dnision increased in the yeor, dven largely by improvements in
Hollond 6 b sk availobily ond system umprovements We sow the benefit of the ntegranon of
Cyprus 6 5 the dwision’s eCommesce plotforms with the Group's IT systems and the launch of the
Hungory 5 4 Flonnels com and USC mobde platforms in the prior yeor We olso successfully lounched
UK Chek and Collect m USC dunng the year ond over 15% of all USC online orders are
Slovakia A 3 now deliered v Cick and Collect
Sermory : Low then our elaonships wih key thd
Lixembourg 7 7 e conninue fo strengthen our relatonships wih key thid party suppliers
Spamn 1 ] At the vear end, the Premium Lfestyle dwision traded from 103 stores under four
Switzerland 1 man foscos
Total 22 202 A5 27 g 2014
(}} Exchading Repoblic of Ireland & kceland usc b6 %0
{2) inclodes only stores with SPORISDIRECT com and Sportiand Fascas Cruse 10 10
All of the above stores ore operated by companies wholly owned by the Group, except Yon Mider 0
Partugal, where the Group owns 50 1% and Estonio, Latva and Lithuania where the Grogp _F1onels com B §
owns 60 0% Duning the yeor we have exponded our Eurapean store portfoho by nine Othes 9 9
stores and have entered one new country As o result we are now ochive in 20 counimies Total 103 126
ocross Europe ncluding the Republic of elond ond leelond
In Austno, we hove conhinued to relocate and upgrade the fumer Sperts Experts stores BRANDS

which hod been previousky re-bronded to the SPORTSDIRECT com fasco Qver the coming
year we will rebrand key Megostores to the Litywhates fosci, replicating our UK aty
centia store formot across the re-hranded stores i collaboraton wath key mtemationc!
brands such as Salomen

In the Baltc states we hove olready opened two stores m Estonio under the

SPORTSDIRECT com fostia ond plan to apen two further stores m Lithuomia and one store i
Lotvia under the SPORTSDIRECT com foscia We have also continued to invest n relocating
and refiting the stores trading under the SPORTLAND fosain

Qur stategy remaims to identify partners in new temtones while comtinuing to expond our
operations 1n the countmes whese we curcently tode For FY16, wa are tergeting 1o open
between 20 and 30 new stores across seven countres

The Group has o 50% shoreholding in the Heatons chain which operates 15 Sports Duedt
stores in Northern Irelond and 27 sports stores i the Republic of relond Wa olso own a
40% shareholding m the Sports Direct business n lcelond

Loco! monagement continue fo work hord o enswre that all new ond exsting stores in
Europe are committed to stiving towards the operahonal efficiencies ond stondords that
exist ocross our UK sports stores

The Group’s brand portfolio ncludes a wide vanety of worldfomous spert, fashion and
Iitestyle brands The Group’s Retoll dwision sells products under these Group brands n

its stores, and the Brands division explorts the bronds through ifs whalesale and icensing
achanes The Brands dnsion continues fo sponsor a vanety of preshgious events ond
tetains o vanety of globally-recognised, hagh-profile sportsmen and women os

brond ambassedors

Brands dwvision total revenue increosed by 4 1% to £226 4m (FY14 £217 Sm}
Wholesale revenues were up 4 4% to £193 3m (FY14 £185 2m), including growth m
the challenging UK market Trading in the US market was w line with expeciahions and
confinues to represent ¢ 40% of fotal wholesale sales

Bronds gross margin decreased by 280 bosis ponts to 40 3% (FY14 43 1%) Wholescle
gross margms fell 310 basis pomts to 30 1% (FY14 33 2%) loigely due to o sheft in the
sales mix fowards fower maorgin lines

Licensing revenues in the yeor wese up 2 5% to £33 m (F¥14 £32 3m)

Duning the year we signed 58 new licence agreements, covenng multiple bronds, product
categones ond geographies, with mmmum contiacted values of $25m over the life of
the ogreements At 26 Apnl 20135, the Group hes 407 heense agreements worldwide®™,
across 264 heensees, with contracted mmmums of $305m over the remaining hfe of
the ogreements

(1) includes consokdation of ngreements signed in pror years

FVERYTHING IS CHANGING
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Longer ferm, we still regard hcensing as the key dnver of Biands dwision profitatulity ond
central fo the overall growth of the Brands business The key growth areas are expected
to nclude Australsit ond Asta Pocfic with the ocquision of the Dunlop and Slozenger
brands n the region dunng the year This combined with growth in the Amenicos should
compensate for o more challenging licensing londscope i the UK and Europe, o Sports
Retoul continues to expand in these temtones

Operating costs decreased by 9 7% to €57 Om (FY14 €43 1m) benefiting from the
consehdotton of our back office functions in the pror year As a result of cost savings,
underlying EBITDA ncreased by 12 9% 10 £34 Im (FY14 £30 Zm)

We continue o focus on developng world-class products that are endorsed by leoding
athlates on the field of ploy We expect 1o spend between £10 and £20m on adverhsing
and promohiongl costs in the coming year

WORKFORCE

The surcess of the Group has largely been created by our ¢ 27,000 strang workforce,
whose dedication ond commutment hos been sustaned over many years Their enthysiosm
and ‘one team’ aftivude has assisted the Group to succeed where many other ietmlers
have foled The Boord 15 extremely grateful for the time that our workforce has token to
develop thew skills ond expernse Wa promote staff troining wherever possible to enable
them fo be the best that they con be

The 2009 and 2011 Share Schemes have been fundamental tools in the motivation ond
incentivisanion of parncipatng employees Under the 2009 Share Scheme, ¢ Z7m shares
vested wath those porhciponts Subject to safisfactory personal perfarmance, o further

¢ 21m shores are expected to vest under the 2011 Share Scheme

The 2011 Share Scheme Adjusted Underlying EBITDA torgets (before scheme costs),
relate to performonce between FY12 ond FY15 Al four targets have now been met, and
subject to the indwadual employee’s sahsfactory personal performance, the shares are
due to vestin 2015 and 2017 Under the 2011 Share Scheme porticpating employees
are ehgible for awords on o pro-ato basis depending on thew length of service with the
Group Awards under the scheme are granted ot erther 100%, 75%, 50% or 25% of the
partiopant’s anaual bose pay Subject to the perfarmance critena being fulfilled, ¢ 5m
shares are due to vest n 2015 and ¢ 16m shares are due to vest m 2017

An odditonal these million shares are due to vest with an Executive Director and two
members of sentor management in 2017 under the Executve Shore Scheme, subject
to performance cntena being fulfiled The Executive Share Scheme performance targets
murror those to be opphied to owords under the 2011 Share Scheme

As a result of the successes of previous schemes, the 2015 Share Scheme has been
dewised to encouroge further outstanding employes performance for those who are
imnted to parhopate The Scheme will prowde for the grant of nikcost ophions over up

to 25m shares The vestings are dapendent on strietching performance cnfena spanning
between FY16 and FY19 With ongunal EBITDA torgets (hefore scheme costs) of £480m
for FY14, €570m for FY17, £650m for FY 18 and £750m for FY 19 when the Scheme
was approved, the Scheme has the patental to not enly motivate parhopants, but alse to
ureate 0 further substannal increase in shareholder volue

The Group mfends to propose an amendment to the FY 16 Adpwsted Underying EBITDA
torget under the 2015 Shore Scheme, which will be reduced from €480m to £420m
Al other taigets for the further three years of the Scheme cumently remarn the soms
Thus change will ba put to shareholders os an ordinary resaluion at the Company's AGM
in September 2015

CONTRACTS ESSENTIAL TO THE BUSINESS
OF THE GROUP

The Group hos long-estoblished relanonshups with Nike ond adidas, the mayor supphers
of third-party branded sporting goods, and cansiders that confinued supplies from these
companies ore aitical 1o the busmess of the Group

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The Corporate Responsihabity Report i on poges 28 to 32 and a revew of the ossessment
of the Group’s impact an the environment 15 mchuded i this report

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group designs lothing ond some footweay for sole i stores and has armangements
with supphers for the research and development of goods for the Brands division

OUTLOOK

Troding sinca the yeor end has been m line with management’s expeciahans, and
underpins the 2015 Share Stheme's proposed revised FY 16 Underhying EBITDA target of
£420m The Group’s performance continues to benefit from o number of factors induding
wwvestment in product range ond ovorldabiity, with an mereosed emphasis on ‘better’

ond ‘best’ Group branded products and the ephavsation of our invstare ond web offer,
enhanced by the introduction of Click and Collect i the UK We olso confnue to invest in
our store portfolio, with the rofl-out of further lorge format oty centre stores

Dove Forsey
{hef Executve

16 luy 2015



FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Finanaal Statements for the Group for the 52 weeks ended 26 Apnl 2015 are presented in accordance with Intemational Financial

Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU

SUMMARY OF RESULTS
57 weeks ended
26 April 2015 27 Apiil 2014
(£'m) {£'m)
Revenue 28324 2,706 0
Undertyng EBITDA 3832 331
Undertying Profi Before Tox 3003 493
Reported Profit Before Taxahon N34 7395
Pence pershere  Pence per shara
Reported EPS 406 308
Underlying EPS 389 321

The Directors believe that underbying EBITDA, underhying prafit before tox and underhying
earmings per share provide more useful infarmanion for shareholders an the underhying
performance of the busmess than the reported numbers and are consistent with how
business performance 1s meosured ntemally They are not recogmised profit megsures
under IFRS and moy nat be directly comparable with “adjusted” profit mensuras used by
other companies

EBITDA 15 egrmungs before investment ncome, finonce incorne ond hnance coss, tax,
depreantion and amorhisation and, therefore, includes the Group’s share of profit from
ossocinted undertokings ond joint ventures Underlying EBITDA 1s colculated os EBITDA
before the impact of foreign exchange, any excephonal or other non-hading items and
tosts relahing to the Share Schemes

EBITDA AND PROFIT BEFORE TAX

EBITDA (£'m) PR (§'m)
Operating profit 956
Depreciotion, amorhisation ond impairment 678
Share of profit of essocnted undertokings 30
{exct FV odpustments}
Reported 3664 3134
Share Scheme 101
Excephanal items 30 30
Profit on disposal of investments . (12 6)
Redhsed FX loss 37 37
[AS 39 FX foir volue odjustment an forword 79)
currency confracts (
Underlying 383 2 3003

Underlying 52 week FY15 profit before tox excludes

(1} excephonal iems which decreased profit by £3 Om,

(i) profit on disposal of ivestments which mcrensed profit by €12 6m,

(m) reohsed foreign exchange losses which decreased profit by €3 7m, and

() IFRS revaluation of forexgn cuniency contiacs which increased profit by £7 2m

FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The Group manages the smpoct of currency movements through the usa of forward fixed
tate cyrrency purchose and soles contracts The Group’s pelicy s to hold or hedge between
zero and five yeors of annapated purchoses in foreign currency

The realised exchonge loss of €3 7m (FY14 £1 8m gain} mcluded in administranon costs
has ansen from

o) oceepting Dollors ond Euros of the contracted rate, and

b) the transtaton of Doltar and Euro denormenated assets ond habilities ot the penod
end st or dote of reaisahon

The exchange g of €7 2m (FY14 £11 2m loss) meluded m finance income /costs
substannally represents the reduchon m he mark to-market hiabshty moda {undes [FRS)

for the Group’s unhedged forword controcts os ot 26 Apil 2015 A number of the forward
contracts ourstanding ot 26 Apnl 2015 qualify for hedge accounting and the far volue
gain on these confrocts has been credited to equity through the Consolidoted Stotement of
Comprehensive Income The Group hos suFfiient USD/GBP contracts to cover all purchases
in UK Retad for FY16 The Sterling exchonge rate with the US Dollar was $1 680 at 27
Apnl 2014 and $1 502 at 26 Aprl 2015

Given the potential impoct of commodity prices on raw matenal costs, the Group may
hedge certain nput costs, ncluding cotron, crude ol and elecmcity

FINANCE COSTS

52 weeks ended

26 hgril 2015 27 bpril 2014

(£ m) £ m)
Interest on bank loans and overdiafts (Xi] {75
Interest on other loans 02 ()]
Interest on setuement benefit obkgations 0 6) (0 6)
Fou value adjustment to forward foreign exchange )
tonfracts

{75 {19 %

The decrease in iterest poyoble 15 o result of the decreased use of the revolving credit
focility and repayment of debt inhenited from acquied companies

The priar yeor loss on the fan volue of forward foreign exchange contracts arose under
IFRS s a result of marking to market ot the penod end those contracts that do not qualfy
for hedge accounting

EVERYTHING 1S CHANGING

SPORTSDIRECT.com
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(ONTINUED
EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
52 weeks ended
26 kpd 2015 27 2 2014
t'm) (£'m}
Profit on sale of frechald properhes 103
Impowment and acceleroted depreciation and 133 55)
amartisation
2 (30) (55)
o4
E The mpairment and oceelerated depreciotion ond omerhsation relates to a change n the
& eshmated useful kfe of cerron tongible and miongible assets and mpanment ogainst
=2 goodwll in the year
p—1
; The profit on sale of freshold property indudes the sale of a freehold warehouse for
£21 2m, reahsing a prefit of €11 Im
2 TAXATION
] The effectve tox rate on profit before tax in FY15 was 23 0% (FY14 25 %) This rate
8 reflects depreciation on non-gqualrfying assets and overseas earnings being toxed ot o
§ fugher rate
EARNINGS
52 waeks ended
BAA2005 27 kel 2004 Chengs
(pence per share)  {pence per shava) (%)
Reported EPS (Basic) 406 08 318
Underlying EPS 389 371 ni
2 Weghted overage umber 57 994 377 55,513,597

of shares (actual)

Basic eamings per share (EPS) 1 coleulated by dnading the eamings otimbutable fo
ordinary shareholders by the weighted cvernge number of crdinary shores outstonding
dunng the actual financiol period Shares held in Treasury and the Employee Beneft Trust
are excuded from this higure

The underlying EPS reflects the underyng performance of the business compared with

the pror year and s coleulated using the wesghted average number of shares 1t 1s not o
recognised profit measure under IFRS and may not be directly comparable with *odjusted”
profil measures used by other companies

The rtems odjusted for armving ot the underying profit ofter tox and minonty interests 1s
as follows

52 weeks ended
26 Apil 2015 27 hprl 2014
{§m) {£m)

Profi after tax 240 4 1802
Post tax effect of adjustment items
Profit on disposat of hsted mvestments (28) 40
impairment of goodwil . 03
Farr volue odjustment to forword forergn (125 84
exchange conkracts
Realised loss/ (gain) on forward foreign 29 {14)
exchange confracts
Profit on disposal of freehold properhes 79
Impairment and accelerated deprertahon and 102 4]
omortisotion

Undertying profit after tox 230 3 187 4

DIVIDENDS

The Board has decided not to propose o dwidend in relohon to FY15 The Board faels that
it remains i the best interasts of the Group fo preserve financial Rexbufity, focditahng the
pursutt of potentiol acquisitions and other growth opporturihes The poyment of dnadends
remains undes teview in future years

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Duning the year, capital expenditure amounted fo £100 3m (FY14 £69 1m), which
includas expenditure on hcences within intangeble assets and construchon of our
Shrebinok wvehouse

ACQUISITIONS

The Group mode a number of smaber ocquisinons dunng the year including the purchase of
25 former LA Fiiness gyms

STRATEGIC INVESTMENTS

Durng the yeor the Group dispased of ¢ 1 5m shares in D Sperts Foshion plc but at
the yeor end confinued to hold an 11 09% stake m JD Sports The foir value of the
Group’s holdings at 26 Apnl 2015 wos £140 8m (27 Aprl 2014 £104 9m)

The movement in the foir volue of the shates held has been recogmised drectly n
{Other Comprehensive Income

in June 2014, the Group acquired an merest i ¢ 7m shares in MySole Group plc,
representing 4 8% of the 1ssued share copital of MySale

In September 2014, the Group entered mto o demvative ogreement referencing
23,000,000 shores in Tesco Plc, representing O 3% of the wssued share coprtal of Tesco

In October 2014 the Group ocquired ¢ 56m shares in Debenbiams ple for £33 Zm,
representing 4 6% of the issued share capital of Debenhams Thus stake wos sold i
November 2014 and the Group entered into ¢ demvatve agreement referenang ¢ 74m
Debenhams shaves, equivolent to & 1% of the wssued share capital of Debenhams

On 23 lanuary 2015 the Group terminated an existing Debenhams dervative agreement
entered mto w Jonyory 2014 ond ot the some tme, entered info o new derwvatve
agreement referencing ¢ 128m ordinary shares of Debenhams (reprasenting 10 5% of the
issued share copital of Debenhams)

As at 26 Aprl 2015 the Group had an interest m 15 0% interest in Debenhams’
ordinary shares

These stakes allow us fo develop refationships and commesciol parnerships with the
relevont retailers ond assist in bulding refohonsips with key supphers and bronds

The fair volue of equity demvative agreements 15 ncuded within the denvainve finangigl
assets bolance of £92 2m



CASH FLOW AND NET DEBT
Net debt decrecsed by €152 3m from €212 Om ot 27 Apnl 2014 10 €59 7m ot 26 Apnd
05

The analysts of deht at 26 Apnl 2015 was os follows

62015 2 A 2014

(§'m) {£'m)
(ash ond cosh equivalents 783 1510
Barrowings (13800 (363 0)
Net debt (97N (2120)

On 25 November 2014 the Group utihsed the occordion ophoa under its £688m working
capiol faclity As o result, the working capita! faality has been ncreased from £688m fo
£738m The foclity 15 ovarloble untl Septembes 2018 and 15 not secured ogainst ony of
the Group’s fxed assets

The Group olso hos o £250m warking capital foclity with Mike Ashley which can be
drawn down on request This faciity wos agreed of market terms ot s inception and 1s
not secured ogainst ony fixed ossets At the year end no bolonce was due

The Group continues to operate well within its banking covenants and the Board remains
comfortable with the Group’s ovarloble headroom

CASH FLOW

Total movement 15 os follows

26 Apnl 2015 27 Apnl 2014

(&'m) (€'m)
Undarlying EBITDA 3832 3311
Reahsed {loss) / prefit on forward foreign exchange
contracts 37 18
Taxes paid (mn (557
Underhong fiee cash flow 3018 712
Invested n
Working copital gnd ether {64 8) {1101)
Purchose of own shores -
Acquisinions (including deht) (38) {144 2)
Net proceads from / (purchase of} ivestments 41 (4 )
Ne1 coprtal expenditure (791 69 1)
Finonce costs and other finanaing octrates (59 (7 2)
Decrease / (Increase) m net debt 1523 {58 0)

The inarease in working capital 15 partly to support the growth of Sports Retall and the
online business and partly due to the hming of payments around year end

PENSIONS

The Group operates a number of dosed defined benefit schemes in the Dunlop Slazenger
companies The net defiait in these schemes decreased from £15 4m o 27 Apnl 2014 to
£14 9m at 24 Aprl 2015

MaH Pearson
Acting Cief Financial Gfficer

18 Iuly 2015
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Corporate Responsibility 15 ceniral to our vision to be an industry leades Our established Corporate Responsibility framework focuses

on five key areas People, Health and Safety, the Environment, Customers and the Community Sports Direct has developed Key
Performance Indicators (KPls) to ensure we deliver on our commitments These KPIs are further discussed n this report and in the Chief
Executive’s Report and Business Review, and are bused solely on our UK operations, unless expressly stated

OUR PEOPLE

The Group employs over 27,000 people, ocsass 19 countries and vanous sactors, from
Sport, Fashion, Lifestyle, Gyms and Brands, and our people are what makes she Sports
Durect Group such a success

QOur whols people ethos revolves around ‘Right Person, Right Place, Right Time” and we
are committed to the contnued development of our people to meet our future growth
plans Nurtuning our people fo reach the full potennal and promoting intemally where
ever possible have been tools that have been used by the Group for over the lost 30
years and are fundomental to our confinuing success

ATTRACTION AND RETENTION

As @ Graup, we like to roin ond refain our staff to ensure thot valuabls knowledge
remains wittun the business The Group uses o number of incentves 1o retam our
people, ncluding regulasty holdng employee apprassals, to see the areos whera we, os
an employer, con improve We find that vegular apprarsls also highlight the knowledge
gaps which our employees hove, and allows us to offer stoff traiming which will develop
ther understanding

During FY15 18 7% of our UK solaned staff left the Group, o decrease from 19 2% i
FY14 We eshmate that this figure will remain relotively low dunng the 2011 Share
Scheme vesting penads

Our Share Schemes are utihsed to atiroct, mohvate ond incenhvise aur people and
potential future employees We have found that creafing a shared goal has improved
employee sohsfachon levels

Store Manoger stabiity with Sparts Direct 1s currenty siting ot 92%, this 1s an merease
of 6% on the FY14 figuie Assistant Manager and Footwear Manager stobslity currently
sitot 86 5% and 90 3% respectvaly, which 1s an increase of 6% and 4% across

the posihons

SALARIED STAFF TURNOVER SINCE FY10

e
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PERFORMANCE & REWARD

We reward the hard work of our pornapoting employees with the Share Schemes The
Share Schemes are dependent an the ocdwevement of pre-determined underying E8ITDA
targets, s well as sahsfactory performance of the mdnidual employee

The targets for the 2031 Share Schemes were

2012 Underlying EBITDA of £215m - Achieved
2013 Underyig EBITDA of £250m - Achieved
2014 Underying EBITDA of £260m - Achieved
2015 Underying EBITBA of £300m - Achieved

M four of the 2011 Share Scheme torgets have now been achieved Under the 2009
Shore Scheme ¢ 27m shares in toral vested, ond o further ¢ 21m shares ore expected
to vest under the 2011 Share Scheme

The Group olso has several policies and systems in ploce to ensure stoff welfare 1s
monrtored and moinfoined These ore laid out in the diagram below

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY
& DIVERSITY POLICY

T

TAILORED
RIGHTTO A
EMPLOYEE
HANDBOOK TRADE UNION
STAFF FORUM
GRADUATE RECRUITMENT

Dunng 2014 we ron our Graducte Recruiment Progromme, ‘Talent Bank” The exght
week programme offered groduates placements in our Ecommerce ond Finance team
with the opporfunity to complete projects within the Group and compete for rewards,
ond the opportunity of a permanent role at the end of the programme  The scheme 15
paid, with interns working on projects similor to these in the work environment The
programme ensures that we ore binging n new tolent and the Group 1s constantly
evalving with new ideas and ways of thinking




DIVERSITY

Diversity within the Group 15 essennal and we beheve this ploys on importons rola in
a successiul business At ol imes we try to ensure that our people meet the diversity,
cultures and vatues of our vaned customer bose

Qur Boord currently hos a 14% female representanon, with further detoils being

shown on page 33 We are in the process of looking to recrurt another female for the
Board, although we consider that the necessary skills and expenience ore of poromount
mportance, with diversity being of lesser signficonce

Females make up 37% of our semor monagement teom While we oppreciote that
work coutd be done to ensure that the figure 15 more balonced, we are sansfied that the
team possesses the opproprate batonce of skils and knowledge As positons become
avorloble the necessary level of consideration will be gven to ensunng diversity wathin
the team

Our overall UK workforce base consists of 46 4% females, proving that disciminghon
for foctors including gender will not be tolerated wattun the Group The low 1s poramount
when we recruit employzes and we aim to ensure that both mele and femole
condidates are provided with equol opportunines to apply for and work e fl posihans
across the Graup

A BREAKDOWN OF GENDER DIVERSITY:

Male Femadle
Dwectors 4 ]
Qther senior managers 37 17
A UK workfarce 11,450 9,859

TALENT & CAPABILITY DEVELOPMENT

In the lost year we saw the lounch of our new competency framework, known os the
*Success Foctors ' The seven Success Factors prowde the behaviours that lead fo grest
parfarmance i indedual job roles within Sparts Durect ond includa the qualies and
skills that help people to be successful In short it's what our ‘best performers do’ and
they descnbs ‘how we need fo be'

We have warked on embedding the Success Factors n to all of cur people prachces
since launch in November 2014 Fustly by introduang new recuitment tools and
providing owr store monager populotion m the UK wath competency bosed

nterview frauning

Secondly, we lounched our new onnual appraisal ocross UK Refail, Head Office,
Warehousa and Transport Each dwsion has o Success Foctor framework of its very
own Our people rewew and ogree performance wittun therr annual approisal and set
development goals to achieve in the coming yeor

With the infroduchon of the Success Factors we have created o mechansm of
identfyng and developing intarngl talent acrass the Group to support our future
growth plons

Qur teams have o vanety of development opportuniies using different methods

We encourage growing within one’s cument rele or toking on new chollenging tosks,
leaming from others, supporting indduats in rechsing thew potennal and providing
formal trasming opportunines

KEY HIGHLIGHTS:
Totol workforce (totol Group) 27,207
Hours invested i troinng 58,000

DEVELOPING OUR PEOPLE — TRAINING PROGRAMMES

The aim of our Staff Faining ond Development Bepartment is to use te Inferatonol
Training Centre o prowde: the best, stota of the crt facilines for our team 4o flounsh
into chompions Oue goal is o give every member of our team the apportunity to be
inspued, shmulated, monvated, and empowered We know that it tokes every single
team member to make o diference and improve the performance of the business

We hove confinued 1o focus on the need to progctvely develep our feam's comperence
base ond leadership capabilines in order fo mee? the rapidly changing requirements

of the Group Troiing 15 an greo in which we hove contmued to west, ond in FY15
alone, over 58,000 hours were invested into troning ond developing the team at
Sports Direct

We are committed o conhnue offenng o great portfalio of froning courses, the mojonty
of which ore housed in our very own faclmes The portfalio has conhnued to grow s
has year on yeor waih three oreas recemang more emphasts

* “Home Grown™ Talent Management Programme
= (ustomer Service Traming
* Management Induchon

We have on infernanonal approach fo raiming by adophng our prnaiples to those in

the countnes in which we node Teoms from Austna, Estonia, Czech Repubhic, Dubat,
Malaysta, France, Portugal, Holland, Cyprus, Switzerland, Kuwait, Belgum, icelond,

Hungary, Slovenig, Slovakio, Poland hove ol atended sessions

“HOME GROWN” TALENT MANAGEMENT PROGRAMME

The Home Grown Talent Management Programme ollows us to place the right
person in the right position ot the right fime. Ii 15 0 stucured progromme which
shows staff that ourstanding performance con lead to further opportunities to progress
within the Group It helps refain talented and key indmduals, which in turn reduces
recruitment costs

{uwr tolent management actraties are open o the majenty of our workforce, with o
focus on thase who consistently show high-potental I11s part of aur culture fo davelop
higtrpotental employaes to grow into future Gioup leaders, and 1s 0 method which we
have used since doy one We believe that producing o common standard of behowiour
for those in leadership rotes will improve the likelihaod of the Group achieving future
godls, and enable us o retam real tolent, by allowang it to flounsh

The Programme encourages our workiorce to better themselves each and every day

At the end of the Progromme, prowding the ndimdual has proved o be worthy of
opportunity, key posihions will be affered 1o these who hove shown that they are ready
to toke the next step n therr coreers

FVERYTHING IS CHANGING
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CUSTOMER SERVICE TRAINING

Duning the yeor our customer service progromms has continued fo play o pvotal role
when working with Sports Retoil store staff The tresning model has conhnued to be
used by Store Manogers, trough o combinahon of seminars and eleaming

The “Sales through Servce” Modsl (STARS) reinforces the key elements of successful
ustomer serice

* Smile

o Tak

* Ak

* Recommend
& Sale

The frining works i conyunchion with our “5 Stor Commission Scheme”, ond aims
to ossist growth expectotions by showng staff haw developing thewr behaviours can
prowde o better service to customers and dnve soles

MANAGEMENT INDUCTION

New ond exishng managers hove otended the two week residential wduchion
progromme, which 1s based at our Shirebrook campus The progromme consists of

@ mixture of shep floor based g ond clossroom centred achwihes, with typical
subjects including merchandising, odminishanon, delivery processes, health and sofety,
shop dosure processes, product training, and retall business skils

HIGH PERFORMING MANAGERS

Qur elite group of high perfermng operational managers are offered raming vio work
based schemes which look fo further develop thewr skills The franing schemes indude
topics such os effectva leadership, team engagement, performance enhancement and
managing through change, wath the ncivines based en reat work situahons We have
found that the raning makes an immethate difference to the problem solving, analytcal
and iter-personal communicahon skills of those who hove been troned

INTERNAL PROMOTION REFRESH PROGRAMME

Members of the retall ream who are put forward for mtemal promohon are invited fo
attend the Operatonal and Manogenal Refresh Programme This is o five day resedential
course thot consists of shop floor operanonal traiming combined with style and behawviour
madules covenng communication, leadershup and deaision making

BRAND TRAINING

Robust traimng progrommes to infarm and frain staff on product innvation and brand
iwhatves continue This ensures that the links between Sports Direct and the major
brands are strenger thon ever

Sports Direct is stll g heavy user of Nike Sports Knowledge Uinderground {SKU) and
continue to be one of the front runners in ferms of percentage compleion worldwide
SKU prowides another elearning oppartunity for the Sports Drect team which ollows
stoff to gom essentia! foundation knowledge on Nike Praducts This foundahon
knowledge 15 then tuken one step further on the Nike Troining doys held at the Sports
Direct Traning Academy The days are hosted by Mike Experts (EKINs) ond toke the
foundanan knowledge from SKU ta o higher level with interochon and involvement
The Nike Groduate Scheme then encourages those who attend the franing day to
transfer therr learning fo the teom in-store By doing so they gain the recognion of
becoming o Nike Graduate wittin therr store Sports Direct works exclusively with Nike
on this excephonal traiming inihafive

Sparts Burect works with adidos and Pume fo prowde bespcke franing mimatives to
support the continued growth of adidas and Puma products Through 2014, many team
members attended specialist odidas sessions, which focused on product knowledge and
selling skills More dotes are i the dhary for 2015 to support and captura the main
product releases ond new inngvations in sporing technologies

FOOTWEAR MASTERCLASS

Aimed ot managers responsible for the footwear department i thew branch, the
Footweor Mostercloss 1s o three day residentiol course which focuses on one of the key
deportments in o Sports Birect store Typical subjects covered include merchandising,
stoff efficency, best prachice, health ond safety, polies, and procedures

E LEARNING

It 15 important that all staff ore engaged with who we ore and what message we want
o give o customers, and we beheve that delivenng effechve inducnon training 1s key
to tis Without a proper induchon, there s the nsk of stoff not understanding
complionce 1ssugs of pohcies, low produchwity and poor mofivafion, poor customer
service ond lost sales

Recently we implemented o new, mteroctive inducton progromme that would create
pnde i Sports Direct and ensure consistency and structure 1n foundahon troming
The induchion programme is ovatloble to ofl UK Retnd stoff, imed ar engoging new
storters and re-energising exisng collaagues

Sponge UK, o specialist elearning company, have been engoged by the Group to
develop an online induchon that complements the exising face-toface troming thet the
Group offers The cument modules Focus on the four main aregs, being sales and service,
health ond safety, merchendising, and day to day operohonal mformanion

These areas are the first 1 o planned suite of courses that will cover oll aspects of the
Group's ochvity

As it s mportant for stuff to be able to access the learning on the go, the course has
been designed 1o work on tablats and smartphones, as well os desktop computers

The induchon programme 15 one of the very first Adapt elearning courses, and we have
17,000 users who cumently feel the benehit of this

HEALTH AND SAFETY

As the Company continues to grow there has been incrensed focus on creaning o
consistent method of evolyating health and safety performance Going forward we are
looking to set turgets and monitor our perfarmance

[n relohon to the UK workforce we hove colculoted the figures per 100,000 hours
worked using 0 12 month rolling overage The number of acadents invahang the
warehouse workforce as of Apnl 2015 was 5 9, compared to 2 8 af Apnl 2014
Incieased footfoll and decreused warkspace due to ongoing building works, have bath
contnbuted towords the increase The number of acadents involing the store, office and
dismbunon workforce has remasned stotic with 2 5 os at Apnd 2015 and Apnl 2014

In relahon to the general public we hove calculated the figures per £10m store turnover
using o 12 month ralling average The number of acadents nvohang the ganeral public
hod decreased over the course of the veor and was 3 9 os at Apnl 2015, compared to

47 indpnl 2014

Over the course of the vear there have been no environmental prosecunions or
work-elofed fatghhes

ENVIRONMENT

We recogrse that we have o respansibility to monoge the impact our business hos on
the enviranment, and we ore committed to reducing this both now and in the future

We confinue to comply with the Government's Carbon Reducton Commitment, ond have
identified key arens where we con moke o difference, in parhculor energy usage 1n our
stores, tronsport and waste manogement

Wa are conhnuously aiming to reduce our carbon footpant The single most significant
element 15 elecmaty, which mokes up 84% of the footpant The carbon footpnnt spreod
atross ol UK sites 1s detailed n the chart oppostte



CARBON FOOTPRINT ANALYSIS 1 APRIL 2014 - 31 MARCH 2015

The growth of aur Company hos in¢regsed the number of our stores and therefore the
obsolute GHG emissions Qur chosen infensity rono of electarty-related emissions. per
£m revenue hos mcreased by 15 9%, 11 5% of which 15 due to o chonge n DEFRAS
conversion factor, the remainder due to the inclusion of o number of newly acquired
fimess centres which ora more enesgy consuming and thesefore have ths effect

GREENHOUSE GAS (GHG) EMISSIONS REPORTING

Reporting period 1 Apnl 2014 -31 March 2015

Boseline year 12

Consolidation Dparehonad control
approach
Boundary Al UK enthes and faciities edher owned or under operahonal
summary tontio} were mnchuded Emissions from on conditionmg und
refngerahon umts ore excluded dug to the cost of data
collection These ore expected to be o neghmble % of scope
1 smissions
Consistency Other than the emissions declared for the peniod ¥ Apnl
with Financial 2014~ 31 March 2015 to be 1n hng with the (RC Energy
Statements Efficiency Scheme, there are no inconsistencies with Financiol
Stotements
Emission factor  DEFRA (Moy 2013)
data source
Assessment The Greenhouse Gas Protocol and 150 14064 1 (2006) We
methodology have used the 2014 UK Govenment's GHG conversion fodtors
Matenodlity Motenglty wos set of Group level af 5%, with all UK faalines
threshold estmated to contmbute >0 5% of total emissions included
Intensity rofio Emissions per £m revenue

(1) The emsstons dackared are Fox the pancd | Rpel 2014 — 31 March 2015 1o be 1n ke with the CRC Energy
Effioency Scheme

Scope | GHG emussions are calculated based on the puichased quontives of commescial
fuels using published emission factors Scape 2 GHG emissions are pnmanly colculoted
from metered elecinaty consumption and published emission factors

{07 equivolent foctors are used which ensures we have reported on ol of the enussion
sources required under the Comparues Act 2004 Regulahons

Group UK Only UK Only

Year 2015 215 2014

Scope 1 (0%e emissions 14119 12,801 11,206

Scope 2 C0% emissions 116,335 82,455 64,747

Totd Scope 1 and Scope 2 130,464 95,256 75,953
(0% emissions (Tonnes)

0% Emissions (Tonnes/Em)} 46 423 368

This 15 the second year of mandatory reporting of this dofa To prowide onalysis against
previous yeors we hove shown comparaiwe dota for elecmaty-reloted emissions, which
accounts for 84% of our GHG emassions in the current year

The toble below detls Electcty v Revenue ond shows a pro rata increase of 15 9%
acioss the year

Yeor 2015 2014
(0% Emissions from electnaty (Fonmes) 80,140 63,393
(0% Ermissions from electmaty (Fonnes/Em)*! 354 307

Hectnoty vs Sales Turnover Index (2012 100) 117 § 101 5

{1) Not meudmng nonUIK revenue, m Ime with the (0% emmsions reparted

WASTE REDUCTION
We are octvely reduang the omount of waste we send to landfil and segregote woste to
ensure that we recyde as much os possible

THIS YEAR WE RECYCLED:

* 5,127 units of electneal equipment (2014 7,099 ymits)
o 04 fonnes of waste poper (2014 78 fonnes)

o 9526 tonnes of cordboard (2014 9,230 tonnes)

o 735 tonnes of metal (2014 147 tonnes)

618 tonnes of plostic (2014 558 tonnes)

A stores now use bodegiodable comer bogs ond prowde the ophion of o “bag for be”
This 15 actively promoted in-stare through bagh levels of staff engagement

Looking ahead, we will continue our commitment to mimimise waste and mprove energy
efficiency across our stores

CUSTOMERS

Customer serwce ts ot the forefront of our business We oim 1o provide customers with
an enjoyoble expenence both in-store and onling and ensure all our products ore safe
ond it for purpose

#onitonng customer sahsfochon ond responding to quenes 1s o conhinuous process
All wniten complaints ore recorded, including on onalysis of the nature of the complant
so that fiends can be assessed ond appropriate achon token

Wa have an online customer contact form thot reduces the hme it tokes for our
tustomers o contec us ond ncrenses the volume of contoct Onfine communacation has
reduced the amount of tme 1t takes for us to respand to quenas thereby increosing our
service levels, while reduang the pnnt and postoge costs for both the Group

and customers

We nig contnuously working fo improve customer sarnce of of levels within the Group
from tha retall stores, Heod Office and through to our website

FVERYTHING IS CHANGING
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COMMUNITY

SUPPLY CHAIN

Wa are committed to responsible business prachces in our own busingss ond within our
supply chow We conhnue to procure merchandise from manufucturers who hove proved
to uphold ethicel employment ond hoding practices, and we have a sict Code of Ettucs
thot we require every suppher to adhere to The Code provdes for the fur freatment of
workers, ensunng o safe emronment in accordance with the local and nahonal lows
where workers are treared with respect and pard faiy for what they do The code

also ensures there 1 no child lobour and no use of illegal means or matenals n the
produchon of goods

We hove longsiunding relonanships wath our suppliers who have demonstroted that their
work prachees are consistent with Sports Direct's stondards Approximately 40% of our
current suppliers hove bean working with the Company for 10 years or more We have
worked with two leading supply chon compames in Singapore ond South Korea for o
number of years Using ther local knowledge and expenenice helps benefit the business
and the communihes in which they aperate Both businesses hove the highest soaal
and business ethics code which aligns with our own Coda of Erbucs, the BSCI Code of
Conduct (which ts bosed upon the United Notans Declaration of Human Rights) ond the
Socl Accountability 8000 (SABOOO) Code

Sports Direct refies on those supply cham companies to inspect the premises of afl
supphers and monufacturers Frequent mspections are comed out randomly to ensure
that goods meet our quality stondords as well os ossessing confinued compliance with
SABCOO ond our Code of Ethics We cease immediately to work with suppliers who do
not meet our cnteng

We comply with an internananally recognised hst of chemicals that are banned for use
in fabnes The supply chain comparies conduct randam tests an fabne which are then
token to a recognised laboratary for quality tesnng and to ensure that banned chemicols
ore not being used

CHARITY

Yeor on yeor we dedicate money, dothing and equipment to worthy chantes, o
ensure thor sport can be enjoved and appreciated by all bockgrounds Sport 1s not anly
important to leading o fit ang healthy Ifestyle, but should olso be seen s fun Our
dedications go some way towards allowing sports to be enjoyed by o vanety of unlikely
sportsmen and women

KARRIMOR

Karnmor become the offiael dothing and equipment suppher fo the chanty teom
“Wovesdhops' The seven man squad successfully completed the chaflenge of a ifehme,
rowng the Enghsh Channel far three great chanhes, Soving Fuces, The Royal Marsden
Cancer Chanty and SeildCancer The nowice team were fully equipped with Karmmor geor
o take on this gruelling venture, with the aim of raising £30,000 Congratulahons o
the team on therr outstanding ochuevement

SLAZENGER 'CHANCE TO SHINE’

Slozenger 1s the exdusive cncket equipment supplier to the country’s most recognised
grassroots cncket development programme, “Chence to Shine” Each project provides
stuctured coaching and o competiton programme for a group of schools who would not
have otherwise had the chance to partiapate in the sport

By 2013, the programme hod reached one third of all pnmary and secondary schools
ameunting fo almast 7,000 schocls and has supported twe million young people,
olmost half of whom are grls Over £600,000 worth of encker equipment has been
supplied by Slozenger to enable the programme ta run successfully

DUNLOP

Dunlop works together wath s sponsored professional golfers Lee Westwaod and Darren
(larke to supply clothing to their ‘golf schools’ These are jumar player development
schemes which prowde quakified coaching and mentoring fo youngsters

(ver £40,000 worth of dlottung has been prowded through sponsorsip to the schemes
so for

LONSDALE

Lonsdoe 15 the OFficial Equipment and Fight Sparts Apparel Suppher for the RAF and the
Royal Naovy We are the proud sponsor of the RAF annual Nowce Champranships, The
Lord Wakefelds

At a grassroofs level, Lonsdote 15 also o sponsor of the England Boxing Lonsdale Golden
Gloves School Champronships and pravides 50 pairs of golden gloves, worth £2,000 to
the finalists frea of charge

EVERLAST

Everlust supparts o vanety of ergonisatons thraughout the year, including bath
sports-anented and chantable programmes A long-standing supporter of the most
preshgious amateur baxing compettion in the US, the New York Golden Gloves,
Everost 1s the official fight glove and apparel sponsor The organisahion cetebrated
its 88th yeor in Apnl

Since 2004, Everlast hs also served o5  proud supporter of The Breest Concer
Research Foundanon® (BCRF) Each year, Everlast donates a portian of tha sale
proceeds from selected pink products to help the foundation prowide funding for cinical
and genenc research Lost year, Everlast donated $57,433 to BCRF's research efforts
to find @ cure

ANTIGUA GROUP

Anngua supports @ wide vanety of sports related and chonty related events throughout
the year These nclude The Phoenix Children’s Hospital Annual Golf Classic, The
Scatrsdate Charros Foundahon, The Jerry Colongelo Prostate Cancer Event and The
Sabvation Amy

Antigua 1s afso heawlly involved in the promation of Juntor Galf in Anzona and around
the country Anhigua hos spansored “The Anhgua Juntor Tour™ in portmership with the
SWSPGA for over 20 years ond also supports Girls Golf, The Firss Tee ond The Jumier
Golf Associanon of Anzona In recent years, Angua hos helped to create the Antigua
Natonal High School Golf Invitananal which imwites teams from all over the Uited
States to parhopate

The Strategic Report wos approved by o duly outhonsed Committee of the Board of
Bwrectors on 16 July 2015, and signed on its behalf by

Dave Forsey
Chief Executve

16 July 2015




THE BOARD

® AUDIT COMMITTEE  ® NOMINATION COMMITTEE

DR KEITH HELLAWELL QPM ¢+

NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN, CHAIRMAN OF NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

APPOINTED: 24 November 2009

COMMITTEES: Nomination ond Remuneranion Committees

PREVIOUS ROLES: Pror 1o joining the team ot Sports Diect Internabonel pic, Dr
Hellowell spent over 40 years i public sector monogement being a former Chief Constoble
of two Bansh police forces While working durectly for the Pume Munister between 1998
and 2002 he wrote and coordingted the United Kingdom nationol and intemotional
antrdrugs pohey Dr Hellowell has been involved in the prvate sector since 1998 when
he jomed Evans of Leeds, o fully hsted property company Since then he hos served on
the Boards of both Defkio plc and Stenence Limited, subsidianes of the French company
Veoha Frv He was NorExecutve Charman of Goldshie!d Group ple, o markennged
phormoceutical and consumer health compony, fiom May 2006 to s sale n December
2009 He has held o number of ather Nan-Execuive Board posihons i private companies
including sectars such as vehicle manufoctunng and [T

PRESENT ROLES: Dr Hellawell 1s corrently o Nor-Executve Director of Mornce ple, o
Singapore-based fociities management compony and o Duector of the Super League team
Huddersfietd Giants He alse runs his own management ond raiming consultancy compeny

KEY SKILLS AND EXPERIENCES: Dr Hellowell has worked i both the public
and prvate sector for over 50 years Throughout this ime he hos bult up o wealth of
expenence which he brings to the Group o ensure the successful and effectve operahion
of the Board

MIKE ASHLEY
EXECUTIVE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN
APPOINTED: 1982 (founder)

PREVIOUS ROLES: Mke estabbshed the busimess of the Group on legving school in
1982 and was the sale owner unhil the Group’s lishng in Morch 2007

KEY SKILLS AND EXPERIENCES: Mke wos the founder of the Group ond has the
necessory skilks for formulanng the wision and commescial shategy of the Group With over
30 years i the sports retall business with Sports Direct he 1s invaluable to the Group

DAVE FORSEY
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
APPOINTED: 1934

KEY SKILLS AND EXPERIENCES: Dave has bezn with the business for over 30
years, dunng which ime he has acquired signdicant knowledge and expenence of the
sports resail husiness In conjunchon wath the Execuve Deputy Choiman, he ogrees
strateqy, appropriate objectives ond policies for each of the businesses Dave has overall
responsibility for the dorly menagement of the Group

MATT PEARSON
ACTING CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
APPOINTED: 04 June 2015

PREVIOUS ROLES: A groduate in Moths, he quolified with Tenon, now port of Bakes
Tilly, 02004 He subsequently joined Ecnst and Young, now EY, i Nottingham whese he
worked os an ouditor before joning the Group

KEY SKILLS AND EXPERIENCES: Mot jomed the Group in June 2007, shortly
atter it listed on the London Stock Exchange, and hos since worked closely with the
Executve team and the Audit Committes in hus role os Group Financial Controlles

Matt is o quolied Chortered Accountant, with substantial knowledge of afl hinoncial
aspecis of the Group

* REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

SIMON BENTLEY e = o

SENIOR INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, CHAIRMAN OF
AUDIT COMMITTEE

APPOINTED: 02 March 2007

COMMITTEES: Audit, Nomination ond Remuneration Committees

PREVIOUS ROLES: Simon qualied a5 ¢ Chartered Accountant m 1980 and 1n 1987
(oined Blocks Lewsure Group Plc where he wos Chaiman and Chaef Executive for 12 years

PRESENT ROLES: Simon chaws and 15 on the board of o range of companies ond
osgomusahons Among these, he 15 Chairman of the hair brond Umberto Giannim, 15 the
principal owner and Chairman of the leading mobile ATM operatar Cash on the Move,

15 0 Superasory Board Duector of Global Home, a designer and manufoctures of indoot
fumiture for retotlers, bosed in Vietnam, andis Charman of Yod Voshem = UK Foundation

KEY SKILLS AND EXPERIENCES: He has lengthy expenence of the sporting goods
industry, and motains the recent and relevant expenence necessary to be Chairman of
the Audit Committes

DAVE SINGLETON ¢ »

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, CHAIRMAN OF REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

APPOINTED: 27 October 2007

COMMITTEES: Audit, Nommation ond Remunetation Committees

PREVIOUS ROLES: Dave spent 25 yeors with Reebok Infermationol Limited He
stepped down i Apnl 2007 hawing ossisted with the successful ntegration of Reabok
following its acquision by adidas Group i Jonwary 2006 For eight years he wos Vice
President of Northem Europe Region & UK and then was Semor Vice President of Europe,
Muddle fost & Alnca

PRESENT ROLES: Dove 15 Charman of Bolton Lods & Gurls Club, Chasrman of Boltan
Community Lersure Trust and o Trustee ot Balton Wanderers Community Trust

KEY SKILLS AND EXPERIENCES: Dove hos an extensive semor manogement
record ond brings valucble expenence of internanonal sperts brand operanons

CLAIRE JENKINS o » «
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
APPOINTED: 25 May 2011

COMMITTEES: Audit, Nominahon and Remuneration Commuttees

PREVIOUS ROLES: Cloire’s most recent Exetutve role was as Group Duector
Corporate Affors ond @ member of the Execunve Leadership Team, responsible for the
campany’s sustanability ond communications aciviies, at Rexam ple, a leading global
beverage can maker Pror to that, she wos 0 member of the Manogement Committes of
miesnational tobacco compony Gallaher Group ple {ocquired by Jepan Tobecco i 2007)
whera she was responsible for investar relahons ond Group planning Cleare hos also
goned corpornie expenence in vanous consulting roles and ot Laing & Cruckshank, and os
o NonExecuive Director of Retro Classics Fund

PRESENT ROLES: Clare 15 Chairman of Annicus, and o NorExecutive Director of Medio
For Development

KEY SKILLS AND EXPERIENCES: Clore has excellent alround business expenence
and, in oddihon, hos parhicular corporate gaverngnce ond communscaton skills

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING

SPORTSDIRECT.com
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SPORTS DIRECT com

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors of Sports Direct Intemational ple present their Annvol Report and Accounts for the year ended 26 Apnl 2015

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Chief Executrve’s Report on pages 21 to 24 provides o detoiled review of the Group's
current actvines and potential future developmenits together wth foctors lkely to affect
future development, performance and condions There i dlso a table of the prncipal
nsks and uncertamties likely o affect the Group The financial posihon of the Group, its
cash flow, liquidity posihon and borrowing fachines are descnbed in the Finanaal Revew
on pages 25 to 27 The Comorate Responsiblity Report on pages 28 to 32 reponis on
enwronmental matters, ncluding the impact of the Group’s businesses on the emaronment,
the Group’s warkforce, and on socie! and community issues

The pancipol acteahes of the Group dunng the year remaned unchanged ond were

= retoihing of sports and leisure clothing, footwear and equipment,

» wholesole distrbution and sale of sports ond laisure clothing, footwear and equipment
undes Group-owned or ficensed bronds, and

* icensing of Group brands

Further informanen of the Group’s pincipal achvities 1s set aut i the front of this
document and in the Chuef Executive’s Report on pages 21 10 24

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR AND DIVIDENDS

Revenue for the 52 weeks ended 26 April 2015 was £2,832 ém and profit before
tax was £313 4m compored with £2,706 Om ond £23% 5m in the pnor year

The troding results for the yeor and the Group’s finoncial posinen gs o the end of the
year ore shown in the attached Fnoncial Stotements, ond discussed furthes in the Chief
£xecunve’s Report and Business Review and 1n the Financral Review on poges 21 to 24
and 75 to 27 respectively

The Board hes defermined not to recommand o dwidend this year

SHARE CAPITAL AND CONTROL
The outhensed share capital of the Company 15 £100,000,000 draded info 999,500,010
ordinary shares of 10p sach and 499,990 redesmable preference shares of 10p each

Further informahon regording the Group’s issued share capitol can be found on page 77
of the Financiof Statements

{tetads of our Share Schemes are alse set out on poge 77

There ore 640,602,369 ordinary shares of 10p n 1ssue and fully pad of which
42,137,508 are currently held in Treasury

These ore no specrfic sestchans on the transfer of shares, which are govered both by
the generol provisions of the Atdies of Association ond prevailing legslation

The Drractors ore not awnre of any agreements hetween holders of the Compony's shares
that may result In restmctians on the tronsfer of securhes or on voring nghts

The Directors were outhonsed to allot shates in the capital of the Group up to on aggregate
nomingl amount of £19,948,829 (bemg approxmately one thid of the then issued
share capital) for the perod expimng at § September 2015, the date of the 2015 Annual
Generol Meeting

In lme with guidance from the Association of Bnnsh Insurers the Company was also
granted outhorsty fo issue o further thud of the issued share copital to o nomunal amount
of £39,897,658 (bemg approxmately 35% of the 1ssued share capital) i connection
with a nghts issue

& further authonty to allot shares up o @ moximum noming! value of £2,992,324
(beng approamutely 5% of the then issued share caprtal) os of statutory preemption
nghts did not apply, wos alse approved

The authorthes expure of the dose of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company,
but o contract to allot shares under these authonhes may be made priot 1o the expiry of
the outhonty and conduded in whole or part after the Annucl General Meefing, ond of that
meeting other quthonties will be sought from shareholders

The Group wos quthonsed fo make market purchases of ardinary shores of 10p eoch
in the Company of up to 0 moximum aggregate number 59,844,486 representing
10% of the Company’s ssued ordinary share capital at the 2014 Annual Generol
Meeting The ohove authonty expires at the close of the next Annual Generol Meefing
of the Company

SHAREHOLDERS

Mo shoreholder enjoys any speciol control nights, and, except as set out below, there ore
no restnctions in the transfer of shares ot of vating nghts

Mika Ashley has entered into o Relahonshep Agreement wath the Company Under the
rerms of the Agreement Mike Ashley undertook that, for so long os he is enntled to
exerase, of fo cantrol the exeraise of, 15% or more of the nghts to vote at general
meenngs of the Company, he will,

= conduet ofl ansactions ond relahonships with any member of the Group an arm’s
length terms and on a normal commercial basis,

o gxerase his vohng nghts ot other nghts in suppart of the Company being managed in
accordance with the Listing Rules and the punaiples of good governance sef out in the
UK Corporate Goversance Code and not exercise any of bus voting of other nghts and
powers to procwre any amendment ta the Artides of Assocition of the Company,

o other thon through his interest n the Company, not hove any interest n any business
which sells sports appasel and equipment subjec! 1o cerlatn nghts, oftes notrficanon to
the Company, to acquire any such interest of less than 20% of the business cancemed,
ond certom other imited excephans, without recemng the prior approval of the Noa-
Executve Directors, ond not solicit for employment or employ any senior employes of
the Company

The Compony hos been advised thot the following parties had e significant direct or
indurect shoreholding in the shares of the Company

PERCENTAGE OF ISSUED
NUMEER OF ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL
SHARES HELD  WITH VOTING RIGHTS HELD  NATURE OF HOLDING

ke Astley O 330,000,000 55 14% Indect
?mﬂ:?sl B gagrse 5 63% Indiec
m;;f;m o 29,852,065 499 Indrec

(1) Mika sy b the shares thiowgh two compamay. acmaly MUASH B Linezed sed MASH Holings Limoed, whach bold 303 507 440 {30 71% dl
rcsund ordery shore ool of the Cormpomy) md 26,492,540 (4 43% of the esud ordmory show copael of ha {orepomy) crdmery sivwes espocialy Thest
e oo 5 of 71 Jomery 2015 bamm e kst it on which the Compory was acthud of o e m the pexecte of shos

(2) These bures ore s of 10 July 2015 beng the il ot on whach e Compary was nofibed of a change i the parcenioge of shares
(3} Thesa gures ore o of 15 July 2015 beng the kel detn on which tha Company wos notéed of u chonge n the percentage of shems



SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the mportonce of mamnmiming good relahonships with suppliers and it s Gioup
pohiey fo ogree approprute terms and condinons for its ansachons with suppliers (rongung from
stondord wntten terms fo indduolly regonoted contracts ond for payment to be mode i accordance
with these serms, prowided the supplier hos comphied with its obligatons

CONTRACTS ESSENTIAL TO THE BUSINESS
OF THE COMPANY

The Chief Executve’s Report on pages 21 fo 24 detmls iformonon obout persans with whom the
Group has contractual or other arrangements and are deemed essentiol or matenol te the busingss of
the Group

TAKEOVERS

The Directors do not believe that thera are any signrcant contracts that may change n
tha event of o successful takeover of the Company Detalls of the impact of any successful
takeoves of the Group on the Directors” bonus and share schemes re set out in the
Director’s Remunerohon Report on poges 44 fo 52

SHARE SCHEMES

Detots of the Executwe Share Schemes are set out in the Drrectors’ Remunerahon Report
on page 45 ond detes of the Shase Schemes for parhaipating employees on page 28 of
the Corporate Socia! Responsihility Report

STAFF INVOLVEMENT

The Group currently hos a ¢ 27,000 strong workforce in s stores, offices and warshouses
The contmbutons that key employees have made to the Group’s accomplishments hove
ployed o wital role, and the overwhelming dedicahon shown was the decding foctor in
encouraging the Group to propose a third Shore Scheme

The 2009 Share Scheme vested in August 2012 and 2013 The 2011 Shate Scheme 1s
due to vest later in 2015 and 1n 2017

The 2015 Share Scheme was approved by shoreholders ot o General Meeting which
took ploce on 2 July 2014, wath the EBITDA torgets for the Scheme spanning between
FYi6 ond FYI9 The Scheme differs from the previous two Shore Schemes as ehgibiiy
to parkapate in the scheme is open to both employees and Executve Diectors, as
determined by the Booid

The workforce 1s nonfied of announcements and majer changes i the business v
Compony news emails and our mtranet, as well as information being tronsmitted through
line managers framing progrommes ond iduction courses provide the workforce with
opporiunines to keep up to dote with the latest developments of the Group Our annual
conference offers them on opportunity fo mux with teoms with which they wouldn't
ordinarly mux, to lear about the Group’s aspiratians, und 1o keep up to date with the
Iotest chonges n the Group This 1s o full day event ond dlso hos a range of actvities
tolored 10 the specific ared n which eoch ndwidual works

Further information on relahonships with our people can be found in the Corporate Sociol
Responsthulity Report on pages 28 to 32

EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES

The Group’s recrwihment policy 1s to match the copabrhites and ralents of each appleant

to the oppropnate job Foctors such as gender, race, religion or belief, sexvol onentation,
oge, disability or ethnxc angin should be ignored and any decision which 1s made with
reqard 1o candidates should be irespective of these Discnmination n any form will not be
tolerated under ony crcumstances wathin the Group

Appheatrons for employment by disabled persons are gwven full and for consideranion for of
vaconcies, ond are assessed in occordance with their porticulor skifls ond obilines

The Group does oll that is prachcable to meet its responsibilines towards the roming and
employment of disabled pecple, ond 1o ensure that fipmng, career development ang
promofion opportuniiies ore ovatlable fo of

The Group muokes every effort fo provide continuily of employment where current
employees bezome disobled Attempts are mods in every cacumstance to provide
employment, whether this invelves adapting the cument |ob rote and remaining in the
same job, of moving 1o @ more appropnate b role Job retraiming ond job odaptation are
(ust wo exomples of how the Group warks in the nterests of its workforce to promate
equol opporfunhies i order thar an indwidual's employment within the Group may
continug The Group volues the knowledge ond expertise that employees have goined
throughout thest ime wath us, ond therefore does not wish 1o lose

vilued employees

With the aim of achieving our target of 25% female representanion on our Board, we: ore
actvely seeking opplications from female potentol Non-Executive Duectors

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group designs clothing ond some footwear for sole in stores and has arrengements
with supphers for the research and development of goods for the Biands dision

CHARITABLE AND POLITICAL DONATIONS

Dunng the year, the Group mode chantable cash donanons of £117,000

(2014 £147,000) in the UK Na political donahons were mode (2014 i) There hove
been a number of further donatians of sporing equipment made to worthy couses, and
these ore st oul on page 32

DIRECTORS

Detods of curent Diectors, dates of oppoiniment, then roles, responsihilities and
signficont external commitments are set out on poge 33

Athough the Compony's Articles of Assouation requure retrement by rotation of ane thied
of Directors each yee, the Group has chosen to comply with tha 2012 UK Corparate
Governance Code ond af each Annual General Meening glf of the Directars wall retirg ond
stond for reappointment

information on serce contracts and detarls of the iterests of the Directors ond theu
families n the share capital of the Company ot 24 Apnl 2015 ond ot the date of this
Report rs shown in the Directors” Remuneration Report on poges 48 and 51

Copies of the sevice contracts of Executive Directors and of the appomtment letters of
the Chairman and NorrExecutve Directars are available for mspechon af the Compeny's
registered office durng normal business hours and of the Annual General Meefing

No Dhrector has a drectorship 1 commen or other signrficant links with any other Director

{except in the case of the Executive Directars holding directorships of subsidiary companies
of the Group)

DIRECTORS’ CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

The Board has fermal praredwres to deal with Duectars” conflicts of nterest Dunng the
year the Boord reviewed and, where appropnate, approved certam situational conflicts of
interest that were reported to it by Duectors, and o register of those siuational conflits

s mantained and rewewed The Board noted oy hiansochanal conflicts of inferest
concerning Directors that arose and were decared No Director took part in the discussion
or determmaton of any matter m respect of whuch he hod disclosed a ronsochonal conflict
of inferest

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
CONTINUED

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

The Group has gronted the Directors wath Qualiying Thid-Porty Indemmity provisions
within the meaming geven fo the term by Sechons 234 and 235 of the Componies Act
2006 This is i respect of habiihes fo which they may become hiabfe in thew capaaity as
Dwector of the Compony and of any compony wattin the Group Such wdemnihies were in
force throughout the fingnanl year and will remain in foice

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2015 Annual General Meshng will be held on # September 2015 af Unit D, Brook
Park East, Shwebrook, NG20 8RY The Meefing will commence at 11am The Board
encourages shareholders to ottend ond parhapate n the mesting

GOING CONCERN

The Group’s busiess activihes, fogether with the factors likely to offect 1ts future
development, performance and position are set out in the Business Review on poges 21
lo 24

The financial posthon of the Group, its cash flows, liqudity positon and boreowing faciines
are described in the Financial Review on poges 25 to 27 In addifion, the Financil
Statements melude the Group’s abjechves, policies and processes for managing its copriol,
its fmonaial nisk monogement objectives, details of its finanacl instruments and hedging
achivities, and its exposures to credit nsk and iquidity nsk

The Group 1s profitable, Mghly cash generative and has considerable financial resources
The Group 1s eble 1o operate comfortably within ifs bonking foclines and covenonts, which
run unhl September 2018, and 1s well ploced to toke odvantage of strotegic opportunihies
os they arse

As o consequence, the Directors beheve that the Group 15 well ploced fo monage its
business nsks successfully despite the continued uncertoin economic outlook

The Group's forecasts and projechons, ioking necount of reasonable possible changes in
trading performance, show thot the Geoup should be able fo operate within the level of the
current focibty

Having thoroughly reviewed the Group's performance and hawving made suitable enquirtes,
tha Duectors are confident that the Group has adequate resources to remain in operational
gxistence for tha foreseagble futwe On thus basis, the Diectors confinue to adopt the
going concern basts for the preporation of the Annual Report and Financial Statements

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

A statement by the Auditor con be found on page 56 detailing thew reporting
responsibilites The Dectors fulfl thew responsibilines ond these are set out in the
responsibiity stotement an page 53

AUDITOR

Grant Thornton UK LLP have expressed o willingness o continue i office In accordance
with Section 489 (4) of the Companies Act 2006, resolutions to determing remunerahon
e fo be ogreed ot the Annuol Generol Meeting

By Order of the Board

Cameron Olsen
(ompany Secretary

16 luly 2015




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group 1s committed to high standards of Corporate Governance The following sechon will detail how the UK Corporate Goveronce

Code has been applied dunng the year

CHAIRMAN’S INTRODUCTION

| am pleosed to miroduce the Corporate Governance Repart, which confirms that for
the year ended 26 Apnl 2015, the Group hos comphied wath the 2012 UK Corporate
Governance Code

Dunng the yeor we have seen o change i the Boord's stucture os o result of the
reniement of Charles Mc(reavy in September 2014 Since the refrement of Charles we
have been achvely locking to recrunt o further Non-Executive Director

Dunng our continuing serch for NonExecuhve Directars, we ore ochvely encouregng
apphconons from women The Group hopes to achieve Lord Dovies” torget of o 25%
representahon of women on our Board by the end of 2015

The Group's fack of a Finance Director dunng FY15 was o mafter which wos questioned
by o number of our investors, and | have prewiously reported that we wers oware that
the position was unusual for most FTSE 100 Companies Throughout the recruiiment
process we felt that we hit o number of hurdles which hindered recruitment, including
that our Group Executives ore some of the lowest paid Board members in the FTSE
100, and that the remunerahion pockage con be concenved as unappealing However
the cutture: of the Group 1s poyment os raward and the 1eom 15 awarded lorge bonuses
for outstonding achievements Furihermore our small Executive teom work for a large
amount of ther nma from the Group Heod Office in Derbyshire However the majanty
of expenenced Execunves are concentrafed in the scuth of the country, and many find 1t
difficubt to consuder spending lorge amounts of the weak working away from home

Throughout the year we focussed on appoinhing a Finance Director, and in dommg so

we hove ted to odopt our culture and affer apphiconts financia! packages fo meet
thew expectaons in the short term However in doing this we have hod to be mindful
that there 15 faimess amongst the Board and that the culture of the Group 1s not eroded
W feel that our culture and pay siategy has been key to our success fo dote,

and changing thus for o parheular candidate could have on adverse effect on our

future progress

However, o5 hme moved on we noted that o sirong interndl condidate had assumed
many of the responsibrmes, so we have appointed Mott Pearson os Achng Chief
Finanaal Officer Matt has been wath the Group since 2007, howng inimally joined os
Group Finanial Accountant Matt has shown great loylty and prormise, and hoving
worked his woy up the ranks we feel that he will be a valued ddinon fo the Boord

Throughout the year the Boord hos actively engoged with sharehalders through vonous
meetings and lengthy written correspondence Board members have frovelled to o
number of locahons i order fo communicate with shareholdess, ond have sought
guidance from our Company Secretonal team when necessary The Group’s approach
Yo investor relohons was hindered recently following the: end of the fixed-term convvact
post of Director, Strategic Development However ot oll tmes the Group endeavours
to promote harmanious refahonships wath investors, and looking forward we aim fo
forge even stronger investar relaonships by utilising the skills ond knowledge of

Matt Pegrson

The 2014 UK Corporate Govenance Code has been discussed by the Boord, ond will
be embraced once i apples fo the Group We are aware thot two of the key aims
are fo promote accountobiity and imgiove chgnment between business deciaons ond
shareholder intesests

In an effort to look towards fully integronng the Code we hove recaived speafic
gundonce from external bodies We hove mhally focused the opphicanion of the Code
on nisks reporfing and remunerahon, and we are working on the broader apphcations

Key topics of discussion throughout the year hove ncluded recruitment, legal matters,
expansion ond corporate govemance matters Additonal defoils of the Graup's stategy
con be found on page 15

hs Chairman of the Boord 1 feel honoured 1o be surtounded by fellow members who are
so passonate obout thewr roles The Boord 1s commutted to maintaining the prnaples of
govemnance, by actively quesnoning, chollenging and endeavourmg to understond the
Executve Thrioughout the yeor one-te-one meetings have been held between Execunve
and Non-Executve Board members in order that Non-Executve Board members can gain
0 fuller understanding of what 1s roking place 1n the Group

COMPLIANCE WITH THE UK CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The overall responsibelity for the Group’s nsk manogement ond intemal controls systems
sifs with the Board This 15 on en-going process which relutes fo the identificohon,
evafughon, manogement and moratonng of significant nsks This complies wath the UK
(orporate Governance Code

The Boord 15 subject to the UK Corporate Goveinance Code, which wos issued m
September 2012 The mai pinciples of the (ode are

LEADERSHIP

EFFECTIVENESS

ACCOUNTABILITY
REMUNERATIONS

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board has reviewed the Company's comporaie governance processes and poliags, ond
hos concluded that dunng the 52 weeks ended 26 Apnl 2015 {the year) the Company
comphed vath the prowsions of the Code

THE BOARD

The Boord consists of the Non-Executive Charman, Keith Hellowell, the Executive
Deputy Charman, Mike Ashley, two other Executive Directors, and thige further
Non-Executive Directors The nomes, skills ond short biographies of each member
of the Board are set out on poge 33

The size ond composinon of the Boord 1s regularty reviewed by the Board fo ensure that
there 15 the appropnate bolonce of skills end expenence

ROLE OF THE BOARD

The role of the Booed 15 to ensure the overall long-term success of the Group This s
achieved through the rewiew, development and implementahon of the Group's strategy
The Board also mamtains responsbility for corporate rasponsibility, accountabrity and
10 ensure effectve leodership 15 delegoted to management for the day fo day runnuing
of the Group and ensures on oppropnate shrategy 15 in place for succession plonning

The Board has o programme in place fo enable it to discharge 115 responsibility of
providing effective ond entreprencuniol leadership to the Group within o framework
of prudent ond effective controls

The Board plons to meet on o formol basis six hmes dunng the year with up fo four
addinonal shotegy meehngs ot convenient imes throughout the yeor when broader
issues conceming fhe shiotequc future of the Group will be discussed The Board will
meet on other occosions os and when the business demands Dunng FY15 the Boord
met on 13 occosions
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A detoded agendo 15 estabhshed for each meeting, and eppropnate documentation 1s
peovided to Directors in advance of the meeting Regular Board mestings prowde on
ogenda that wall indlude reports from the Chief Exacute, reports on the performance
of the business and current troding, reports on meenngs with investors, reparts fram
Committees of the Boord and specific proposals where the approvol of the Bogrd

i5 sought The Board will moamifor and queshon monthly performance and review
antapated results

Presentations ore also given on business or strateguc 1ssues whese appropnate, and

the Boord wll consider ot least annually the strotegy for the Group Minutes of the
meenngs of Committees of the Boord are circuloted to ol members of the Boord, unless
a eonfct of interest anses, v enoble oll Directors to hove oversight of those matters
delegated to Committees, and copies of analysts” reports and brokers' notes are
provded to Directors

In an effort to secure the long-term future of the Group, the Boord hus created a high
parformance culture within the Group by dewising stretching Shore Schemes us well os
a share scheme for serior members of manogement Areas discussed melude investor
relahons, human resousces and health and sofety The Board also raceves updates on
areas induding nsk management and infernal control systems

It 15 the responsibility of the Directors to ensure that the occounts are prepared ond
subrmited Howing assessed the current Annual Repoart, clong with the accounts, the
Durectors confirm that, token os a whole, they ore farr, bolenced and understandable
The Drectors do confrm that these documents prowide the necessary informahon in
order for shareholders to assess the Group’s performance, business model and strategy

KEY ACTIVITIES
o Ensunng the longrterm success of the Group

Considenng the abligatans to shareholders and other stokeholders

Considenng the effect the Group's actvihes have: on the environment and community
in which 1t operafes

Mantairng o high business reputation
 Mantoinmg relanonships with suppliers, customers and the wider community

There 1 o formal schedule of motters that require Board approval they ore matters that
could have signicant strategic, financial or reputananal effects on the Group os o whole

MATTERS RESERVED FOR THE BOARD

 Sets budgets

» Monitors and rewews sirotegy and business performance

= Approves acquisthons, expansions inta other regions / counties
« Appontments and removal of Board members

* Succession plonning

o Overoll responsibility for internal control and nsk management os descubed on
pages 40 1o 41

THE CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The dmision of responsibilinies between the NorrExecutive Choiman, the Executive

Deputy Charmon ond the Chref Executive 15 1n witing ond has been agreed by the Board
However they work dosely together to ensure effecive decision-making ond the successful
delvery of the Group’s strategy

The Chairman 15 responsible for leadership of the Board, ensunng ifs effectiveness ond that
all Diractors ore able to play o full part in the actvihes of the Company He ensues thot
the Directors recewve occurate, hmely and dear information

The Chairman officiates effectve communication with shareholders and ensures that the
Board understands the views of mojor mvestars, ond 1s avardoble to prowide adwice and
support to members of the Executive teom

The Executve Deputy Charman 15 on ambassador for the Company He takes the lead
in the strategic development of the Compony, formulating the wision and sfrategy in
conjunchion wath the Chief Executve

The Company hos entered mto o Relahonship Agreement with Mike Ashley, the Executve
Deputy Charman, whose whally-owned componies, MASH Holdings Limited and MASH
Beta Limited, cumently hold epproxmately 4 43% and 50 71% respectwely of the issued
share copital of the Company (excluding freasury shares) This agreement is descnbed in
the Dwrectors’ Report an page 34

The Chief Executive 15 responsible for the ynning of the Group’s business for the delvery
of the strategy, leading the management teom and implemenhing specic decisions
made by the Board to help meet sharehalder expectations The Chief Executive reports 1o
each Boord meehng on all motenal matters offachng the Group’s performance No one
indwvidual has unfetiered power of decision

Gven the structure of the Board, the foct thot the Chawwmon ond Chief Executrve roles
are futfiled by two separate indwiduals and the ferms of the Relahonship Agreement
with Mike Ashley, the Board believes thot no indnadual or smell group of individuals con
dommate the Board's decsion making

THE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Boord conststs of three Non-Executve Directors and the Chawman The sole of the
Non-Executve Directors 15 to understond the Group in its entirety snd constructively
thollenge strateqy and management performonce, set Executive remuneration levels and
ensure an appropnate succession planrung strategy 1s i place They must also ensure they
are sahshied with the accuracy of firancial informahion and that thorough nsk management
processes ore in ploce

The Non-Executve Directors have excellant expenence from o wide range of sectors
The Non-Executrve Directors asstst the Board with 1ssues such gs gevernance, ifenal
control, remunerahion and nsk management

Simon Bentley 15 the Semor ndependent Hon-Exerutive Directer He supports the Charman
and Non-Execuive Drectors and 15 avorloble to shareholders ff they have concerns

THE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS - EXYERNAL APPOINTMENTS

Non Executrve Directors are required 1o disclase prior appointments ond other signrficant
commitments to the Baard ond are required to mform the Boord of any chonges fo or
oddionol commuments Desoils of the Non-Executrves Directors” extemnol appointments
can be found on page 33

Before accepting new appaintments Non-Executive Directors are required to obtain
approvol from the Choaman, and the Chawman requies the approval of the whole Board
1115 essential thot no appomsment couses o conflict of interest or |eopardises

the Non-Executve Directors’ commtment and fime spent with the Group n ther

existing eppomtment

THE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS — INDEPENDENCE
The Group considers the Non-Executive Directors o be independent in accordance wath the
2012 UK Corporate Governance Code

Foch year the Bourd evaluanons consider the independence of each Board member

The most recent evaluahions did not hughlight any Directars who lacked independence
Athough the Board has remained constant for some hrme, the langest-serving member
of the Boord hus been with the Boord for eight years, this being less than the rine veas
penod after which independence may become queshonable



EXECUTIVE AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS -
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

The Board hos set procedures to deal with Directors” confliets of interest tht grise

Duning the yeor the Boord reviewed and, whete appropnate, approved certan stuational
conflicts of intesest that were reported to it by Directors, end o register of those sitvahonal
conflicts 15 montained and reviewed The Board noted ony transachonal confhicts of
interest concerning Durectors that arose and were decared No Director tock part n

the discussion or determinghon of any matter in respect of whuch he hod diclosed o
trensactional conflict of inferest

EXECUTIVE AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS - RE-ELECTION
The Group comphes with the 2012 UK Corporate Governance Code and all Directors offer
themsalves for re-elechon every year

The Board has determined that off Dwectors must put themsetves forwasd for elechon

or re-elechon of the 2015 Annual General Meenng to comply wath the UK Comorate
Governance (ode Retiing Directors may seek reappomntment f willing and eligible to

do so and if so recommended by the Nommatron Commutiee Alf Directors apposned by
the Board ote appanted after considerahon of the recammendatians of the Namnahon
Committee, and those so cppownted must stand for reappaintment o the following Annual
Genetal Meehng

Details of Executiva Directors” senite contracts, and of the Charman’s and the Non-
Executie Directors’ oppointment letters, ore gvan on pages 48 to 49 Copies of service
contracts ond of oppointment letiers are avalable for mspechion of the Company’s
registered office during normal business hours and ot the Annul General Meening

EXECUTIVE AND NON-EXECUTIVE - TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

All newly oppownted Directors gre rowded with on induchan programme which is railored
o their existing skills ond expenience The Boord 1s informed of any matenal changes to
lows and regulations offecting the Group's business

All Drectors hove occess o the adwee and senvices of the Company Secrefary, and eoch
Director ond each Boord Committee moy take independent professional adwice ot the
Company’s expense, subject to prior nofficahion to the other Non-Executive Directars and
the Company Secretary Appropniate Durectors ond Officers Insuronce s mamtamed by
the Company

EXECUTIVE AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS -
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The prachices and processes of the Board are evoluoted on a yearly basts, with the most
recent eveluahon bemg led infemally Following evaluahans the feedback obtomed
considered ond the Board oct on the learmings which have come to light

Dunng 2014, the evoluations were led externally, by using on evaluator selected by
the Board, NJMD Corporate Services Limited, which 1s o speciolist consultancy led by
Hugel Dings

BOARD COMMITTEES

To ossist the Board with thew dues, there ore thiee pancpol Boord Commintees, bemg
the Audit Committes, the Rermuneranion Commuttee and the Nommahon Committes

The Commihiges are governed by terms of reference winch prowde detad of matters
delegated to sach Commrtee and the authanty they have to make decisions Ful terms
of reference ore avaloble on request ond on the Company's website

Attendance by Brectors o Boord ond Committes meetings duning the year and the total
number of meetings that they could have attended cre set out i the table below Al
{irectors aitended all meetings of the Board ond of Commuttees of the Board of which
they were members unless prevented from daing so by pnos commitments The Boad 15
sanisfied that currently no one Director exeraises & disprapornonate influence

Botrd Roard Aodit Remuserciios  Nomdsation
Migetings- Meetings Committee  Commiftes Committes
Scheduled  Usschedvled  Mestings  Mastings Metings
Keith Hellowell  5/5 /8 a0 4/4 /1
Mike Ashley  5/5 4/8 1/4
Simon Benfley  5/5 6/8 3/3 4/4 211
Dove Forsey 5/5 8/8 3/3m 4/40 2/
Dove Singleton ~ 5/5 8/8 33 4/4 /1
Clove Jenkins ~ 5/5 8/8 3/3 474 22
U5 28 173 1/4 1”7

(1) & mber of Audit Commattea Remunarction Committer end Nonunghon Comirultes meetngs were attended by Board membeis
who wera oot members of the Comamitaes. Tha Bosid mermbars concetnud ottinded these meemngs ot th mvrianon of B Commatse
members

{7) Mastnys cttended by Chorles McCrorvy up wnsl bis retwement on 10 Septembar 2014

The meetings which took ploce throughout the year were o mixture of both scheduled
meefings, for general matters, ond unscheduled meetngs, for more urgent matters

Al scheduled meehings were attended by all enstng Committee members Following
unscheduled meetings of absent members were subsequently gven the opportunity to
review the mformonion and endorse or queshon the decisions made Thes ensured thot all
members could have thetr thoughts recorded, even though they weren’t avalable dunng
the meetng itself

Immediately following two unscheduled Board meetings Simon Bentley gave opproval

viz emal Kerth Hellawell also gave telephone approval immediotely following ane
unscheduled meeting which he was unable to attend These obsences were unavoidable
due to other preplonned commitments by the Diactors Desprte the relative shont natice of
many of the unscheduled meenings, attendance leve’s by the Board has remamed high

These were o number af meenngs throughout the year which were solely for
Non-Executve Directors and the Charman Meetings olso toak place which were
attended by Non-Executive Directors without the Charman These meetings enabled the
Nor-Executrve Directors to discuss motters which they perhaps coud not discuss with the
Executive Durectors and/or the Non-Exetutve Chawman present
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 2015

Degr Shareholder,

| om pleased to present the Audit Committee Report for the 52 weeks ended 26
Aprd 2015

The Audit Commuitee has an impartant role to play in effectve reporhng to our
stokeholders and ensuning high standards of quality and effectiveness in the external oudit
process This year hos seen the niroduchon of many changes to corporafe reporing

This report provides on overview of
» What the Commuttee has done dunng the year, and what is planned for 20184,
 The effechveness of its actvines,

* How it hos ossessed the effectveness of the extemal ouditors, mduding ensurng ther
independence, ond

= The Committes’s opinon on the Annual Report when wiewed as o whole

MEMBERSHIP

The Audit Committes compnses me as Chairman, ond all of the Non Executive Diractors
Biographical detols of each member are shown in the Boaid of Directors” profiles on
page 33

MEETINGS

The Commutiee met theee fimes dunng the year ond attendance at those meehngs 15
shown on page 39 within the Corporate Govemance Report At the mvitahan of the
Committee members, the Group Charman, Chuef Executve and the Acing Chief Finanael
Officer attend Committee meenngs, os do the external and internol cuditors Aftes each
of its meatings, we met with the external auditors, in each cose without the presence of
Executive Directors or manogement In addinon | meet with the ouditors os and when 1
15 neaded

THE MAIN RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE INCLUDE:
o Assisting the Bouid wath the discharge of its responsibilines in relshon te nternal and
external audits and contrels

 Agreemyq the scope of the annual oudit and the annual oudit plan and monitoning
the same

 Rewiewing and monitonng the independence of the external auditors ond relcfonships
with them

* Agieeing ond monitoring the extent of the non-audit work thot may be undertaken
 Reviewing and agreement of the external audit fees

e Monitoring, making judgements and recommendations on the financial reparting
process and the integrity ond clonty of the Group’s Financial Statements

o Rewiewang and monitonng, throughout the year, the effectiveness of the internal control
ond nsk monagement policies and systems in ploce, including a review of the actwihes
of the infernal oudit funciion

 Momtoring the oudit of the onnual ond consofidoted accounts including a review of the
Letter of Representanon, Audit Findings report and engogement leters

 Reporting to the Boord on how it has discharged its responsibikties ond the
effectveness of the Audit Committee

WHAT HAS THE COMMITTEE DONE DURING THE YEAR?
» Monitored the effectveness of internal controls, and also considered the curment
geonomic cimate and ifs bkeby impoct on the Group

e (onsidered the reappomntment of the ouditors
e Reviewed occounting polires, presgntations and the Financral Stotements
* Reviewed its own effectveness

INTERNAL CONTROLS
As one of the fastest-growng retarlers wath ropidly expanding overseos and ntemet
operahons, we have many complex operanonal risks to manage

The qudit reviews leg by the long established Retml Suppart Unit have led the way,
through thew audits ocoss the retad operations each year, in providing comfort over the
efficency of controls aver the operational procedures ond systems which help to generate
and repon the numbers wittun the Finonoiol Stotements, ond will continue to do so

Consoious of the rate of growth, ncreasing comptexty and the ncrease in responsibilty
thot we os on Auckt Committee have in reviewang the internal controls throughout the yeor,
we appointed BDO lust yeor os mtemol audit advisers BDO have spenialists expenenced

in oudinng the strategies and plans put in place to mitigate nsks to further strengthen the
control environment

BOO have conducted o review of our key nsks, ond, in consultation wath us, have
teveloped o strategic oudit plon o prowide assuronce fo the Audit Committee regarding
the management of thase key nsks over the next three years This plan was presented to
the Audi Commuttee, and hos been approved and agreed os o detaled annual programme

The Committee hos delegated responsibility from the Boord for considering operahonal,
finanaral and compliance risks on a regulor basis Information o the Group's approach 1o
ternal control and risk management s et out in the Corporote Governance Report on
pages 37 10 43

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

On on onnual basis, the (ommuttee considers the reappontment of the cuditors and ther
remunerahon and makes recommendations fo the Board The quditors ore eppointed each
year at the Annuol Geneso! Meeting The Committee consider the level of semce provided
by the auditors ond their independence

The Committee hos recommended the regppoiniment of Geant Thornton UK LLP for FY16
The Commuttee took a number of factors into account 1n s assessment induding but net
muted 1o

* The quolity and scope of the planning of the audit in assessing nsks and how the
external ouditors planned to evalve the audit to respond fo changes in the business,

o The quality ond timeliness of reports prowided to the Commitiza ond the Board,

* The level of understanding demonstiated of the Group’s businesses and the
retodl seclor,

o The cbjectmty of the external ouditors’ wiews on the controls around the Group ond
the robustmess of challenge and findings on areas which required mancgement
{udgement, and

o A review of extemal reports published, for example by the FRC, in respect of
Grant Thornton

The Commuttea’s wew followang this assessmen? was positve n selofion 1o therr evaluohen
of the work of the external auditors and they felt that high standards had
been mamntained

After toking mfo account o of the above foctors, the Committea concluded that the
external auditors were effechve

The Commitiee believes thew mdependence, the abjectmty of the external oudit ond the
effectveness of the oudit process & sefequorded ond remains strong This 15 disployed
thraugh thew robust mternol processes, thert continuing chellenge, thew focused reporting
and then discussions with both management and the Audit Committee

To mamtain the objecwity of the audit process, the external auditors are required fo rofote
audit portmers for the Group cudit every five years and the current lead partner has been
i place for two years Under the 2012 UK Corporate Governance Code, audt services
must be put fo tender of least every ten years or else we must exploin why we have not
done so Our current auditors, nomely Grant Thomton UK LLP. hove been in place since the
lishng i February 2007



In fight of the above our current ntention 15 to put the external oudit services fo tender for
the oudit of the penad ending Apnl 2017

The Commuttee hios approved o policy on the engagement of the external quditors for non
audit work, n order to ensure that the objectnaty of the ouditors” opinion an the Group's
Financial Statements 15 not or may nof be seen to be impaued, ond has estoblished o
process to montor comphance

The external auditors may cary out certain categones of noraudit work that have either
been pre-opproved by the Commnttee or the Boord, depending on the nature and monetary
value of the senvces to be prowded The policy also protebits the auditars auditing theu
own work and making menagement decisions

The pohcy «dentfied thiee categores of porential work

AUDITOR AUTHORITY TYPE OF WORK

Wark the audstor may not prowide os
complenng the tosk could creore o
thieqt to ndependence

The work intludes tha preporation of accounting
enmes of Financial Statements, [T systems design
ond implementation, monogernent of projects and tox
planning where the outcome would hove @ matenal
impact an the Finoncil Srotements or where the
oufcame 1s dependent upon accounfing tectment

Work the guditor moy undertoke wiih
the consent of the Chairman of the

Corporate finance services, ocquisihon due diigence,
monogement consultoncy and secandment of staff ather

Audit Commutteg than for the preporghon of stcounhing entnes or Fngngiol
Stotements
Work the ouditor moy undertake There ore seraces that the ouditors may prowide os the

work xs clearly audit related and there 15 no potenal
threat 1o independence, including regulotory reparting
und agking os reporhing accountants. The Company 15
sansfied thot ats policy folls wathin the requirements of
the Auditing Prachces Boord

The Commuttee reviewed the nature and extent of non-oudt fees expended on
fransachons, pensions and tax adwisory services, fox comphance, the review of the half
yeor teport ond other ossuronce relted senvices, ond the Committee concluded that the
safequords set out abave were sufficient so as not ta comprommse auditer independence or
objectraty

REVIEWED ACCOUNTING POLICIES, PRESENTATSONS AND THE
FINARCIAL STATEMENTS

Following the rewision to the UK Corporate Govemonce Code, which apphes to finoncial
years commencing on or gfter 1 October 2014, the Boord osked the Commutiee to advise
on whether the Annuo! Report and Finanaial Statements, token as a whole, were faur,
balonced and understondable ond provided the information necessary for shoreholders to
assass the Group’s business model, strategy ond performence The Committes reviewed
the process for prepanng the Annual Report and Accounts

This process included the following key elements

e Revizw of new reguiations and reporting requrements with external adwisers to denhfy
oddianal informotion ond disclosures that may be appropnate

¢ Preparahion of ¢ detaled hmetable and ollocanon of drofhing respansibility fo relevant
internal teoms with revew by m appropnate senior manager

» Provision of an explongton of the requirements of “for, belonced and undesstondable”
o those with drofting responsibehty

* Monitaning of the integnty of the Financil Stotements and other infarmation provided
to shareholders to ensure they represented a deor ond accurate ossessment of the
Group's financial performance ond position

 Review of sguificant finonaal reporting 1ssues ond pdgements contoed in the
Financial Statements

o Raview of ol sechons of the report by relevant external adwisers

e Review by the senior manager working group responsible for the Annual Report process
* Infenm progress review of process and report content with the Audt Committee

 Review of o poper presented to the Commuttee, which set ot to review the contents of
the Annual Report ond substonhiate why it provided o for, balonced ond understandable
wiew of the year under revew

The Commuttee reviewed the Annual Report and hes confirmed it 15 fair, bolonced
ond understandable

FINANCIAL REPORTING
The Commuttee’s review of the ntenm and full yeor Financigl Statements focused on the
followang areas of signrficance

¢ Ruisk of froud in revenue recognition — The Committee have reviewed the revenue
recognion policies for ol motenal revenue streams They have also reviewed ond
considered the oudit findings and the overall controt emvironment in place surrounding
the recogninion of revenue ond 1s suhshed that revenue hos been correctly recogmised i
the Finonaiol Stetements

o Davative financial assets — The Committee has reviewed the valuahion of contracts
for difference ossets as at 24 Apnl 2015, the accounting tregtment of fon value
moverents on these controcts and the related disclosures induded wn the finoncial
Statements The Committee have concluded that the voluohons have been reasonably
reflected n dervative financiol assets, thot appropriate eshmates have been opplied
and that these have thersfore been conrectly treated ond adequately disclesed in the
Financiel Stotements

* {anying value of inventary - the Committee hos reviewed management’s paper seting
out the basis on which the mventory prowisian 15 caleulnted and 1s satisfied wath the
reasonableness and consistency of model applied ond that stack 1s held at the lower of
cost and net realisable value

= Intongibles imparrment ossessment  the Committes considered the key judgements
ncluding the discount rate, long term growth rate, and the projected future cash flows
of eoch cash-generating urut to which goodwal 15 allocated, based upon finonual
plans approved by the Board The Committee 15 sansfied with the methodology and
assumptions used, and the conclusian thet the Group’s intongible assets are not
impawed

The Audit Commitiee 15 sahshied with the level of ngor applied by the extemol ouditors in
oddsessing these oreas os part of the oudit procedures

REVIEW OF OWN EFFECTIVENESS
After undertking o review of s own performence the Camemuttes conduded that it hod
been effective In discharging the obligations entrusted ta it by the Bogrd

Simon Bentley
Chairman of the Audi Commttee and Semor independent Non-Executve Director

16 July 2015
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Biographicol detols of each member are shown m the Board of Directors” profiles on
page 33

The Remuneration Committes consists solely of Non-Executve Diectors who ore
considered independent The purposs of the Committes 1s to assist the Board to ensure
that Executive and Non-Executive Directors recerve appropnote levels of pay and benefits
A key pnanty Is fo enswre that remuneraton pohicy 15 ahigned with sirategy to ochieve

the long-terrn success of the Group The Committee ensures thot 1t complies with the
requrements of regulatory and governonce bodies inchuding the UK Corporate Gaverronce
{ode whist meeting stakeholder, shareholder and staff expectanons

THE RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE INCLUDE:
» Determining the Company’s policy on Executive remuneraiion, inchuding the design
of bonus schemes ond forgets and payments mode thersunder
e Defermining the levels of remuneranon for the Chawman and each of the
Executve Directors
* Monttoring the remunerotion of seior management ond making recommendations n
respech thereaf
« Agreeg oy compensanon for loss of office of any Executive Director

The Remunerahion Committee meets at least three imes o year and met on four occasions
duning FY15

A report on the remunaration of Directors appears on poges 44 to 52

WHAT HAS THE COMMITTEE DONE DURING THE YEAR?

o Worked on the Shore Scheme, including onnouncements and ossessing the ikelihood
of acieving targets etc

= Reviewed and approved the Directors’ Remunerahan Repert contoined on pages
4410 527

Full details of Directors” remunesahon ton be found in the Remunerchon Report on
page 50

Dave Singleton
Chouman of the Remunerahon Committee

16 July 2015

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

In my role o5 Chairman of the Nominahon {ommitiee, 1 ensure that the Board remamns
competent, balonced and effective These goals are achieved in a number of woys,
meluding monitonng the succession of the Boord, rewewang ds performance and
ientifying ond nomnating suitable canchdates to fill Board vacancies

Biogrophical detads of each member are shown in the Board of Directors” profiles
on poge 33

During o review of the skills, expenence ond dversity of the Commuttes, 1t was
recommended that Clane Jenkins should jom, an appontment which she has
duly occepted

The aim of the Committee 15 to ensure thot the Board remains balanced, knowledgeable
and diverse n order that 4t 15 able o fully meet the needs of the Group Going forward
we om 1o confinue to manage the fronsihon of the Board, 1 parhcular the addinen of
new Non-Executive Directors, through meetings with candidates (both af interviews ond
at netwarking events}, consulng with other Committee members reqarding ther wews
on the sutabiity of condidates, ond discussing the key requirements of the Group with
Board members

The Nomanation Commitiee will meet ot least once o year and will olso meet when
appropniate The Committee met formally on swo occostons dunag FY15 However the
Nominahon Committee met informally on @ number of further occasions dunng the year
order 1o discuss the appentment of o replocement Finance Director ond o Non-Executive
Director(s) All of the Nomunanon Committee members ore NorExecutive Directors and
considered to be independent

THE RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE INCLUDE:

o Reviewing the leadership needs of the Group, looking ot both Executives and
Non-Executives

e Reviewing the composinon, stiucture ond size of the Boord, ond moking
recommendations 10 the Board of adjustments thot are deemed necessary

« Grving considerahon fa successton planming for Birectors, taking mio account the

thallenges and opportunines facmng the Group ond the skills end experhse therefore

needed on the Board

Ensunng that Duectors ore aware of what 1s expected of them

Formally documenting the oppontment of Directors

|dentifying potenal candidates for senior posts, and making recommendatians to the

Board as and when nacessary

The Board has established o Nomingtion Committee to ensure o formal, ngorous and
fronsparent proceduee for the appointment of new Directors to the Board

The Norminahon Commitice also determines succession plans for the Charmon and the
(hief Executve who ore nof present af meetings when the matter 1s discussed Succession
plans ore reviewed by the Nomington Committee at least once o year

Dove Forsey, the Chief Exacutve, will usually attend meetings of the Nomination
Commuttee, unless the Nomination Committee 15 dealing with matters relating fo hum or
with the oppointment of his successor

WHAT HAS THE COMMITTEE DONE DURING THE YEAR?

= fssisted with the seorch for o Finnce Director and recommended the appoimtment
of Matt Pearson

= Fachtated the seorch for a Non Exacutive Director and reviewed the steps token
towards mokng on appomtment Condidates met with members of the Committee n
oider that the Commuttee were oble o form a condusion regading recommendanons

» Reviewed the top management stiucture in ploce Mode recommendations os to
changes which may be required in order to strengthen the posion of the Group
in future

» Recommended and appointed anather Non-Executive Direcior fo the Committee

 Met with corporate governance bodies ond reviewad the feedback gven

The Board bekeves thot the Boord and its Commuttees os currently constituted are
working well

Dr Keith Hellowell GPM
(harman of the Nominahion Committee and Chawmen of the Boord

16 luly 2015



UK BRIBERY ACT

The Group has an opproved policy m place which was created fallowing the itroduction
of the UK Brbery Act As o result of the Act, afl policies and procedures have been
reviewed fo ensure that they comply wath the Act and measures are i ploce to pravent
staff beig offered and / or accepting bnbes

BUSINESS MODEL

Our busmess model, which sets out the basis on which the {ompony generates or
preserves value over the longer term, and the strategy for debvenng the objectives of the
Company, can be found af pages 14 ond 15

WHISTLE-BLOWING

There 15 a formgl whistle-blowing policy in place for staff who wish 1o raise issues or
concerns refoting o the Group’s octvinies on o confidential bosis

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recogmse the importance of commurecating with shareholders This 1s done
through the Annuol Report ond general meetings, and announcements All Duectors are
avorlable o, ond folllowing the Annual General Meeting when shareholders hove the
opportunaty to osk queshons

The Chawman and the Chief Executve regulory meet wath the Compony’s mshitutoncl
shareholders to discuss the Group’s stategy and financral performonce wathin the
constraunts of information already ovorlable to the public All orher boord members are
also ovarlobla to meet with shareholders, os and when required

The Company’s corporate website 15 on important too} of commumication, which should

be used as the fust port of call for shareholders The site holds oll Landon Stock Exchange
announcements, together with downloodoble nvestor presentanons, share pce choris and
brand information

Dunng the year members of the Board and senior management have met wath
shoreholders in order o discuss their quenes The meetings hove been considered on
oppartunity not only 10 recognise the matters which ore of impartance fo sharshalders,
but olso for sharehelders to recognise how the Group aperates The shareholder meetngs
thot have taken place dunng the year nclude face to face meetings, ndwiduol and group
conference calls, letters ond emalls

REMUNERATION

The Remunerahon Committee 15 responsible for determirung ond reviewing remunerahon
palicy end setfing remuneraton levels See Remunerohon Report on pages 44 to 52

SHARE DEALING CODE
The Group has edopted the Model {ode os published in the UK Lsting Rules

All those deemed to have ‘insider informahion’ must seek consent prior o any dealing
whatsoever in the Group’s shares

The Executve Diectars must obtan pror consent from the Chorman or the Semior
independent Non-Executve Director The Chaimon requires consent Fram the: Chief
Executrve or the Senior Independent NonExecutive Directer, and eny other employees
with ‘ins:der information” must gain the pror consent of the Chief Executive or Compony
Seqetary before dealng i the Group’s shores

Details concerning the shoze capital stucture of the Compony con be found in the
Dirgctor’s Report on pages 34 to 36

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The key features of the Group’s system of mtemal control and nsk manogement systems
n refoha to the finonciol reporting process and the preparahon of the Group accounts are
sef out below or crosseferred fo other parts of the Annual Report where relevont

The Boaid of Buectors has overoll responsibdity for determining the noture and exient

of the significont nsks 11 15 willing o take n achiewing 1ts strategic objectives and for
mantaining sound sk manogement and mtemal control systems, and for reviewng they
effectivenass The nsk manogement process and systems of mternal control are designed
to manage rether than ebimingte the nsk of fotlure to achieve the Company's objectves

1t should be recogmised that such systems can only prowide reasanable but not absolute
gssurance egainst matesial misstatement o loss

ASSESSMENT OF BUSINESS RISK

A system to identfy, assess, and evaluate business nisk 1s embedded wathin the
monogement processes throughout the Group Strategic nsks are regulary reviewed by
the Boord and ts Committees Risks rekating to the key achvines within the subsidiary
operohng uniis are ossessed confinuously

Further detalls of the nsks and uncentouhes relating to the Group's business, and how the
Group seeks to mimgote these, con be found on pages 17 to 20

By Order of the Board

Cameron Olsen
Company Secretary

16 July 2015
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Dear Shareholder,

On behalf of the Board, | am again pleased to present our report on the remuneration
strateqy and policy of the Company ot the end of yet onother vary successful year We firmly
believe that this comtinued success i strongly connected with the introduction of our Share
Schemes in 2009 and 2011, and now our 2015 Shore Scheme The schemes are designed
1o encowrage, recogase and reward outstanding performance and to dive shareholder value

The remuneranion poficy of the Compony 15 ahgned to its commeraol strategy for long-term,
consistent and profitoble growth The remunerahion package for Semor Executves is highly
weighted fowards performance-refoted remuneranon, paid mostly in sheres, and ifs design
is consistent with the reward phvloscphy for the wider workforce This strotegy 15 reflective
of an extremely strong Executve and employee performance culture and o rewuid ethos of
“One Team”

The Company phiosophy 15 that Execuhve remuneration should be simple, fronsparent ond
drectly support the delivery of tha business shategy and shareholder retums The Executive
Directors’ basic solones hove been delberotety set ot o level well below the lowes quarhle
of o busmess of the size and complexity of the Group indeed Dave Forsey’s solary hos
remained the some since 2002 ond again will not mncraase t FY 14 Also, the Senior
Executves currently enjoy no addinonal benefits from the Company

The Executive Directors do not recerve on onnual bonus Rather, to dive sustaned long-tem
business perfermance, msteod of granfing smaller awards on on annual basis, larger upfront
owords ere gronted which only vest f signdicont and consistent growth is delivered year

on year Annual performance targets which must be hit ensure o focus is maintained on

a consistent and longterm profitable growth strotegy The extended hime hanzon for the
veshng of awards for the 2011 Executive Share Schema 15 s years (n 2017) and far the
full vesting of the 2015 Share Scheme 1t 15 olso six years (n 2021)

Clear, published and stretching annuol performance targets must be fully sohshed before
any of the share owards vest Aligned to the Company’s high performance culfure, the Share
Schemes are designed on the bosis thot awards should vest in full for achiewng shetching
targets {1 e with on all or nothing’ vesting schedule) rather than prowidiag for o lower level
of vesting for meening o threshold torget nsing to full vesting for achieving the shetch targets
(1e o scoled vesnng schedule) Because the Executive Directors’ remunetafion opportunity
15 hughly weighted towards perfosmance-eluted remunerotion which wil not vest if stretching
performance turgets aigned with the bustness strategy are not met, they share nsk with

the shareholders The size of these performonce-onty awards should be considered in this
confext

The Remunerotion Commuttes frnly believes that ths simple ond very tansparent share
incentiva fromework 15 toially oligned with both the Company strategy for growth and its
performance cufture We also believe that this strategy has diectly dnven the histonc ot
performance of steich torgets onginally se? by the Cammittes by further algrung Executive
ond employee remuneranon potential to mereased and ongotng shorsholder value This
ingresed share volue mcentive has also led 0 o furiher Tifng of the performonce bar” for
futuse owards

There 1s no doubt thot the inception of the current remunerahion strategy m 2009 has clearly
led to strong shareholder volue increases during o difficult ecanomic penod, and «t hos
provided o skrong platform for the on-going and long-term success of the Compony

Duning FY14 the Remuneration Committes re-assessed the shareholding gudelnes for
Executve Dueciors ond determined thot the Executive Directors must new hold o minmum
of 50,000 shores whele they remain employed by the Company Dave Forsey’s shareholding
on 24 Aprl 2015 meant that he sahshed the guidehne As an acting Board membes, Mat!
Pearson 15 not curvently required to sansfy the shareholding quideline i his appomtment
becomes permanent, Matt Pearson would be expected to acquire the minmum number of
sharas aver o reasonable fime penod determined by the Commites

On 2 July 2014, we wera pleased to onnounce thot the resoluon te opprove tha 2015
Shue Scheme was passed, with o maenty of shorehalders ehgible to vate on the resolution
vonng in fovour (the Execuve Directors elected not to vote) and it was then induded m
our Remunerahion Policy which wos opproved by shaseholders ot the Company’s AGM in
September 2014

Under the 2015 Shore Scheme afl employees (including Executive Directors) who are
determined by the Board as ehgible who meet the qualifying condihons and performance
ctenc os determuned ond ogreed by the Remuneronion Commuttee and the Board will be
ahle to portiapate The terms of the 2015 Share Scheme prowde for the grant of nikcost
ophons over up o 25m ordinory shares in the Company (amounting to approximately

4 2% of the ssued shore copifal of the Company) Semor Executive grants ere lmited fo
g meximum of one mulhon shares each The vesting of any ophians would be: condinonal
upon fhe achievement by the Compony of four Adjusted Underying EBITDA targets (before
scheme costs) set by the Committee IF these performance targes ore ol met, 25% of
any oword would vest followng the onnouncement of the Compony’s oudited resulis for
FY19 1n July 2019 and 75% of the award would vest following the announcement of the
Company's udited resufts for FY21 i July 2021 When the Scheme was approved the
Adyusted Undertaing EBITDA torgets (hefore scheme costs} were () FY16 £480m, (i)
FY17 £570m, () FY18 £650m, and (v} FY19 £750m

Speciheally todored to Company culture and our growth shategy we confinue fo review

the robustness of the Stheme The Remuneration Commuttee considesed these fargets

to be extremely straching, dependant on strong organic growth ond fo o degree on an
nggressive 0cquisitions stiategy However, os we enter FY16 it is lear, ond also undesstood
by the market, thot plonned acquisihons in FY15 did not fully matenalise As such, the
Commuttes believes the FY16 Adyusted Underying EBITDA target of $480m to now be an
unrensonably chellenging one Following rfs recent review the Committee now recommends
to shareholders o revised FY 16 Adjusted Underlying EBITDA torget of €420m This compares
to the £383m EBITDA achieved m FY15 (e the delivery of ¢ 10% growth i one vear) Al
other targets for the further tree years of the Scheme currently remain the same As noted
in the FY15 prebmunory results announcement, the Remunerahon Committee wall continue to
review the robustnass of the Scheme on an annual bosis Whikt the Committee considered
there to be some leaway for making such an adjustment within the Scheme rules without
shoreholder approval it decided that this change should be put to shareholders os on ordinary
resolunion of the Company's AGM in September 2015 Furthermore we have also added o
provsion for dawback to the scheme (in addmon to the existing malus provsion) o enable
the Company to recover bonusas paid pursugnt o the Scheme for 12 months post vesing in
the event of senous finonaol miscenduct by any Executive Diector

n our Remuneration Policy we also indicated that Mike Ashley, despite being eligible to
porhcipate 1n the 2015 Share Scheme, following discussions with the Committee mformed
the Company that he did not wish ta partiapate in the 2015 Shore Scheme and os such
the Committes decided to make no award 1o Auke Ashley under the 2015 Share Scheme
Subsequently the Commitiee hos now formally removed the ability of Mike Ashley to
porkaipate in the Scheme

In addition Mike Ashley seformed the Company ond the Committes that he did not expect
any shore based mcentive scheme to be proposed to shareholders in relahion to bus role os an
Executive Dwector while the 2015 Share Scheme is in ploce He remains fully commtted fo
achieving the siretchung targets of the Scheme It should be noted that Mike Ashley has not
received any remunerotion from the Company since befare the public offenng in February
2007, nor has he porkapated in either of the Executive Share Schemes

it remains our infention fo contue with the exishng transpavent, tughly performance-geared
remunesanon policy for our Executives, 1 ¢ low solary, no annual bonus or addinonal
benefits, and the 2015 Share Scheme allows us ta continue on this path

Dave Singleton
{hawrnan of the Remuneration Commttes

16 July 2015



DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY
This part of the repor sets out the Company’s Durectors’ Remuneranon Pahcy, which, subject to shareholder approval, shall toke binding effect fiom the date of the 2015 AGM
The Policy 15 determined by the Commiitee For ease of reference, this part of the report hughlights where the policy differs from the policy approved by shareholders of the 2014 AGM

FUTURE POLICY TABLE
The toble below describes each of the efements of the remunerahion packoge for the Executive Birectors

ELEMENT OF PURPOSE / LINK TO OPERATION MAXIMUM PERFORMANCE MEASURES CHANGES
REMUNERATION | STRATEGY T0 POLCY
APPROVED AT
THE 2014 AGM
BASE SALARY Fixed elament of tha remunwaton | Base sclanes ore nematly rewswsd onnually ond have not been nareased | Athough salanes for Executve Drectars {othas thon Mike Not epglitotie No dhanges
packags where the belmer of sncs 2007 Ashley who does rot cumently sacerve o salory mnd Mot
fxed and vanable remunerction s Pearson wha hes bean mponted o5 an octing Board member)
cligned 10 he commeroc) stralegy koAl does o ey ocrs  soiry fos s oo have baen sat ot €150 000 snce 2002 the Company retans
of longtem profitable growth and distration t sa1 sohores of @ bevel commensurare with athe
reflects tha Company remunerchon <omparces ¢f o smilor sze ond complexty os the {ompany
philasopby of gearng reword o Man Pearson s salary will ba renewed dwnog FY16 1 toke
performance with o shanng of rsk occount of hus role 5 on oemng Board membar o if his
betwesn Exacutive Dasciors ppourman becomes prrmanent
ond shareholders Satanes for new Exscutve Drectors wil b sat i eceovdonce
with the Committea s gpprooch to requtment emunsration
5 desaibed on poges 47 1o 48
BENERTS Hot pplcoble for curment Exenitve | The coment Exscutve Dinctons 22 not recews ony cddibonal benefils ‘Whist the Remunerchon Commttes has not sef on obsolute | Not appliczble Ho chonges
Dwectors Thers s cutrently no mtennon tc change this whilst the Exacutve Shore | meximuen level of banefits Exacutrve Deactors may raceve
Scheme ond 2015 Share Schem reman in place the Campany 1atatns disratan 1o set banafits ot o lavel which
tha Remenarndon Commitias coraders appeopnata ogans) the
Banefits may be rowded i ne with markat prachce 1 regut o new
Executive Dractor toking mito occount mdhadual araumstoncas: Such kst and 1o uppert he ongomy shategy of e Compeny
benefis moy ndude relocshon vapenses
RETIREMENT Froa poctamploymerit bemafits to | The Exeartive Diractivs are entided 1 peropte wh o stok éholdes penson | The cament maxsmum smployer coniribwiion o the siakaholder | Mot opplicobls No changes
SENEFITS oot ond infosn sndivduals of e} schema e the same bases as othar amployses pension schame 15 1%.
cabixa equed for the busness The Company retams the dscreton fo set renremant benefis
(inchading pansaon ronmibuboers ond /e o salory supplament
n ey of o pension convibuton) for oy Exectve Dractors
in accordanca wieh tha Commirtea 5 sppeaach 1o raquitment
Temungrghon s descnbad on poge 47
ANNUAL BONUS | Net applicabls es Exacuties Dianctors | Th Commutran hos detarmaned thas no eneal bonus scheme will be Na arnvol bonus opperturuy For en Exscutive Drectos who | Mot cppiienbia Fon 5o long o Execuires No changes
do not parhapata in an vl opetnted for Execytve Dractors whis the 2015 Share Scherme 15 m place | parmopates in the 2015 Shera Schema for so long s that | Drectors do not porhapete i on annuel
boaus scheme Schame & i ploce 1f that Scheme is not m place (for exampla | borws scheme
if one cf the Adwsted Undartyang EBIEDA tmgets s nof met 3o
thc et o it S s te Comr ey L‘nmmmm?mmmm'j’,
wward o anual borus opporiuny ofup to 200% of base | stesea ngeins ohe b ferd oo
saflery The Commetrew will not oward such  bonus opporfumty durwimuned by the Comattes end knked 1
m’d F:“ o gwtnd under P Exacutres Share Schea o tha Company's srtagy with the weghing
tetaned 1o blow barvenen the matcs datermuned by the
The annual boras opportunty for amy newdy racruttad Comrettes Bonwses will ba datatmined
Exanmve Dipecror will ba sa1 m occordnce with the betwesn 0% and 100% of the momum
Commstten 5 cpproach 1o .3 Lsed on the £ E
desmbed on poges 47 10 4B of e gpplicable metnes
LONG-TERM To recognes ond rawezd utstonding | 2015 Shore Scheme 2015 Shere Scheme Svatdung periomance foipets e sat The Adjusted
INCENTIVE PAY | pecformence of the Exacvives ond | Tha 2015 Shore Sthemy was opgroved by shreholders ¢f o Ganerdl Jwids over rio mare than 25 millon shares may ba groated | relleckng the busmess pranhes thot Undechong EBTDA
(2015 SHARE to drva undarlying Gioup EBTDA W | Mauting of tha (ompany m iy 2014 Awmds may be gronted undes endes the 2015 Shors Scheme uncterpen Geoup strategy torgat for 2014 has
SCHEME AND bina wath Group strategy and elige the Schema b Expautve Disttors on on gnouel (or more Faquent) boss | tan 1m sh o such pdhusiment o8 1015 Share Schome. basn amended kem
EXECUTIVE | s Do st w2 80 | Howes, o ot o Componys ok oL g B | e Cre ey o e oy mromen by | ooy b B s S| 10001384208
SHARE SCHEME} | mieasts of shorsholders o bangeng | updront ewrds whach ondy vist if mgrificont end consstant growth s
Company’s shara copxtal) may be owarded to oy Exectn | subyedt to sasfactory personal performance | Awards ore now
ronsistent bong-taeen peofitable powth | dafwared yaoi on yeor ona ewrd may be granted under tha Schama Daector Lathat than Miks Ashley who - e §
; Dractr dama P pericd for whach e {a y wha hes baen formelly cngwill onk vest f the folowng Adusted | subect o
o e Ctvpry 1o e s Dcur G e potod ot i 5 poposed temovs o parapason e 2015 Shve Seme) | Undolyg ERTOA gesCeforescheme | cowbock peonsons

Droctors Reunesution. Policy shall apgly with vestng subredt fo e
sahsfockon of e EBITDA torgets set oot m the 2015 Shora Schama
measwed over a penod of four finanoo! yaors 75% of n owerd s subgact
to o fusther deferral penod such that if wil vest i 2021 (wath 25%
vesing i 2019)

Aftar Mike Ashlry wformed the Commuttes that he wishd 1o withdraw
from the schems, the Lomattes fomally removed bm

Unsested kwurds an subyact i melis provssons, soch thet e Comonstes
has the discation te reducs concel of wnpase further condinans on the
ueards i the avent of o moteno! mossatemani of $e Company's resulis
matncl ooty of sk monogement o senous repuiabondl domage
Clowbock provsons grve the Comumattan disrahon fo recovsr amounts pedd
to Exscutive Divectars for up 12 12 months post virshag i the event of
senovs fnonodl muscanduct

Exscative Shore Scheme

Tha Exeatres Shere Scheme was approved by shareholders of the Annoal
Guneral Meatny w Segtember 2010 The Commattes may gront further
owards undes s Scheme of the 2015 Shae Scherna & not i place (for
xzrple € one of the Aduested Undarhng EBTTOA tergass  not met so

shat cwords undes the 2015 Share Schemn Jopse)  Mke Ashley 1 not

eighle 1o by pronted owards urder the Exscutve Shore Schame

Any awrd ronted under the Executes Shore Schema woukd ba subeect
%o makes ond cowhack provisions on o tomparabls bass to thosa that wall
Grply 10 cwmnds gronted undar the 2013 Share Schems

Executive Share Schetw

Aoy oward gronted to on Fxvartve Duscior under the
Exectve Shora Scheme dunng the pened for which i s
popased thes Directors’ Rernunerytion Policy shal epply world
be tvee 0 mpomom of Im shoves (subyect to such edusiment
s the {omeruttes datermanes ta reflac) ony dhange m the
Compary 5 shors cogxtal)

osts) are met

P18 £420m
17 £570m
18 £450m
FY19 §750m

For thesa prposes “Adsied Undedying
EBITDA maams Undedyng EBITDA o
teported m e Compony's published
accounts for the relavont year afte such
sustmants as the Committss

tersders xopropata fhess parformance
tendtions may be cmended m sczordance
with the e of the 2015 Shore Scheme as
epproved by sharshalders n iy 2014, o
hurthes refered 22 on pege 46

Executive Share Scheme

Ay eward groniad unde e Executon
Shar Schema would be subyedt to stretchmg
parkemence tge’s Setemunad by tha
Commyttes basad on Adusted Undalng
FBITOA, which woutd be disdercad 1 e
Birectors Resmemarction Repert followng e
yront of any such oward
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT
CONTINUED

The table below sefs out on overview of the approach to remunetghion for the Chawman and Non-Execuive Directors
PURPOSE / LINK TO STRATEGY APPROACH OF THE COMPANY

Chowrman ond Nom-Executive Direcror fees The Committes’s Remuneration Policy i respect of the Non-Executive Dhrectors 15 to pay annual fees
which reflect the responsibilines and duries placed upon them, while also having regard to market
Pravide an approprnte cewnrd to atiact and retain Directors of the calibre requed for the business | procnce

Non-Exetutve Diactors recenve o fixed annuol fee
Nan-Execufive Directors do not parhapate in ony banus or shore schemes

NorExecunve Directors moy be ehgeble for benefits such os the use of secretunal support, trovel costs
or other benefifs thot may be oppropriate

INFORMATION SUPPORTING THE POLICY TABLE

Prior fo the mtroduchion af the 2015 Share Scheme, awards were granted to Executive Diectors under the Executive Shore Stheme One award held by an Executive Director remmins
outstanding under the Executive Share Scheme as referred to on page 51

Other than where the 2015 Share Scheme s not m place (for example, f ane of the Adpsted Underlying EBITDA rargers is not met so that owards under the 2015 Shere Scheme lapse) or
where an oward 1s to he geanted in connection wirh the recutment of an Executive Dnector as referred fo on page 47, no further awards will be groated to Execufive Duectors of the Company
under the Executive Share Scheme dunng the penod for which this pohey apphes

The Committee may amend the terms of the Execufive Share Scheme, the 2015 Shere Scheme or any awards granted under them within the scope defined in the rules of those schemes
{induding i the event of o vanahon of the Company's share copifal or o demerger or speciaf dwadend which may, in the Committee’s opinion, offect the cument o future value of shares) and
may elect fo setle owards under those schemes in cash

EXPLANATION OF PERFORMANCE MEASURES CHOSEN

For the 2015 Share Schame, undertying Group EBITDA 15 chosen becouse it 15 o mensure that prowdss o simple and transparent basis on which to measure the Compony's performance
over the longes term and to provide: alignment with the Company’s business strategy In oddihon, the Committes considers it 1o be o robust mensurement of sustained earmings growsh for
shareholders This meosuiement hos been cansistently and publicky used by the Company os a performance measure since the fleatohon n 2007

In tespect of each relevont yer, the Commttee will adjust reported underying Group EBFTDA os 1t considers appropniote Undedying Group EBITDA s caleulated pnor to any charges relahng to
any share scheme(s) outstonding of the relevant hme

In accordance with the wles of the 2015 Share Scheme, performence conditians may be omended or substituted ff events occur (such us o change of strategy, ¢ matenal acquisihon or
divestment of a Group business or a chonge m prevesing market candiiions sncluding the non-mateniahsanon of planned ocquisihions) which cause the Committee to consider that a subshiuted
or amended performence condinon would be more appropnate and would not be matenally more or less difficult to satsty thon the onginal performonce condition but for the event in
queshon As nofed in the FY15 preimnary results announcement, the Committee wil continue to rewew the robustness of the Scheme on on annual bass, and fhe targets may be ndjusted,
n accordonce with the Scheme rules ond this Palicy, f events ocour, as referred fo sbove

EXPLANATION OF DIFFERENCES IN REMUNERATION POLICY FOR OTHER EMPLOYEES

The Company hos a large aumber of employees with different responsibilihes and diffenng levels of senionty Reward policies for employees other than Executive Directors are determined
by reference to grode, rale, performance and other relevant factors The Commuttee does not consult with the wider workforce about the remuneranon policy for Directors However, the
Committee has reviewed the solanes, oiher remunaration and other employment condihans of semor and middle managess throughout the Group, and has taken them into account
considenng Drectors” solones and the creanion of new imcentve schemes m order to create o sanse of common purpose and shanng of suctess Indeed, i order fo reflect the Company's
“0ne Teom" ethos, the 2015 Share Scheme opplies to both Executves ond employees determuned by the Bowid os eligible who meet the quaifying conditions as determined and ogreed
by the Committee and the Board on the same hasis (including the performance condians)

ILLUSTRATIONS OF APPLICATION OF REMUNERATION POLICY

The charts below ser out an illustiahon of the policy for 201516 m line with the future poliey toble above The chorts provide an illusiranon of the tofal remuneranon opportumity thet
could anse under three different levels of performonce No chart 15 included for Mike Ashley, who does not receve any remunesaion from the Company ond does not parhaipate in any
shore scheme

For the purposes of the adjacent chart, the following assumptons have been mode

2500 DAVE FORSEY

’ FIXED PAY 2015 SHARE SCHEME
§ 2000 Minimum remeneshon Bose slory of £150,000 No vesting
g 1500 Pedformance in ling with expectahons  No emplayer pension contnbution No vesting, because rewords under the
% 1000 {os Dove Forsey hos opted out of Executive Share Schema vest on an
= the Company's stokehalder “all or nothing” basis for ackieving the
E 50 75 pension scheme) upper end of sirerch forgats

o Moximum remunerghon No benefits (as no benefits were See nofe below*
Merimum Performance in ling Moximum prowded fo the current Executive
Perfomance with expectations Performance Durectors i FY15)

w8 Bexa saory, benefits & pencion w8 2015 Shate Scheme

*For the purpases of thes chart 1t has been ossumed that Dave Fersey ts gronted an ward aver | mulkon shores, o rafwed 1o i he policy tcble on page 45 Tha vohve of the owasd & then coladoted bisad on a share pnct of §7 37 (bemg the prce o the dose of businest 48
14 huly 2015 when thes report wes cppeoved by dha Coaamuttee) ond ona quarter of s value 1 then shown represenimg the intenion ko grent one cward undes the 2015 Shars Schame, the vesimg of which will be subyect to EENTDA paformance torgets measured over o pencd
of foue fvonodl years (Y15 FY37 Y18 and FY19) Tha westng of en eword i conditonal upon the odvavement by the Compony of oflfow EBITOA targats under the 2015 Share Schame



MATT PEARSON

For the purposes of the adjacent chan, the following essumphions have been mode

FIXED PAY 2015 SHARE SCHEME
% Memimom remuneration Base solary of £60,000 No vestng
g Performonce 1n e with expectuhons  An employer persion contnbuhon of — No vesting, becouse rewards under the
g 1% of salory Exequtve Shase Scheme vest on an
5 “oll or ngthing™ boss for achigving the
E upper end of shetch torgets
Maxmum remunerahon Ko benefits (os no benetits were See note below™
Manenum Performance n Ene Mo provided 1o the current Executive
Peformance with expertahons Performanca Drectors m 2014/2015)

@ Bose salory, benefirs & pension 8 2013 Shara Schema

*As on octey Boord membed e chaut reflects Mot Pearson s tems oad condinons +xmtig of the kme of ks neam cppontment The chart therelars csaumes he s gronted on award aven 30 D00 shares consrstent wath bes oment pockege The volue of the award s then
taicwiated bexad on o shate e of £7 37 (bemg the price f the clase of business on 14 July 2015 whan this repact was approvad by the Commintes) and ona quarty of thes vatus & then shown represnting the nention fo gront one cward under e 2015 Shers Schame tha
vasting of which will be subyact to EBITDA perfarmonts rrgets mecsured oved o penied of fow finanodl yeors {116 FY17 FY18 ond FY19) The vesting of on award s cndinonal upan the achaavement by the Compony of oY fow EBITDA rargets under the 2015 Shars Schema
s rted an poge 50 Matt Pearson s selory ond the bevel of ewoed under the 2015 Share Scheme will be reviewsd by tha Commuttes donng FY16

APPROACH TO RECRUITMENT REMUNERATION

When ogreemng a remuneration packnge for the appaintment of a new Executive Diector, the Commuttee will apply the following principles

+ given that the hugh geanng of reward for performance over g long penod and o low basic salary moy result m o “cosh flow” rssue for ony new Executve Director, the mtention s fo
move the Director oppropnately and in o hmely manner anto an equal footing with other Executive Dicectors,

* the package will be sufficient to attract the calibre of Duector required to deliver the Company's strotegy,

¢ the Committes will sesk to ensure that no mare 1s paid than 15 necessory, ond

* in the next Annual Report on remuneration, the Committee will explain ta shareholders the rationale for the orongements mplemented

The Committee will ordinanly seek to implement the remuneratian packoge in accordonce with the elements referred to v the policy iable on pages 45 ond 46 The Committee refains
discrehion to make oppropriote remuneschon deasions outside that policy mcluding the ahility to grant awards under the Executive Share Scheme to meet the mdmduo! creumstances of
the recruitment, subject to the hmits ond parometers of this recrutment remunesanion sechon of the Directors’ Remuneration Report

ELEMENT APPROACH

Bose salory ond | Aligned wath the palicy set out in the pohy table on page 45 if the new Executive Diector parhapetes in the 2015 Share Scheme of the some level o5 existing
benafits Executive Drrectors (other than Mike Ashley)

Retrament Ahigned with the paicy set out in the pohcy table on page 45 if the new Executive Director porhapates i the 2015 Share Scheme Otherwasa, up to 20% of safary
benefts paid te o pension arrangement ar paid os o supplement fo base salary in keu of o pension arrongement until the new Executve Director joins that scheme

2015 Share The Remunerahon Committee’s intention 15 for o newly-appointed Executive Director to portiapate i the 2015 Share Scheme with an award af up to 1 million
Scheme shures (subject 1o such adjustment os the Commttee determines fo seftect ony vonanon n the Company's share capttal) e up 1o the maximum level refatred to
in the policy table, but reduced to reflect the new Executive Director's shortened perod of service)

Vanable In recogniion of the foct that o newly appomted Executive Director’s award under the 2015 Shore Scheme would not vest until 2019, the Committes moy award
remunesation | u newly appointed Executive Director an award over up to 1 million shares (subject o such adstment os the Committes defermines to reflect ony change i the
Company's share copital) under the Executive Share Scheme or o smilar scheme, the vesting of which would be subject fo the ssme performance conditions os
apply to exsting awords under the Exacutive Share Scheme or other stretching performance condinons defermined by the Committes

In addition, uatl such hme as the newly apposnted Exacutive Diector parhoipates in the 2015 Share Scheme, he or she may be awarded on annuol or longer-term
ncentve appartunity of up to 200% of salary per arnum

Maximum The maamum level of vanobls remuneration that may be aworded to o new Executve Directos 1s
vorcble
remunerohon @ on oward over up to 1 milhon shares {subject to such adjusiment as the Committee: determines ta reflect any change in the Campany’s shore copiial) under the
2015 Share Scheme (but seduced to reflect any vorioble remuneration aworded s referred to in (¢} below),

b on oword over up to 1 mihon shores (subject to such adjustment as the Comrmittee determunes o reflect any change n the Company’s shore copital) under the
Executve Share Scheme or a smilor scheme, and

¢ untl such bme os he or she portrapates in the 2015 Share Scheme, an anavel of longer-term 1ncentive opportumity of up to 200% of salory per annum

In ench case, the value of any buyout amongements (described betow) does not count towards the maximum
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Compensation | The Commities may moke awards on hinng an extemol candidote to buy-out the remunaration arongements forfested on legwing o previous emloyer I ding

for forferited 50, the Committee will have regard to refevant factors including any performance condihons attoched fo such oreangements {and whether such condiiions were

anongements | achieved), the form of those airangements & g cash or shares) and the tmeframe of such arrangements
While such owards cre exuded from the maximum level of vanable remunerotion refereed to below, the Commuttee’s intention 15 that the valve awarded would
be no highes than the expected value of the forferted armongements Buy-out awards will be subject to forferture or dowback on early departure, with 100% being
subject to forferture if the Executrve deports within 12 months of joming, and o sliding seale down to 50% f the departure occurs within 12 and 24 months of
joining, of the Lommuttee’s discreton

Relocation costs | If necessary, the Company will poy appropnate refocation costs The Committee will seek to ensure that ne more 1s paid thun 1s necessary

Any share awards referzed 1o this sechon will be granted as for a5 possible under the Company's existing share schemes If necessory ond subect, where relevant, to the lmits referred
to abova, owards may be gronted outside exsting shore plans os parmutted undes the Listing Rules, which allow for the giont of awards o foaitote, in unusual crcumstances, the
recrutment of on Executive Duector

Where o position is filed ntemally, any on-going remunesahon obhgations or outstanding vanable poy elements shall be allowed to confinue according to therr subsisting terms

The remuneration patkage for o newly appainted Non-Executive Director would normally be i ine with the pokicy set out n the futuse pohey table above for Nor-Executive Directors

SERVICE CONTRACTS AND POLICY ON PAYMENTS FOR LOSS OF OFFICE

The Company’s pokcy 15 for Executive Dusectors fa be employed an the terms of service contracts which may be terminted by erther the Company or the Executive Director an the gnng of
not less than 12 menths” natce

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Detods of each current service contract are set out helow

CONTRACT DATE UNEXPIRED TERM / NOTICE PERIOD PROPER LAW
Mike Ashley 11/02/2007 12 months England & Wales
Dave Forsey 11,/02,/2007 12 manths England & Wales
Matt Peorson 14/04,/2007 B weeks Englond & Wales

The panaples on which the determinahon of payments for loss of office will be approoched are summansed below

Payment in hsu of
nofice

The Company may terminate an Executive Drector’s employment with immediate effect by making @ poyment n liew of notice consishing of

» basic salory for the notice period,

o f the Executive Director participates i an annupl bonus stheme, o pro-ated amount refleching completed manths of service in the year of termingtion
assuming on torget performance,

« gither the cost of providing other benefits (other than pension and bonus) that the Executive Director would have been entitled fo dunng the notice penod
or an omount equal to 10% of buse solary {or olternatively the Company may confinue fo prowde benefits for the remander of the notice penod that would
have opphed)

However, i occordance with the corrent pelicy os set out in the palicy toble on page 45, no onnual bonus scheme ar benefits are currently offered to Executive
Directors

Annual bonus In occordance with the cument policy as set out m the policy table on page 45, no anaua! bonus scheme 15 offesed to existng Executive Directors Were an
Executiva Director fo particpate in on annual banus arrangement, whether to oword o bonus in full or m part n the event of o terminahon of employment
would be gt the discretion of the Committee on an indnadua! bosts o dependent on o number of factors, induding the crcumstonces of the Executve Director’s
departure and his contnbutsen to the business duning the bonus period i question Typically benus omounts would be proated for hme in service to termination

2015 Share ff o parhapant w the 2015 Shore Scheme or Executive Share Scheme ceases employment before the performance conditions attaching to an aword under that

Scheme ond scheme are sahsfied, the award will lapse I the parhcipant ceases employment afier the performance condians are satished but betare the vesang dates asa

Executive Share reslt of bus death or any other reason determuned of the discretion of the Committee, the Gwand will vest, in the case of o reason other than death, the extent

Scheme of vesting will be dafermined by the Committee of its absolute discrahon toking mto account the fme that has elapsed between gront ond cessahon

Other payments The Remunerahon Committee reserves the nght to moke oddinonal exit payments where such payments ore made in good foith i discharge of an exishng

legal obligatian {or by woy of domages for breach of such an abligation) or by way of settlement or compromise of any doim ansing 1n connechon with the
termingon of @ Drector’s office o employment In appropriote crcumstonces, payments may alse be made in respect of legal fees Were the Company

1o moke on award on recrutment of an Executive Director to buy out remunerahon omangements forfeited on leaving o previous employer then the leaver
prowisions for that award would be defermingd gt the ime: of grant




In the event of o change of contral of the Company or other relevant corporate event, unvested awards under the 2015 Share Scheme ond the Executive Share Scheme will lapse unless
the performance condihons aie sofisfied and the event occurs between sansfachon of the condiions and the vesting date, in which case the aword shall vest In the cose of the 2015
Share Scheme the extent of vasting shall be determined by the Commuttee taking info gccount the periad of nime that has elapsed berween the grant dote and the date of the relevont
event ond i the cose of the Executive Share Scheme the awosds shall vest in full unless the Committes determines otherwise

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Non-Executrve Directors enter ito on agreament with the Group for o panod of three yaars, other than the Chawman whese agreement continues until terminated in accordance with
s terms The oppomtments of the Nor-Executive Directors may be terminated by either porty on one month’s written notice and in aceordance wath the Amices of Association of the
Company Termimahon would be immediote in certain ccumstances {including the bonkruptey of the Non-Executive Durector)

Non-Executrve Duectors da not and are not entifled to partiapate in any bonus or share scheme

Non-Executrve Duectars are subyject 1o confidennality undertokings without bitation in tme Non-Executve Directors are not entitled to recenve ony compensation on the termination of
theu appaintment

Details of the letters of appointment ore set out below

POSITION DATE OF LETTER OF APPOINTMENT
Keith Hellgwell HorExecutrve Chawrman Februory 2010
Simon Bentley NorExecunve Director 15 July 2014
Dave Singleton Nonfxecutve Drector 15 luly 2014
Claws Jenkins NorExecuhve Drirector 15 July 2014

PAYMENTS OUTSIDE THE POLICY IN THIS REPORT

The Committee retins discrenon to make ony remuneraton payment of payment for loss of office outsde the pohcy m this repon
o where the terms of the payment were agreed before the pohicy came into effedt,

* where the terms of the payment were agreed of o hme when the relevant indmadual wos nat a Drector of the Company and, in the opinvon of the Commuttes, the payment was net in
consideration of the mdmdual becoming a Dwrector of the Company, or

s 1o satisfy conteactual commitments mode under legocy remuneration anongements

For these purposes, “payments” includes the sehsfaction of awaords of vanoble remuneration and, in selahan to on oward over shares, the terms of the payment are “ogreed” af the hme
the award 15 gronted

STATEMENT OF CONSIDERATION OF SHAREHOLDER VIEWS

The Commuttee consuts major shoreholders ond representative Groups where oppropriate concerning remunesafion matiers

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

Thus port of the Dwectors” Remunerahon Report sets out the actual payments mods by the Company to 1ts Dinectors with respect to the peniod ended 26 Apal 2015 and how our Directors’
Remunesation Policy will be applied in the year commenaing 27 Apnl 2015
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SINGLE FIGURE TABLE (AUDITED)

The aggregate remuneranon provided fo ndwiducls whe have served as Direciors 1n the penod ended 26 Aprd 2015 15 set out below, along with the aggregate remunerahon provided to
indriduols who have served as Directors duning the pnor finanaicl year

DIRECTOR SALARIES AND FEES  OTHER BENEFITS BONUS LONG-TERM PENSION TOTAL
INCENTIVES
Y15 FY14 FY15 FY14 FY15 FY14 FY15 FY14 Fr15 FY14 15 FY14
€000 £000 £000 £060 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
EXECUTIVE
Muke Ashley
Dave Forsey 150 150 6,610M 6,760 150
NON-EXECUTIVE
Keith Hellowell 155 155 - 155 155
Simon Bentley 50 50 50 50
Dave Sngletan 50 50 50 50
Enhnrles McCreewy 223 50 223 50
Clowe Jenking 50 50 50 50

{1} Repracents the veius of an owerd aver | 000 000 shares undee the Exeartve Shore Scheme o to vesta 2017 swbiact 15 contwed amplayment For thasa purpases n vidue of o share 15 £6 41 beng tha overage shors pece over the quarer from 26 Janwary 2015 10 24
dpr 2015
{2) Charles McCreavy resgrmd iom the Board on 10 Septembe 2014

NOTES TO THE SINGLE FIGURE TABLE AND IMPLEMENTATION OF POLICY IN THE YEAR ENDING 24 APRIL 2016
BASE SALARY AND FEES

Base salanes ore nommally reviewed annually In the review in FY15 the Commuttes decded not to alter Executive Directors” sadomes The Commrtee hos decided not to mcrense Dave
Forsey’s solory in Y16, which has been ot the some level since 2002, and which 15 set ar o leve! well below the lower quarte for o business of the size ond complexsty of the Group
Mike Ashley does not recewve a salary for is role Matt Pearson’s cutrent salary for FY16 15 £60,000 In FY16, the Commitiee will rewiew Malt Pearson's salary ond consider whether any
increase should be implemented o reflect his role as on aching Boord membes or if his appointment s made: permanent

Fees for Non-Executive Direciors are normally reviewed annually In the review in FY15 feas were not increased Fees for Non-Executve Dectars wall not be ncrensed for FY16

ANNUAL BONUS SCHEME
The Committee hos determined that no annual borws scheme wilk be operated for Executve Duectors while the 2015 Share Scheme 15 n ploce

EXECUTIVE SHARE SCHEME
No awards were gronted under the Executive Shore Scheme in FY15 The last awards which were recenved, which vested in 2013, reloted to the complehon of o performance condihon
based on EBITDA n FY11

Following the approval of the 2015 Shore Scheme mn July 2014, the Committee proposes fo grant Dove Forsey an award under the scheme i FY16 over 1 million shares The Commttee
proposes to grant Mot Pearson an aword under the Scheme n FY16 over 30,000 shares, but may increase: the quantum of the award exther fo reflect Mott Pearson’s role os an acting
Board member of if his oppainiment is made permanent (subject fo the bmit in the poficy tabla set out on page 45} The number of shares under any oward may be adjsted s the
Commuttee determines to reflect any vanahon in the Company’s shore coprtcl

PAYMENTS TO PAST DIRECTORS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
No poyments have been made to past Duectors dunng the period ended 26 Apnl 2015

PAYMENTS FOR LOSS OF OFFICE DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
No poyments were made for loss of office dunng the penod ended 26 Aprd 2015

SHAREHOLDING GUIDELINES AND TOTAL SHAREHOLDINGS OF DIRECTORS

The Board beheves o 1s important that Executive Duectors have o significant hokding 1n the copial of the Company In FY14 the Committee reassessed the shareholding guidehines for
Executive Directors ond determaned that the Executive Duectors must hold @ mmmum shareholding of 50,000 shares while employed by the Company

Dave Forsey’s heneficral sharehalding on 26 Apnl 2015 was 50,000 shares ond, bosed on o share pnce of €6 13 {being the pice ot the close of business on 24 Aprl 2015, the lost
trading day before Sundoy 26 Apnl 2015) the value of that holding was 306,500, which is In excess of two years” salory




As an acing Board member, Matt Paarson 1s ot currently reguired to satisky the shaxehelding guideline In the event s eppaintment becomes permanent, Matt Pearson would be
expecied to ocquire the mimimum number of shares over o reasonable tme penod determined by the Commitige

The benzficial interests of the Directors i office on 26 April 2015 and of thew famthes i both cases a1 the beginning of the financal yeor, or ar the dote of appeiniment ff later, and ot
the end of the financial year m the share caprtal of the Company are shown below

Ordinory Shares 27 Apnl 2014  Ordinary Shares 26 April 2015

Make Ashley 345,400,000 330,000,000
Siman Bentley 10,000 10,000

Dgve Forsey 50,000 50,000

Keith Hellowel™ 50,000 50,000

Clore Jenkins 19,500 21,775
Chorles Mclreevy™ 1,500

Dove Singleron®™ 52,000 52,000

Matt Pearson)

{1 Thase shores ara held m tha noms of Keith Hellowel, o5 wat ox hes wily

(2) Charles stood down os 0 member of the Boord on 10 Septembar 2014 As o restt of hes resgnaton the Group has no visibily of the cument sharsholdmg
(3) These shores ara held i tha name of Dove Sngleton, os wel o hes wie

{4} Tha shareholding of actng Boord members will be essessad in sccordonca wath the Group runsmum leval upen thair status en the Bozrd being mada pemmanent

There have been no changes i the Directors” holdings in the share capital of the Company, as set out in the toble obove, betwean 26 Aprit 2015 and 16 July 2015

DIRECTOR SCHEME GRANT DATE NUMBER OF SHARES STATUS

Dave Forsey Executve Share Scherne 22 hugust 2011 1,000,000 Unvested

The award was gronted subiect to the sansfachion of the followang EBITDA targets (of which off have been met)

* Lindertying EBITDA of £215m in FY12 - ACHIEVED
* Underying EBITDA of £250m in FY13 ACHIEVED
# Underying EBITDA of £260m n FY14  ACHIEVED
* Underying EBITDA of £300m n FY15 ACHIEVED

&s the above torgets have now been met the oward will vestin 2017

PERFORMANCE GRAPH AND TABLE

The following graph shows the Company’s performance meosured by the Total Shoreholder Retun campared with the performanca of the FTSE 100 and FISE 250 index
(excluding investment frusts}
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The Commitiee considered this on eppropriote mdex agemst which to compare the Company’s performance as i 15 widely accepted as o nahonal measure and includes the compontes that
investors ave ikely to consider altematve mvesiments

The table below shows detarls of the total remuneration and perfermancevetoted pay for Dave Farsey over the st sx finencial yeors

TOTAL REMUNERATION EXECUTIVE SHARE SCHEME AS A % OF MAXIMUM OPPORTUNITY

FY15 £6,760,0001" 100%

FY14 £150,000 N/

FY13 £150,000 N/k

FY12 £150,000 N/A

Y1 £6,420,000 ™ 100%

FY10 £150,000 N/A
(1) Rapresants the velue of an rward over 1 D00 000 sheres unda the Exacutive Shore Scheme dus to wast i 2017 subject to sctsfactory performence and conteued empieyment For thasa purptses the vaua ef o shara e 54 61 bong the avernge share pace ovat the quaster

from 26 Jonuary 2015 fo 24 ko 2005

(2) Fou these purposas, the ot remuneranon m F¥11 indudes tha velae of an award ove | D00 000 shores that vestad on 15 Avgust 2013 sutyact 1o the saisachen of o performancs cendinon basad on EBITDA m Y11 For these purposes the velus of 0 shere 1s £6 47
beng the dasing pics of a shars on that dats

CEOQ PAY INCREASE IN RELATION TO ALL EMPLOYEES

The toble below sefs out in relahon to safory, toxable benefits ond annual bonus the percentage increase in poy for Dove Forsey compared fo the average increase between the same
petiods for the Group's UK Heod Office employees, which the Committes believes s the most appropnate compavator group The pescentages shown relate to the amounts for FY15 s
compared to the amounts for the FY14

ELEMENT OF REMUNERATION DAVE FORSEY / % CHANGE UN HEAD OFFICE EMPLOYEE AVERAGE / % CHANGE
Salory 0% 03%
Toxable benehts 0% (no toxable benehts were provided to Dove Forsey in erther year) {3 6%)
Annuol bongs 0% (no annuol benus omangement was operated for Dove Farsey in either yeor) 4 2%

RELATIVE IMPORTANCE OF SPEND ON PAY

The table below sefs out the Graup's distributions o shareholders by way of dwidends and share buybacks, total Group-wde expenditure on pay for olf staff, as reported i the qudited
Financiol Statements for FY15 and FY14, and the Company’s share pnce, calculated o5 ot the clase of business an the last day of FY15 and FY14

FY15 kY14 PERCENTAGE CHANGE
Distnbunons to shareholders by way of dadend and share buyback g0 £0 %
Investment™ £126,661,000 £323,475.000 (60 8)%
Groupwade expenditure on pay for all employees £323,545,000 €307 948,000~ 51%
Shore price {pence) 6130 779 5 (21 4)%

*Compesses of increases i working coptol acquesions cnd capuiol expendinure i the year as the Board believes these to bo the most relevont measuies of the Groups investmant in future growth
**This wease & rePacten of the Group's noquesiions and resadl axpansion n futope
***Fox these purposes, the shore pace for FY 15 and the sharm pace for FY14 we colculated o the dose of busness on 24 Aprl 2015 ond 25 Aprl 2014 respectvely beng e fast working days pier fo fha year ends

CONSIDERATION BY THE DIRECTORS OF MATTERS RELATING TO DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
MEMBERSHIP
The Committee consists of Simon Bentley, Dove Singleton and Clare Jenkins, who are independant Non-Executive Directors, and Keith Hellawell, who 15 the Non-Executve Chawrmon

The tole and main responsibimes of the Commuttee ore detailed i the Corporate Govemance: Report on page 42
Attendonce ot the mestings held duning the yeor 1s detailed on poge 39

The membess of the Committee have no personal fnanciol interest, other than as shoreholders, m the motters t be decided, no actual or patennal conflicts of witerest ansing fiom other
directorships ond no doy-to-day operanional responsibility wathin the Company

ADVISERS TO THE COMMITTEE
Dove Forsey, the Chief Executive, Mott Pearson, the Acing Chief Fmoncial Officer, and Mike Ashley, the Exacutive Deputy Chairman, have advised or motenally ossisted the Committee
when requested Execunve Directors are not present, nor do they toke port in discussions in respect of matters relaing dwrectly to ther own remunerohen

SHAREHOLDER VOTING

The following able sefs aut actue! voting n respect of the resolution to approve the Drrectors” Remunesanion Repart for the year ended 27 Apnl 2014 and 1n respect of the resohshon o
approve the Directors’ Remuneration Policy

VOTES FOR % FOR VOTES AGAINST % AGAINST  TOTAL VOTES CAST  VOTES WITHHELD

Directors” Remuneraton Repart for the yeor ended 27 Aprl 2004 516,947,257 97 11,127 626 21% 528,074,883 1,005,636

Directors’ Remuneranon Policy 452,862,975 87 5% 64,472,250 12 5% 517,342,225 11,738,294

Dave Singleton
Charrman of the Remuneraton Committee

16 July 2015




DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY AND RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Duectors are vesponsible for prepaning the Annual Report, the Remuneranon Report ond the Company and Group Finanaiol Stasements m cccordance with appheable low
ond regulahons

Compony low requues the Duectors fo prepare Finanaal Statements for each finonaol yeor Under that low the Directors ore requued to prepare the Group Finanaal Statements &
accordance wath Intemahonal Finonaol Reporting Standards (IFRSs) os adopted by the European Union

The Duectors have elected o prepare the Company Financiol Statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generolly Accepted Accounfing Practices (UK GAAP)

Under company fow the Dirertors must not pprove th Financiol Statements unless they are sotisfied that they give o true and far view of the state of affars and profit ar loss of the
Company ond Group for that penod I prepanng the Finanaial Statements the Duectors are required to

o select sutcble occounting pohcies ond then apply them consistently,

* moke judgements ond estmates that are reasoncble and prudent,

* for the Group Financial Statements, state whether the opplicable IFRSs hove been followed, subiect to any matenal deportures disdosed and explomed m the Finanaal Statements,

* for the Company Financial Statements, state whether the applicoble UK Accounting Standards heve been followed, subject to ony matencl deportures disclosed and explained in the
Finonaial Statements, and

* prepare the Finonciol Statements on the going concern bosis unless 1t 1s mappropnate to prasume that the Company ond Group will continue n business

The Dutectors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are suffivent to show and explain the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonoble atcuracy ot any
fime the finoncial posifion of the Compony and enable them ta ensure that the Financia! Statements, ond the Remunerahon Report, comply with the Componses Act 2004 and Article 4
of the IAS Regulohon They are ko responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company ond hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detechon of froud and

othet iregulonties

The Directors confirm that

= 50 for o5 each Drector 15 owore, there 15 no relevont audst nfarmahon of which the Compony’s auditors are unoware, and
= the Directors hove taken all steps that they ought to have token to make themselves owara of any relevant audit information and fo estabiish that the auditors are oware of
thot informotion

The Drrectors are responsible for the maintenance and integuty of the corporate and financial infarmation inchuded an the Company’s website Legislation i the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemnahon of Finoncial Statements may differ from legislation in other junsdicnons

To the best of our knowledge

(o) the Annwol Report, including the strategic report, prepared in occordone with the appheable set of accounting stondards, gves o true and for view of the assets, liobrhines, financal
position and profit of the Compony and of the underiokings included in the consolidanon token os o whole,

and

(b} the management report includes o fuir rewew of the development and performance of the business and the posion of the Compeny and the undertokings included in the consokdotion
taken os o whole, tagether with o descaption of the prinapal nsks ond uncertoinfies et they foce

On behalf of the Boord

Dave Forsey
Chief Executve

16 July 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT
TO MEMBERS OF SPORTS DIRECT INTERNATIONAL PLC

OUR OPINION ON THE GROUP FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS IS UNMODIFIED

In our opirion the group Finonawl Statements

* gnve o frue ond foi view of the state of the Group's affaus as at 26 Apnl 2815 and of
the Group’s profit for the 52 week pencd then ended,

o hive heen propery prapared in accordance with Infernanional Financiol Reparting
Stondards {IFRSs) os odopted by the Ewrapean Union,

o have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
and Artcle 4 of the IAS Regulanion

OTHER MATTER

We have reported seporately on the Financiol Statements of Sports Direct Interngtional
PLC for the penod and on the informanon in the Directors’ Remunerotion Report that 1s
descnbed as hoving been audited

WHO WE ARE REPORTING TO

This report 15 made solely to the company’s members, s 0 body, i accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work hos been undertaken
50 thot we might state to the company’s members those matters we ore required fo stafe
to them n an cuditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsihulity to anyone other than the company ond the
company’s members os o body, for our oudit work, for this report, or for the opinians we
have formed

WHAT WE HAVE AUDITED

Sports Direct International PLC's Finanaid! Statements compnise the consolidated imcome
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated bolance
sheet, the consolidoted cash flow statement, the consahidated statement of changes in
equity and the related notes

The financial reporting framewark that has been opphied in thew preparation 15 applicable
{aw and IFRSs a5 odopted by the Europeon Union

OUR ASSESSMENT OF RISK

In oerving at our opinons set aut in this report, we highight the following nsks that are, in
our judgement, ikely to be most important to users’ understonding of our audit

RISK OF FRAUD IN REVENUE RECOGNITION

The nsk The revenue recorded by the Group is ane of the key determmants of Group
underlying earnings before iterest, taxation, depreciahion and amoriisahon {EBITDA} and
15 recognised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy and International Accounting
Stondord (1A5) 18 Revenua The mojonty of group revenue is recarded thiough Electronic
Pomt of Sale (EPOS) transachions, which 15 o key control used by the Group i to ensure
all revenue 15 recorded Because of the prassures and incentrves management may feel

to achieve planned targets and becouse of inherent nisk i the secording of cash soles

we hove dennfied froud 1n revenue recognion s o sigmficant oudht nsk requanng specc!
oudit consideration

Our response Our oudit work meluded, but was not restncted to, testing manual joumal
eniries posted o revenue for mdicanon of froudulent fransoctions, o controls test over the
completeness ond ocouracy of the EPOS dota from tlls through to head office, testing o
sample of sales tronsachions to supporhing documentation ond re-performing an internet
sales recepts reconciiofion in total to cash receved We also analytcally rewewed soles
trends of an indwduol store level and by product type to identfy vanances to expectahons
that would requue further substontrve testing

The Group's accounting palicy wath respect to revenue recognstion 15 included i note 1 and
segmental analysis of sales 15 prowded in note 4

VALUATION OF CONTRACTS FOR DIFFERENCE

The nsk The Group hos entered inte denvative ogresments referencing shares in pubhicly
listed companies The valuahion of these contracts i the Finoncral Stotements requies
estmahon by management These controcts have been identified as a risk due fo

then signihcont manetary value ond because they are kionsachens outsids the normal
operations of the Group

Our response Qur audit work included, but was not restmcted fo, exomning the terms of
the contracts and agreaing the belnces to confimanons ficm the counter party to ossess
the occounting treatment odopted, the busis of valuhion and the distlosures made We
also engaged our own valuotion specialists to assess the appropnateness of the valuanons,
which are based an both observable inputs and eshmates and assumphons opplied by
manogement

The Group’s eccounfing policy for dervotve conracts 15 included n note 1 ond disclosures
relating 1o the contracts is found in nate 27

The Audit Commuttee idennfied valuanon of confrocts for difference os an area of
significance 1n ifs report on page 41, where the Audit Committee also descnbes how it
addressed this aren

CARRYING VALUE OF INVENTORIES

The risk The carrying value of mventones 15 stated net of provisions for chsolete or slow
moving inventory We have identified this nsk because judgement 15 opphed by monoge-
ment i assessing e amount of prowision required to record mventory af the lower of cost
ond net reahisoble velue and because of the complexity of the provision caleulation

Our response Our oudit work included, but wos not restricted to, testing the models
used for mathematical accurpey, considerng the appropnateness and consistency of the
underhying ossumphons within the mode} and testing the seffing prce of mventory sold
post period end

The Group’s accounting pelicy on inventanes and detals of the judgements opplied by the
Dwectors 1n estoblishing the provision s included m nete |

The Audit Committee identified carrying velus of mventory os an orea of signihicance i its
report on page 41, where the Commitige olso descnbes how it addressed this area

INTANGIBLES IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT

The nsk As more fully explomed n note 15 the Directors are required to make on onnugl
ossessment to deterrmne whether the value of goodwall of £156m, tiodemarks ond
licences of £19m and brands of £80m 1s mponed We have dentified this nsk because
the process for measunng ond recogrising impairment under 145 36 1s complex and
requires (udgement and hecouse we identrfied potential mdicators of impairment duning
our nsk assessment procedures

Ot response Our oudit work included, but was not restncted to, evaluating and sensitising
the assumphans used by the Directors, n: particular those key assumptions relofing to the
cash flow projechons used by manogement for thewr assessment, including the discount
rates, perpeturly growth rates and forecast gross morgins We also reviewed the adequacy
of the disclosures on the sensitrvity of key assumphons used in the gssessmenr

The Group's occounting policy on impairment and details of the judgements and estmates
made by the Dwectors ore included in note 1

The Audit Commutiee dennfied infangibles impairment assessment as on oreo of
signicance 1n 1fs report on page 41, whese the Committee also descbes how i
oddressed this area




OUR APPLICATION OF MATERIALITY AND AN OVERVIEW
OF THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT

MATERIALITY

We define matenchty os the mogatuds of misstaternent  the Finanaiol Statements thot
makes it probable that the economic decsions of o reasonobly knowledgeable person
would be changed or influenced We determuned matenality for the audi of the group Fr
nanaial Statements os o whale to be £13 3m which is 3 5% of underbying eaimings before
inierest, toxation, depreciation and amortisohon (EBITDA) This benchmark is considered
the most appropnate becouss, this 15 the meine ogamst which the fmancial performance
of the Group 15 measured both mtermally ond externally We use o different level of
motenghty, performonce matenality, o dive the extent of our testing and this was set at
75% of finanain! statement matenality for the audit of the group Financial Statements
We also determine o lower level of speafic matenality for certoin areas such os duectors’
remunerahion ond related party fonsactions

We determined the threshold af which we commumicated musstotements to the oudit
committee to be £665,000 In nddition we will communicate missiatements below that
threshotd that, in our view, warrant reparting on qualiiative grounds

OVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT

We condected our oudit in occordonce with Intemahionel Standords on Audiing (UK and
lrelond) Qur responsibilines undes those standards are further described in the *Responsk
bidies fos the Financiol Statements and the audi” sechon of our report Wa beheve that
the oudit evidence we have obtained s sufficent and oppropnate to prowde o bosis for
our opinion

We are independent of the group m occordance with the Audiing Prochces Boord's Etical
Standords for Auditors, ond we have fulfdled our other efucal responsibiines 1n accordonce
with those Ethical Standards

We evaluated the desciphon, design ond operating effeciveness of controls over key
financiol systems identified os part of our nsk assessment This included o rewew of the
general [T connals, the accounts produchon process and the confrols oddressing cricol
accounhing matters identrfied in our nsk assessment We undertook o combination of
controls and substantive testing on significant transactions, balances ond disclosures,
the exteni of which was based on vanous factors including our overall assessment of
the conmol environment, the effectiveness of controls over indnidual systems and the
manogement of spetific rsks

As set out on poge 67 the Group hos three aperaning segments, Sports Reto, Premium
Lifestyle ond Brands. The Group Finoncio) Statements are a consolidation of the reporting
urits compnsing the operohing businesses within these segments

In estoblishing the overall approach to the Group cudit, we determined the type of work
that needed to b performed by us, os the Group engagement team, or companent
ouditors opesating under our instruchion

Where the work wos performed by component ouditors, we determined the fevel of
involvement we needed to have in thew cudit work ot those reporting umits to be able

to conclude whether sufficent appropriate audit ewdence hod been obtaned as o bosis
for our opinion on the Group Financial Statements as a whole We set motenality for the
overseas component qudits as 75% of the matenality for the group Financial Sratements

The reporting uruts vary signdicantly 1n size ond we rdentified 5 reporing units that, in our
view, required a full scope oudit of thenr financiol informanon for group reporting purposes,
e to therr size or nsk choractenshes In addivon a further 27 reporting units ore cudited
to full scope for stotutery reporting purposes, prowiding in fotol 87% coverage of the
Group’s revenues ond 84% of the Group underying EBITDA

Speufic audit procedures wese performed of o further 7 reporhng units due to thew size
mrowding o further 8% coverage of the Group's reverwes ond 12% of the Group underlying
EBITDA, with the remaining reporting unrts subject to analytical procadues

The fables below demanstrate the coverage of our oudit procedures

REVENUE

<4\

UNDERLYING EBITDA

&

® Full Scope W Specdic procedures B fnndyticed review

OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY REGULATIONS

Qur opimon an other matters preserbed by the Compomies Act 2006 15 unmodified
In our opimen

e the information grven in the Shateqic Repart and Diectors Report for the financial
perted for which the Fnanciol Statements are prepared 1s consistent with the Fingnciol
Statements, ond

+ the information grven in the Corporate Governance Report sef out on pages 37 to 43
with respect to internal control and risk management systems in relation to finonaol
reporting processes ond about share capited structures 15 consistent with the Financial
Stotements

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY
EXCEPTION

WE HAVE NOTHING TO REPORT IN RESPECT OF THE FOLLOWING:
Under the ISAs (UK and lieland), we ore required to report to you o, 16 our opimon,
information in the Annual Report 15

« motenally mconsistent wath the information m the oudited Finanail Stetements, or

e opparently matennlly incorrect based on, or matenolly inconsistent with, our knowledge
of the group acquired n the course of performing our audt, or

o otherwise misleading

FVERYTHING IS CHANGING
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT
TO MEMBERS OF SPORTS DIRECT INTERNATIONAL PLC

IN PARTICULAR, WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT TO YOU IF:

« we hove identfied any Inconsistencies between our knowledge acqured duning the oudit and the directors’ statement that they consider the Annual Report i for, belonced and
understandable, or

o the Annual Report does nat appropriately disclose these matters that were communicared to the audit committee which we consider should have been disclosed

UNDER THE COMPANIES ACT 2006 WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT TO YOU [F, IN OUR OPINION:
o certai disclosures of directors remuneranan specrfied by low are not made, or

 we have not recerved all the mformanion and explanations we require for our audi, or

= g (omorale Governance Repart has nat been prepared by the Company

UNDER THE LISTING RULES, WE ARE REQUIRED TO REVIEW:
= the Directars” stotement, set out on poge 36, in eelahon to going concern, and
= the part of the Corporate Govemance Report relafing to the compony's compliance with the ten prowsions of the UK Corporote Governance Code specified for our review

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE AUDIT
WHAT AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS INVOLVES:
A descriphon of the scope of an oudit of Finanail Statements 15 prowded on the Finanaal Reporfing Counal’s website of www fre org uk /audvscapeukpavate

WHAT THE DIRECTORS ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR:

As explomed more fully wn the Directars’ Responsibiines Statement set out on page 53, the Drrectors ore responsible for the preparanion of the Financial Statements and for being sanstied

that they give o frue ond fair view

WHAT WE ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR:
Our resporisibdity s to oudit and express an opmion on the Finonaio! Statements i occordance with appheable low and Internohendl Standards on Auditng @K and Irelond) Those
stondords require us o comply with the Audinng Prachces Boards Ethical Standards for Auditors

Philip Westerman

Senior Statutory Auditor

For and on beholf of Grant Thomton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
London

16 July 2015




CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 APRIL 2015

52 weeks eaded
26 Agrll 2015 27 hped 2014
Hore {£'000) (£00%
Revenve 14 2,832,560 2,705,958
Cost of sales {1,591,748) (1,551,038)
Gross profit 1,240,812 1,154,921
Sefting, distmbution and edministrotve expenses (950,526) (908,843
(ther aperating ncome 5 8,345 8,583
Excephonal tems [ {3,050) (5,531)
Operating profit 47 255,581 249,131
(ther mvestment income 9 14,104 7.017
Finance icome 10 8,289 851
Finance costs 11 (7,487 {19,853}
Share of profit of nssowated undertokings 16 2,959 2,264
Profit before taxafion 313,444 739,452
Taxanhon 12 {72,093) (59,839
Profit for the period 4 241,353 179,613
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equiy holders of the Group 40,397 180,245
Nor-centrolling interests 956 (632)
Profit for the penod 4 741,353 179,61
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS
Pance per thote Pence par share
Basic eomings per share 13 406 e
Diluted eamings per share 13 390 07
Underhang basic egmmgs per shore 13 389 321

The consolidated :ncome stotement has been prepored on the basts that all operahons are contmuing

The accompanying cecounting policies and nates form port of these Financiot Statements

FVERYTHING IS CHANGING
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 APRIL 2015

52 woeks ended
26 April 2015 27 bl 2014
Nata (£°000) (£°000)
Prafit far the penod 4 241,353 179,613
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ITEMS THAT WILL NOT BE RECLASSIFIED SUBSEQUENTLY TO PROFIT OR LOSS
Acruonal (losses) / goms on defined bengfit pension schemes 24 (2,493} 3,860
Taxahon on items recagmised n other comprehensive income 524 {498)
ITEMS THAT WILL BE RECLASSIFIED SUBSEQUENTLY TO PROFIT OR LOSS
Exthange differences on fronsanon of forergn operahions 9,154 (33,118
Exchange ditferences on hedged contracts recogmsed i the penod 7 77,181 (3737
Exthange dferences on hedged controcts redossiied ond reparted i net profit 7 7,240 (17.909)
Farr value odgustment in respect of avolable-for-sale fnanciol assets W 21,893 51,373
Taxahon on rtems recogarsed i other comprehensive income (17,128 (4,170)
Other comprehensive income for the penod, net of tax 95,713 1,600
Total comprehensive icome for the period 337,124 181,214
ATTRIBUTABLE TO-
Equity holders of the Group 135,170 181,846
Non<ontrolling interest 956 {430
337,126 181,214

The accamponying accounting polines ond notes form port of these Financiol Stotements



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AT 26 APRIL 2015
26 Agrll 2015 o dpd 2014
Hon {E°000) {£ 000)
ASSETS - NON-CURRENT
Praperty, plant ond equipmen 14 422,741 4§2,361
Intangible ossets 15 255,364 255,199
Investments m assocated undertakings 16 38,133 41,763
hvolloblefor-sale hnencial ssefs 17 140,795 116,504
Deferred tox ossefs 25 38,352 31,130
895,386 856,067
ASSETS - CURRENT
Inventones 18 517,054 545,479
Trode and other recenvobles 19 190,726 123,014
Denvetve financiol ossefs i 92,199 4,355
Cosh and cash equnolents 20 78,318 151,024
878,297 843,872
TOTAL ASSETS 1,713,683 1,700,739
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capisal 2t 64,060 44,060
Share premwm 874,300 874,300
Treosury shares reserve (56,234) {56,234)
Primonent conimouton o tapral 50 50
Copizal redempnon reserve 8,005 8,005
Fareign cuirency mansloon reserve 14,434 5,280
Reverse combinahon reserve (987,312) (987,312
(wn share reserve (13,250) (13,251
Hedging reserve 78,796 (5,625)
Retoined earnngs 1,181,51t 931,819
1,164 36i 821,097
Non-ontrolling interess {2,810) (3,538)
Total equity 1,161,551 817,554
LIABILITIES - NON-CURRENT
Borrowings 23 136,84% 6,764
Renrement benefit obhganans i 14,869 15,350
Deferred tax habdines 25 40,088 24,044
Prowisions 25 37,705 37,780
229,51 83,940
LIABILITIES - CURRENT
Demvative fnanciot hobilihes 27 5629 18,665
Trade ond other payobles 28 340,934 392,019
Boriowings 23 1,104 356,226
Current tox lighilines 34,852 32,335
382,621 799,245
Total liobilities 412132 883,185
Total equity und Gabilities 1,773,683 1,700,739

The nccomponyng accounting polioes and nates form part of these Finoncol Statements The Financiol Statements were approved by the Board on 14 July 2015 ond wera signed on ifs beholf by

Mot Pecrson
Acting Cheef Financial Othcer

Company number- 06035106

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 APRIL 2015

52 woeks eaded
26 April 2015 77 kel 2014
Notw {E000) (5 000)
Cash inflow from operating activihes i 314,662 212,785
Income taxes paid {77,110 {55,730
Net cash inflow {rom operoting activities 136,952 167,055
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds on dispasal of property, plant and equipment 21,150
Proceeds on disposal of hsted mvesiments 51,895 493N
Purchase of assocute, net of cosh oguired {50} {8,000)
Purchnse of subsidiones, net of cash acquired (3,847 (15,407
Purchase of intangible ossets 15 (2,937 (1,827}
Puichase of property, plant and equipment 14 (97,342) (67,304}
Purchase of histed wvestments 17 (50,415 (55,467}
Investment mcome recerved 2,883 1,404
Finance income receved 987 891
Net cash outflow from investing activities (77 ,876) (96,114)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Finance costs pord (6,845) 8111}
Borrowings drawn down 126,989 300,10
Borrgwngs repud (346,997) (348,452)
Exercise of ophion over non-contrelling interests (11,678)
Net cash ovtflow from finanang activihies (226,853} (67,330)
Net (decrense) / incrense m cash and cosh equivalents including overdrafts (67,777 3,608
Cash and cosh equivelents including overdrafts at begmning of period 145,282 141,674
Cash and cash equivolents including overdrafts at the period end 20 77,505 145,282

The occampanying accounting policies and notes form part of these Financial Statements



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 76 APRIL 2015

Totul atirbutable
Treesary  Foreign correscy QOwn share Retoined toownersel N
shores. tronsiation reserve saraings  Other reserves pareat taterests Total
{€°000) {€°000} {£7000) {£'000) {£'000) 1£000) (E°000) {£°000)
At 28 April 2013 {56,234) 38,398 (64,375) 752,018  {24,878) 644,931 {254) 644,677
Vesting of shorebosed poyment 51,124 {51,124)
Cument tux on share schemes 25,500 25,500 25,500
Deferrad tox on shore schemes (11,215) (11,215 {11,215
Horrconirolling mterests acquisihons (10,513 {10,513}
Exrase of ophon over noncontrolling imferest (19,970) {19,970} 7,861 {12,109}
Tronsoctions with owners 51,174 (56,809) (5,685) (2,650 {8,337
Prafit for the financial penad 180,245 180,245 (632) 179,613
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(osh flow hedges
reqognised in the penod (3,737 (3,737) (3,737)
rethssed and reported i net profit (17,909 {17,909 (17,909}
Actvanal gom on defined benefit pension schemes 3,860 3,860 3,840
Fow valus adystment n respect of avorlohledorsale
Finonciol assets 57,373 51,373 57,313
Toxatien - {4,858) {4,868) (4,858)
Translohon differences Group (32,498) (32,498 (32,490)
Translohon differences ossocates (620) (620) {£20)
Total comprehensive income for the period (33,118 236,610 (21,646) 181,846 (632) 181,214
At 27 April 2014 (56,234) 5,280 {13,251} 931,819 (46,522) 821,092 (3,538} 817,554
(redit to equity for shore-bosed poyment 5,833 5,833 5833
Deferred fnx on shore schemes 1,266 1,266 1,266
Non-<ontralling interests  acquisitions 384 384
Tronsections with ownars 7,099 7.0%% 384 7,483
Probit for the finoncial penod 240,397 240,397 954 241,353
Divdends recerved (612) (3]
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
{ash flow hedges
recognised in the pened 77,181 17.180 77,181
reclassified end reported i net profit 7,240 7,240 7,40
Actuonol losses on defined benefit pension sthemes {2,493) (2,493) {2,453
Fair value adjustment in respect of availoble-forsale financial
asses 1,893 71,893 21,893
Toxation (17,204) (17,204) {17,204
Translonon differences Group 13,783 13,783 13,783
Tronsloton differences  ossocates (4,627) (4,627) {4,627)
Total comprehensive income for the period 9,156 242,593 84,421 336,170 344 336,514
At 26 April 2015 (56,234} 14,436 (13,251} 1,181,511 37,899 1,164,341 (2,810) 1,141,551

EVERYTHING 1S CHANGING
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 APRIL 2015

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidoted Finonaal Statements of Sports Direct Internanonal ple (the “Company™)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group™) have been prepared n occardonce with
itemononl finanaa! reporting standards os adepted by the europeon umion (*IFRS™}

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consehidated Finonciol Statements have been prepared m occordance wath IFRS os
adopted for use w the European Union {including International Accounting Standords
{*I4S") and Intemohana! Finonaigl Reporting Standards Interprefations Committee
("IFRSIC™) and wath those parts of the Componies Act 2006 appiicble to companies
reporting under IFRS as adopted for use in the Eurapean Umion The consoliduted Financiol
Statements have been prepared under the istoncol cost convennon, as modified to
mclude fair voluation of certam finanaal assets and denvatrve financial mstruments

The following IFRS, IFRSIC interpretanons and omendments are effechve for the first ame
n this financal year

IFRS 10 Consobidated Financiol Stotements and [FRS 12 Disclosure of Interests i Other
Entihies have been adopted m the finonciol yeqr The rewised standards reploce the portion
of IAS 27 that oddresses the occountng for consolidated Financiol Stotements The
adophon of these stondards has resufted n no change to the Income Staterent, Bolonce
Sheet or Stotement of Comprehenswe [ncome in the cureent finoncial period

CONSOLIDATION

The consohdoted Finongiol Statements consolidate the revenues, casis, assets, habilfies
and cosh flows of the Compeny and its subsidhanes, being those entives that the Group 15
deemed to have control over It wall be deemed to hove cantrol when it has power over
the enfity, 1s exposed fo or hos nghts to vanoble returns from the entity and has the obiliry
1o use 1fs powes over the entity to affect the amaunt of the enhity’s retums

On acquisthon, the ossets and habdihes and contingent hobities of a subsidiary are
measured at theur faw values o the dote of acquisiion Any excess of far volue of the
consideratian transferred over the foi volues of the idenifioble net ossets acquired 15
recogmised os goodwll Any deficiency of fair value of consideration transferred below

the for values of the identfioble net assets acquired 15 credited to the consolidated mcome
statement n the penod of acquisition The non-conralling interest 1s stoted at the
non-controlling interest’s proportion of the foir volues of the assets, hobikhes and
contingent liobwhikes recogrused Costs mcurred relabng to acquisihons are expensed ko

the income statement

The results of substdranes acquired or disposed of dunng the year are induded m the
consohdated income stotement from the effechve date of ocquisthon o up te the effecve
date of disposal, os apprapriate

Intercompony transochons, balances ond unreahised goms ond losses on ransachions
between group companies ore eliminated

ASSOCIATES
Assocates are entities over which the Group has signicont mnfluence but not contre,
generally accomparued by o share of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights

The Group’s share of the results of assocates 15 nduded in the Group's consohidoted
incame statement using the equity method of accounting Investments i assoaates

are comed m the Growp’s consolidated bolance sheet ot cost plus post acqusihon changes
i the Group's share of the net ossets of the assocotes ond joint ventures, less ony
impoirment in volue The corrying values of mvestments n assocites sclude

ocquired goodwil

If the Group's share of losses n an associate or equals or exceeds its ivestment in the
ossoaate, the Group does not recogruse further losses, untess it has incurred obhgations to
do 5o or made poyments an beholf of the assooate

Unvealised gains erising from #ronsochons wath associates ore eliminoted o the extent of
the Group’s interest n the entity

INVESTMENTS

Avollcbleforsale nvestments are mmally recognised at farr value Where far value

15 differen to cost, this 15 recogmised i the income stotement on imal recognihon
Subsequent gans and losses ansing from changes n fair volue are recogmised in the
stutement of other comprehensva ncome When the secunity is disposed of, de-vecognised
o1 15 determined to be impaured the cumulative gain or loss previously recogaised i

other comprehensive income 15 reclassified from equity to the income shatement as o
reclossification adjustment wittun other comprehensive income

ACQUISITIONS

For busimess combinahons atheved in stages, the Group remeasures iis previousty held
equity interest in the acqurree of its ocquisthion-dote fair value and recognises the resulhing
gam or loss, if any, i the 1ncome statement os approprate

GOODWILL

Goodwill onsing on consokdatian 15 recognised s an asset and 1swewed for impoment af
least annwally or when a change in circumstances or situation ndicates that the goodwall
has suffered an impairment loss The need for mparment is tested by companng the
market value of the coshrgenernting unit (CGU) to the corrying value Ay impairment 1s
recognised immediately 11 the income statement Impavment losses on goodwil are not
reversed Goins ond losses on the disposal of o business mclude the amount of goodwill
refating to that business

When the non-contolling interest of an exishing subsidkary s acquired the <arrying volue
of the non-controlling intesests n the bolonce sheet 1s elminated Any dffesence betwesn
the omount by which the nonontrolling interest 15 adusted and the fair volue of the
considerahon pmid 15 recogmised diractly in equity

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Brands, frode morks and heences that are intemnally generoted are not recorded on the
balance sheet Acquied brgnds, trace marks and licences are itially camed on the
balonce sheet ot cost The forr volue of bronds, frode marks ond icences that ore ocquired
by wriue of o business combination 15 determuned af the dote of acquisihon ond is
subsequently assessed os being the deemed cost to the Group

Expenditure on adverhising and promahonal achwilies 1s recognised os on expense
os ncurred

Mo omartisation 1s charged on those brands, trade marks or perpetual /renewable heences
with an indefinite Iife o5 the Group believes thot the volue of these brands and trode
marks con be mantmned indefinitely The Group cornes out an imposment review of
indefinite Ufe miongables, ot least annually, or when a change in arcumstances or situghon
idicates that those mtangibles have: suffered on impawment loss Impairment 1s meosured
by companng the carrying amount of the intangible asset os part of the cash-generating
unt ((GU) wath the recaverable amount of the (GU, that is, the hgher of its fair value less
casts 1o sell and its value m use Volue n use 15 calculated by vsing o pre-tox discount rate
that reflects cuirent market assessments of the nme volue of money and the nsks specific
1o the osset for which the eshmates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

Amortishon 15 provided on other brands, rade marks and heences with a definite ife

on o strght hng basis over ther useful econormic lives of 5 1o 15 years and 15 accounted
for within the seling, disnbuhon and odministratve expenses category within the
meome stotement

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Propesty, plont and equipment are siated of histoncal cost less deprecianon less any
recognised impairmen losses Cost ncludes expenditure that is directly attnbutable o the
acquisihen or construchion of these items Subsequent costs are mcluded 1n the asset’s
comying amount onby when it 1s probable thet future economic benefits associated with the
ttem will flow to the Group ond the costs can be measured 1ehobly

Ml other costs, including repairs and mowntenance costs, are charged to the income
statement in the penod in which they ore mcurred



Depreciohon ts prowded on ol property, plant ond equpment other thon freehold land ond
s coleulated on o reducing bofance basis o1 straighthne bosis, whithever ts deemed by the
directors o be more appropnate, to ollocote cost less ossessed residual vatue, other than
assels m the course of construchion, over the estimated usehul lves, os follows

Freehold buldings - between 2% and 10% per annum  straight line
Leasehold improvements over the terms of the lease straught line
Plant and equipment - between 5% and 33% per anmum - straght line

The assets” useful lives and residual volves are reviewed ond, if appropriate, odjusted of
ench balonce sheet date

The gain of loss ansing on dispasal or scropping of om asset 15 determuned as the difference
between the soles proceeds, net of sellng costs, ond the camying amount of the osset and
ts recogmsed in e income stotement

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS OTHER THAN GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE
ASSETS WITH AN INDEFINITE LIFE

At each bolonce sheet dote, the Durectors review the cormying omounts of the Group's
tongible and infangible assets, other than goodwall and ntongible assets with on mdefinite
Iife, to deternune whether there is any mdicanon thol these assefs have suffered an
impoirment loss If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 1s
estmated in order to determme the extent of the impairment loss, if any Where the asset
does not generate cash flows that are ndependent from other assets, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cashrgenerating unit, (CGU) to which the osset belongs
With respect to property, plont ond equipment, ench store s considered fo be o (GU

and where onerous leases are noted the ossets of eoch indmadugl store g ndnidually
assessed for impawment

Recaverable amoun? 15 the hrgher of fair value less costs o sell ond value m use In
assessing value in use, the esimated future cash flows ore discounted to their prasent
volue using a pre-ox discount rate that reflects current market ossessments of the fime
volue of money and the nsks specrfic to the osset for whnch the eshmates of futura cosh
flows hove not been odjusted

If the recoveroble amount of on asset (or (GU) 15 estimated to be less them its canmying
amoynt, the corrying omount of the asset (CGU) s reduced to its recovesable amount
An mpaiment loss 15 recognised os an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset
s comed of o revalued omount, i which cose the imparrment loss 15 treated o5 0
revalaiion decrense

Impament losses recogmsed for (GU's to which goodwill hos been allocated are aedited
whally fo the cormpag amount of goodwrll Any remaning impaument loss 15 charged pro
sata fo the ather ossefs in the (GU

Where an impanment loss subsequently reverses, the corrying amount of the osset (CGU)
15 increased to the rewsed eshmate of s recoverahle omount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determuned
had no imparment loss been recognised for the asset {CGU) m pror penods A reversal of
an impairment loss 1s recognised in the income statement immediately

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue 1s meosured ot the fair value of the consideration receved, or recewable, and
represents omounts tecervable for goods supphied, stated net of discounts, refuins and
volue cdded toxes

In the case of goods sold threugh retorl stotes, revenue 1s recognised af the point of sale
of a product to the customer, less provision for retums Accumulared expenence 1s used
to estmate and provide for such returns of the tme of the sale Refoil soles are usuolly in
cash, by debit cord or by credit cord

In the case of goods sold on the wntemet revenus s tecognised at the pont that the nsks
and rewards of the mventory hove possed o the customer, which s the pomt of delivery
to the customer Transochions ove sestled by aredi card of payment cord Provisions are
made for internet credit notes based on the expected leve! of retums, which m furn 1s
hased upon the histoncal rate of retums

In the case of income generated from trade marks and heences, revenug 1s lecogmsed on
on occruols basis i accordance with the relevont ogreements or on o transachonal bosis
when revenue 15 linked to sals or puschase volumes

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

The Group presents gs excephionol fems on the foce of the income stotement, those
signiicant irems of ncome and expense which, becouse of therr size, noture and
infrequency of the events gning nse o them, merit seporote presentohon to ollow
shurehelders to understond hetter the elements of financal performance in the year,

50 05 1o faciltote companson with pnor penods and ossess rends in finanaiol performonce
more readily

INTEREST INCOME
Inferest mcome 15 reported on an occrval bosis using the effectve interest method

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The presentanonal currency of the Group is steding The funchonal currency of the
Company 15 abso sterhng Foreign currency transachons ore fronslated nto sterbing using
the exchonge rates prevailing on the dates of the tiansachons Exchonge differences of
the Company ansing on the settlement of monetary tems, and on the refranslation of
mangtory items, ore ncluded in the ncome statement for the penod

Exchange differences ansing on the retranslation of nor-monetary tems cormed ot fox
value ore mcluded in the income statement for the period except for differences onsing

on the retranslanon of non-monstary items i 12spect of which gains and losses are
recogmsed in ather comprehensive income For such nom-manetary items, ony exchonge
compenent of that gaun or loss 1s also recogmised duectly in other comprehensive income
Monetary ossets ond habehtes denominated in foreign curencies are hansloted ot the rate
of exchange ruling ot the balance sheet date

{n consolidohon, the ossets ond lobihes of foreign operations which have o functional
curendy other than sterling ore franslated into sterling at foreign exchange rotes wling
at the balance sheet date The revenues ond expenses of these subsidiary undertakings
are translated of average rates applicable in the penod All resulting exchenge diferences
are recognised in other comprehensive ncome ond documented n o separate component
of equity

When a foreign operation 1s sold, the amulaiive exchange differences that have been
recogmised as o separaie component of equity ore reclossified fram equity to the ncome
statement when disposal s recognised

In erder fo mihgate its exposure to certain fareign exchange nsks, the Group enters into
forword contracts {(see chief executive’s report ond the cosh flow hedging accounting policy
on poge 65

INVENTORIES

Inventaries ora volued at lower of tost and net reahsable volue Cost includes the
purchase price of the manufactured products, matenals, direct labour, fronsport costs and
o proporhon of applicoble overheods Cost is calculated using the weighted averoge cost
method Net reahisoble value 1s bosed on the eshmated selling prce less oll eshmated
selling costs

The company recenves trode discounts ond rebates from suppliers based upon the volume
of orders ploced m a gven hme window ond o5 a contibution fowards markefing costs
Where there 15 suffictent certamty that a discount or rebote will be recerved in the future
thot refotes to lustonc purchases this is reflected in the cost of mventones

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

Loans ond recervables are recagrised inehally at foir value plus ransachon costs ond
subsequently measured of amorhsed cost under the effectve nterest method less provision
for impament Prowision for imparment s estabfished when thera 15 objectve ewdence
the the Growp wall not be oble to collect amounts due occording to the onginal terms

of the recervable The amount of the impaument i the difference between the asset’s
carrying amourt and the present volue of the eshmated future cosh Aows, discounted of
the onginal effectve interest iaie
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 APRIL 2015

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cosh ond cash equwvalents incude cash m hand and deposits held on cafl, fogether with
other short term tughly hguid mvestments thot are seadily convertible to known cmounts
of cash and which are subject fo an msignificant sk of changes i velug

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trnde and other payobles are nmelly meoswed of far value, and are subsequently
megsured of omortised cost, using the effectve mterest method

TAXATION

Tax expense compnses current and deferred tox Tox »s recognised in the mcome
statement, except to the extent it relotes o 1tems recognised in other comprehensive
income or durectly n equiy

Deferred toxation 1s calculnted using the habiity method, en temporory differences
ansing between the tox bases of assafs and labiliies and thewr comrying amaunts in the
consofidated Fnanaol Stotements However, f the defened tax onses from the minal
tecogninon of goodwill of mihal recogrusion of on assed or habality in o transachion other
than o business combinanion that ot the e of e mansachon affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss, it 15 not accounted for Defered tax on temporary diferences
ossocoted with shares w subsidianes 15 not provided if reversal of thess temporory
diFferences con be controlled by the Group and it 15 probable that reversal will not occur
i the foreseeatde futwie In addition, tax losses ovallable to be camed forword as wel
os other Income tax credits to the Group are assessed for recogniiion s deferred 1ax
pssets Defened tox s determined using 1o rates ond lows that have been enacted {or
substantvely enacted) by the balance sheet dote and are expected to apply when the
related deferred tax asset 1s reahsed or the deferred tax hiobility 15 settled

Deferred tox hobilihes are provided in full

Deferred tax assets ore recognised to the extent that it 1s proboble that future toxoble
profits will be ovorlohle agamst which the temporary differences can be utiised

Changes i cunient ond deferred tax ossets or hobilies ore recognised as o component
of tox expensa in the Income statement, except where they relate to tems that are
recorded in ather comprehensive imcome or choiged or credited durectly to equity in which
case the related deferred tox 15 olso charged to other comprehensive income or vedited

directly fo equity

PENSIONS
The Group operctes penston plans for the benefit of certmn employees, nduding both
defined contmbution ond defined benefit plans

In relanon 1o 1fs defined conterbuhon plans, the Group makes contnbuans to
independently admimstered plans, the contribuhons being recognised as an expense
when they fall due The Group has no lego or constructive obliganon to make any fusther
payments to the plans other than the contrbutions due

in relonon to s defined henefst schemes, the Group recognises i ifs balance sheet the
present value of it defined benefit obhigonons less she fair value of plon assets The
current service cost 1s chorged ogomst operating profit Intetest on the schemes hobilines is
included in finance costs

The defined benefit obganon is colculoted af each period end by independent actuanes
using the projected unit aredit method The present value of the obligation 1s determined
by discounning the esimoted futurs cash outflows using interest rates of high quality
corporate bonds thot ore denominated m the currency in which the benefits wall be paid
and which hove terms to motunity approximanng the terms of the reloted

pension lobilihes

Achional gams and losses onsing from expenence adyustments and chonges in octuonal
essumphons are reflected i other comprehensive ncome i the penod in which they anse

BORROWINGS AND BORROWING COSTS

Borrowings ate racogmised mrhally at for value, net of ransachon costs incurred, and
subsequently ot amorhised cost Any difference between the proceeds (nef of tronsaction
costs} and the redemphon value 15 recogmsed in the ncome statement over the penod of
the borrowngs using the effectve nferest method

Botrowings are clussried os current habilines untess the Group hos an uncondinonal nght
to defer settlement of the hobibty for of least 12 months from the balonce sheet date

Bomowng costs, bemg interest and other costs incurred in connechion with the serviang of
borrowings, are recognised os an expense when incured

PROVISIONS

A provisian 15 tecogmisad when the Group has o present legal or constructive obligation as
o result of a past event, i 15 probable thot on outflow of resowrces will be required fo seftle
the obhganon and o rehable estmote can be mode of the amount of the obhgation

The Group provides for its legol responsibility for dilopidanon costs following odvice from
chartered surveyors and previous expenience of exit costs The estmated cost of fulfilling
the leasehold diapdations obkgonons 15 discountad to present volue and onatysed
between non<apital and capital components The capital element is recogmised s 0
decommussiaming <ost ond depreciated over the life of the asset The non-apitol element
taken to the ncome statement in the first yeor of the lease where the cost it represents 1s
of ne losting benefit to the Group or us landlord "Weor and tear’ costs are expensed to the
mcome statement Provisions for onerous lease contracts are recognised when the Group
beligves the unavoidoble costs of meehng the lease obligohons exceed the economic

benefits expected to be recewved under the lease

LEASES

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group hos substomhally all the nsks
and rewords of ownership are clossified os finance leases Finance lenses are copiralised
at the lease’s incephion i the lower of the foir value of the leased asset and the present
value of the mimmum lease payments Each lease payment 15 allocoted between the
liabrhty and finance chorges so os to achieve o constant rofe on the finance balonce
outstanding The nsset subject 1o the finance lease s depreciated over the shorter of iis
wselul Ife ond the lease tesm The comespanding rental obligahons, net of finance charges,
ore included os o hability

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group does not have substantiolly ol
the nsks and sewards of ownership ore classified os operanng lenses Poyments made
under operafing leoses ore cherged fo the income statement on o straightine basis over
the lease term Incentrves prowided by the lessor ore credited fo the income stafement on
o stroightdine basis over the mimmum lease ferm

Confingent rental payments, above standord payments, are candifional on the Group's
aperanng performance denved from the lecse ftem, (e g turmoves levels) These are
expensed in the panod in which they ure incurred

Rental meorms from operating leases where the Group ocfs as a lessor 1s recogmsed on o
sitmghiine basts over the term of the relevant lease

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

The most significant exposure fo foreign exchange fluctuations relates to purchoses made
in foresgn currencies, principally the US Dollar The Group's policy 15 ta redute substanhally
the nsk ossociated with purchases denominated i foreign currencies by using forword
fixed rate currency purchase canfrocts, foking mio sccount any forexgn currency cash flows

Denvative finoncial instruments ore measured of fou value Whete denvatives do not
qualify for hedge accouning, any gains or fosses on remeosurement are smmediately
recognised m the income statement Where desvaives qualiy for hedge accounting,
tecognihon of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relohonship
and the tem being hedged

In order to qualify for hedge accounning, the Group 1s required to document fram nception
the celaionship between the item being hedged and the hedging mstument The Group
15 also required o document and demonshiate an assessment of the relationship befween
the hedged irem and the hedgung instrument, which shows that the hedge will be highly
effective on an ovgaing bass This effectveness tesing 1s performed of each perniod end
to ensure that the hedge remains highly effective




CASH FLOW HEDGING

Uenvetive financeol instruments are classified as cash flow hedges when they hedae the
Group’s exposure to vanobufity m cosh flows thot ore either attnbutable 10 o parncular nsk
ossouated with o recogrused asset or Lobiity, or o hughly probable forecost tonsaction

The effectve element of oy gamn or loss from remensunng the denvative instrument 1s
recognised directly in other comprehensive income

The associated cumulotive gain of loss 15 redossified from other comprehanswve ncome m
the: some pancd or peniods dunng which the hedged transachon offects the profit or loss
The clossificaton of the effectve porhon when recogmsed in the income stotement 15 the
same o5 the classificahon of the hedged tronsachon Any element of the remensurement
of the demvatve instrument which does not meet the cntena for an effective hedge s
recognuised immediately i the income statement within finance ncome or costs Hedge
occounting s discontinued when the hedging mstrument expires or ss sold, terminated

or exerosed, or no longer qualfies for hedge accounting At that point in hme, gny
cumulgtve goin of loss on the hedging instrument recogmised sn equity 15 reteanad in
equity unhl the forecosted ransoction occurs I o hedged transaction 1s ng longer expected
10 accur, the net cumulative goin or loss recogmsed 1n other comprehensive income 15
reclassihied from equity to the income stofement as o redlossificotion odjusiment

TREASURY SHARES

The purchase prce of the Group’s own shares tha it acquires s recognised as ‘Treasury
shares” within equity When shares are tronsferred out of reasury the difference between
the market value and the overoge purchose price of shares sold out of treasury 15
transferred to retained eomings

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT TRUST

An Employee Benefit Trust has been established for the purposes of safsfyng certan
share-based awords The Group has ‘dedacto’ contial over the special purpose entity This
Trust 15 fully consalidated within the aecounts The cost of shares acquired by the Sparts
Direct Employee Benefit Trust 1s recognised wathin ‘own shoreeserve’ m equity

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Group 1ssues equity-settled shore-based payments to certain Directors and employees
These are mensured gt fow volue o the dote of grant, which 1s expensed fo the
consolidated income statement on g staightdine hosis over the vesting peniad, with the
conesponding credit going to equity

Non market veshng condions are nat token into account in determining grant date far
value Instead, they ore taken into sccount by adusting the number of equity nstruments
o vest

Faw value 15 based on the market share prce on the grant dote The expected staff
numbers used i the model hos been adjusted, bosed on management’s best eshmate, for
the effects of non-transferahiliry, exerase testrchons, ond behowourol considerations

A sharebased poyment charge of £10 1m was recogmsed in selling, distmbution and
administrative expenses for the 52 weeks ended 26 Apnl 2015 The key detorls in respect
of the share scheme charges are set out i nate 21

The credit faor the shore bosed payment chorge does not equal the chorge per the mcome
statement a3 if excludes omounts recognised in the bolance sheat in relahon to the
expected natonal insurance contnbutons for the shares

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

An equity instrument rs any contvac! thot evidences o residual infesest in the assets of
the Group after deducting ofl of s babdities Equity mstruments issued by the Group are
recorded ot the proceeds recewed, net of ony direct 1ssue costs

DIVIDENDS

Diwdends are recogmised as @ liobilty n the Group’s Finoncil Statements and os o
deduchon from equity m the penod in which the divdends ore declored Where such
dnedends ore proposed subject to the approval of shareholtders, the dradends are regarded
as declored once shoreholder appraval hos been obtoined

MATERIALITY

In prepanng the Finanaal Statements, the Board considers both quontieive and
quahtatve foctors in forming its [udgements, and related disclosues, and are mundful of
the need to hest serve the imerests of ifs stokeholders and to ovosd unnecessory clutter
borne of the disclosure of immatenal tems

In nakmg this assessment the Board considers the nature of each tem, es well os s
size, n assessing whether any disdosure omissians or misstatements could influence the
decistons of users of the Finoncial Stotements

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“STANDARDS")
IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

Ar the date of authonsation of these consobdoted Financial Stotements, the intemgtienal
occounting standards boord (*LASB™) and international financia! reparting standards
commatiee ("IFRSC™) hove ssued the following standords ond nterpretations which are
effectve for annual eccounting penods begnamg on or after the stoted effecive date
These stenderds ond interpretafions are not effectrve for and hove not been apphed in the
preparghion of the consolidoted Financial Stofements

« RS 9 Finanoal Instuments (IASB effective date 1 Jonuary 2018)
« JFRS 15 Revenue from Controcts with Customers (effectve 1 Jonuary 2017)

® Defined Benefit Plons Employee Contmbutions {Amendments to 1AS 19) (IASB
effectve dote 1 July 2014}

» Clanfication of Acceptable Methods of Depreaation ond Amortisahion
Amendments so A5 16 ond IAS 38 (IASB effectrve date 1 January 2016)

 Amendments to 1AS 27 Equity Method in Separate Finoncinl Statements (effective
1 Jonuary 2016)

» Amendments 1o IFRS 10, IFRS 12 ond IAS 28 Investment Entities Applying the
Consolidahon Excaphion (effective T lanuary 2014)

o Disclosure Inmatwe Amendments to JAS 1 Presentahon of Fnancial Stotements
(effectve T Jonuary 2014)

The drrectors anticpate that the adophion of these standards and inferpretations in future
penods will have no motenal impact on the Finanaol Statements of the Group

2. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The enticol accounting estimates and judgements mad by the Group ragarding the fture
o other key sources of esnmanon, uncertamty and judgement that may have o significont
nsk of gng nse to o matenol adjustment to the corrying values of assets and iabihnes
within the next fincnool year ore

IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL

The colculation for considering the imparment of the cormpng amount of goodwill requiees
a cemponson of the presant value of the (GU's to which the goodwill has been altocoted
to the value of goodwill ond associated assets n the bolance shees The calculanon of
present volues requues an estimanon of the future cash flows expected o anse from the
(6L’ ond the selechon of o sutable discount rate The key assumptions made in relanon
1o the impaument rewiew of goodwil are set out n note 15

IMPAIRMENT OF OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The colculahon for consdening the imparment of the cormang amouat of other infangible
assefs with an indefinite Ife, specifically bronds, trode marks and heences, requires

a comparson of the present value of the eelated cash flows to the value of the other
intangtble assess i the holance sheet The colculation of present value requires an
estmation of the fuiure cash lows expeted to anse from the other infangible ossafs and
the selechon of o sutoble discount rate The key assumphans made in relonen 1o the
imparment review of other intangble assets are st out m note 15

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING
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USEFUL ECONOMIC LIFE OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS

For infongtble assets which have o finite hfe, the directors revisit ther estmote of useful
economyc Ife ot each penod end and revise accordingly Licences ond trade morks typrcedly
have a life of between 5 and 15 yeors

IDENTIFICATION AND VALUATION OF ACQUIRED INTANGIBLE ASSETS
On acquisition, each matenal, seporable infangible asset 1s identiied and valued by

the Directors Any such coleulanon 1s judgemental in nature s it 15 based on a
valuation methodology

Brand voluahons are typically valued using the rehef from royalty valuahon methadology

The noture and carrying amounts of these ossefs are sef out n note 15

IMPAIRMENT
The Drrectors review tha carrying omounts of the Group's tangible assets o determine
whether theze 1s any mdicanon that thse ossets have suffered an impairment loss

PROVISION FOR OBSOLETE, SLOW MOVING OR DEFECTIVE
INVENTORIES

The Direttors have applied thewr knowledge and expenence of the refo industry m
determinng the level and rotes of prowisioning required i caleulanng the apprepnate
uwentory carrying values The prowision indudes estimates for shnnkage, spailoge ond
slow-moving nems depending on the age and current sething prces of the indmadual
stock rtems

FINANCIAL POSITION OF RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The net defined benefit pension plon assets or habiities are recognised in the Group’s
balance sheet The determination of the finanaa! posiion requires ossumphons to be
mude regarding inter ala futore slary increoses, mortolity, discount rates ond inflation
The key assumptions mode m relahon to the penston plon are st out in note 24

PROVISION FOR DILAPIDATIONS AND ONEROUS LEASE CONTRACTS
The basss of the eshmanon of the prowsioning for dilapdations and onerous leose
controcts 15 detailed in the provisions accounting policy and note 26 Estimates and
judgements ore conhnually evaluated and are bosed on histoned! expenence, external
adwice ond ather factors, nduding expactahons of future events that are believed fo be
reasonable under the crcumstances Where on onerous lease has been identfied, the
assets dedicated to thot conhact are imparred

CALCULATION OF SHARE SCHEME CHARGE

A shorebosed poyment chargs 15 recognised in respect of share owards bosed on the
Durectors’ best estmata of the number of shares that vall vest The charge 15 colculated
based on the fair value on the gromt date, which 15 deemed to be the date on which the
entity ond counterparty reached o shored understanding of the scheme The key defods in
respect of the shore scheme charges are set ot n note 21

VALUATION OF INVESTMENTS

Where market data 1s not ovarloble fo ossist n voluing nvestments, manogement estimate
the for volue of the enterprise based on the current performance and financial posion of
the relevant compony

VALUATION QOF EQUITY DERIVATIVES

The value of equity denvatrves s calculated using o propuetory ophon priang model The
mode! output 1s the result of o number of nputs nduding, amongst other things, the terms
of the ophon (strke price, tme to expiry, etc ), the prevaling shore prce, mterast rates,
the volatilty of the underlying stock, ond dwidends poid by the underbying company

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s current actvines result m the followang financial nsks and set out below ore
monagement’s responses to thase nsks in arder fo mimmise any resuling odverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK
The Grawp 1 exposed 1o foreign exchonge nsk prnapally wa

o Trensochonal exposure from the cost of future purchases of goods for resole, where
those purchases ote denominated m o currency other than the functional currency of the
purchasing company Transachanal exposures thot could sgnificantly impact the mcome
statement are hedged These exposures are hedged via forword foreign currency confracts
which are designated os cash flow hedges The nohonal and far value of these controcts
is shown w note 27

b Net mvestment exposure, from the foir value of net mvastments outside the UK
The Group hedges its mfemafional investments vio foreign currency fransachns and
borrowangs in matching currencies

¢ Loons to nondK subsidhanes These are hedged wia forergn currency transachons ond
barrowings in matching currencies, which ore nat formally designated as hedges, os goins
and losses on hedges and hedged loans will naturally offset

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group has net barrowngs, which are prnaipally of floohng interest rates linked

to bank base rotes or LIBOR The Group daes not currently use interest rafe financol
Instruments fo hadge s exposure to inferest iate mavemants The Group requlorly
monitors and reacts accordmgly fo any exposure to fluctuahions in inferest rotes and the
impact on its moenetary assets ond hobibites

CREDIT RISK

The Directors have o credit policy in place and the exposure to credit nsk 1s monitored on
an on-going basis Credit evaluations are performed on oll customers requinng credit over o
certain ameunt The Group does not require collateral in respect of financial ossets

At eoch balonce sheer date, there ware no sgnificant concentrations of credit sk The
maxmum exposure to credit sk 15 represented by the camying amount of each finanaol
asset in the bolonce shest

Investments of cash surpluses, borrowings and denvotive instruments are mode through
banks and compames which must fulfit redit rting ond wvestment critena epproved by
the Board

LIQUIDITY RISK

The aueulahility of adequate cash resourcss is managed by the Group through uhlisahon
of its revohang credit foctines together with equity and retoed profs thereby achieving
continuity of funding and short4erm flexbuliry

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
A description of the Group’s obyactives, policies and pracesses for managing copital are
included in note 27




4. SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

{FRS 8 - “operating segments’ requwes the Group's segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about companents of the Growp that are reqularly reviewed by the Chief
Operating Decision Moker to ossess performance ond allocate resaurces acoss each operating segment

The Chief Operniing Deaision Maker has been identéied as the Executve Directors and the operating segments are idennfied os the store fosan o brond, i fine wath the internal reporting
to the Execute Directors

Sales and gross profit for each operommg segment, os wel os underymg EBITDA, ore the mom meosores used by the Exetuive Drectors 1o ssess perfoimonce
In occordance with paragraph 12 of IFRS 8 the Group’s operchng segments have been oggreguted ito the followang reportoble segments

* Sports Retail = includes the results of the UK ond fnternatonal reta neswork of sparts stores along with reloted websites,

* Premium Lifestyle — includes the results of the premium retal busiesses such as Crwise, Flannels and USC, and

# Brands — includes the results of the Group's portfolio of internanonally recognised brands such os Everlast, Lonsdale and Dunlop

Infarmahion regarding the: Group’s repartable segments for the 52 weeks ended 26 Apnl 2015, os well as o recancilatn of reported prafit for the penod to enderlying EBITDA, 15
presented on pages 67 to 69

Segmentol information for the 52 weeks ended 26 Agnl 2015

Retcll Bremds ERzinations Teted
(E000} {£'000) {£°000) {£°000)
Sparts Retoll  Premiwm Liestyle Tatal Totdl
Sales to extemal customers 1,398,547 07,623 2,606,170 126,350 2,832,560
Sales o other segments 25,480 {25,480)
Revenue 2,398,547 207,623 2,606,170 251,870 (25,480) 2,832,540
Gross profit 1,069,088 80,523 1,145,611 91,201 1,240,812
Operanng profit before foreign exchonge ond excephenat tems 285,534 (1Li10) 274,364 27,984 302,348
Operating grofit 783,347 (11,278) 272,069 13,512 295,581
(her nvestment income 14,104
Finonce mcome 8,289
Finonce costs {7,480
Share of profits of ossocated undertakings 2,959
Profit before taxahon 313,446
Taxahon (72,093}
Prafit for the penod 241,353
Sales to other segments ore priced of cost plus o 10% mark-up
Other segment 1rems mcluded in the income statemen for the 52 weeks ended 26 Apal 2015
Retall Bromds Toted
{£°000} £000) {£°000)
Sports Reted  Premivm Lifertyle Totdi
Depreciohon 57,855 2,543 60,398 2,026 62,424
Amortsohion 548 687 1,235 4,122 5,357

Accelerated deprecihion and amormsghon included withun excephangl items are excluded from the above

tnformatian regarding segment assats and liabikines as o 26 Apnl 2015 ond copal expenditure for the 52 weeks then ended

Sports Reted  Premlvm Lifestyl Bronds Eiesinationy Torad

[E'000) (£'000) (£7000)} [E'000) (£°0040)

Investments m ossocioted undertokings 38,133 38,133
(ither ossets 1,688,779 24,446 190,772 (168,447 1,735,550
Totol assets 1,726,912 24,444 190,772 {168,447 1,773,683
Total iobihies {646,836) (60,255) (73,488) 160,447 {612,132)
Tongble osset addinons 93,429 23N 1,592 92,342
Intongble osser oddions 108 1889 2937

Totol copetal expenditore 93,537 2,34 4421 100,279

FVERYTHING 1S CHANGING
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Segmental mformation for the 52 weeks ended 27 Apal 2014

Retait Bronds Himinatioas Tote!
{£°000) (£000) {E'000) {£'C00)
Sports Retal  Premium Lifestyls Total Total
Sales to extemal cusiomers 2,274,365 214,064 2,488,431 11,527 2,705,958
Sales to ather segments 203 203 29,938 (30,141)
Revenue 2274568 214,066 2,488,634 247 465 (30,141) 2,705,958
Ll
s Grass profi 974957 86,263 1,061,215 93,707 1,154,922
'g (perating profit before foreign exchange and excephonal items 254,736 {25,779) 229,007 23,825 252,832
E Operanng profit 151,762 (25,588) 226,174 72957 - rVAK)
= Other investment mcame 7,017
= Finance income 891
= Finance costs {19,853)
Share of profiss of ossocared undertakings 2,266
E Profit before taxaton 239 452
g Tegon (59,839)
E Profit for the period 179,613
§ Sales to other segments are pced of cost plus o 10% morkup
Other segment items ncluded i the income stotement for the 52 weeks ended 27 Aprl 2014
Retedl Bronds Totdd
(£000) (£°000) {E'000)
Sports Retall  Premism Lifestyle Tetd
Depreviation 50,549 4,689 55,238 1,745 56,963
Amorhsahan 1,348 687 2,035 4,797 6,832
8 Impairment 284 284
Infarmanon requrding segment assets ond lobilines as ot 27 Apnl 2014 and copirol expenditure for the 52 weeks then ended
Sparts Retell  Premivm Hestyle Bresds Himingtions Tatal
(£000) (£'000) (£/000) (€000 (£'000}
investments in assocated undertakings and join ventures 42,176 413 41,763
Other assefs 1,609024 56,601 183,103 (229,752 1,658,976
Totol assets 1,651,200 6,601 182,690 (229,752 1,700,739
Totol labilives (893,269} (123,554) (96,114) 119,752 (883,185)
Tangible asset oddinens 57,365 6,918 2,941 67,304
Intangible osset addihons 259 1,568 1,827
Totol capifal expenditure 57,624 6,978 4,509 69,131
GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION
Segmental information for the 52 weeks ended 26 Aprd 2015
UK Nea UK Elminations Total
(£'000) {£7000) {E°000) (£7000}
Segmentol revenue from extemal customers 2,252,360 580,200 2,632,560
Totol capital expenditure 81,793 18,486 100,279
Segmental ossets 1,564,854 377 266 (168,447) 1,773,683
Segmentol informatian for the 52 weeks ended 27 Apnl 2014
uK Non-UK Elkninartions Tatel
(E'000) (£000) {£'000) (£7000)
Sepmental revenue from extemal customers 2,063,724 642,234 2,705,958
Totl copital expenditure 51,525 17,606 49,131
Segmental ossefs 1,526,405 404,086 {229.752) 1,700,739




The follawing rable recanciles the reported cperohng profit to the undertyng EBITDA os it 15 one of the main measures used by the Chief Operhng Decision Moker when revewsng performance
Reconcliotion of operating prafit to undedbung EBITOA for the 52 week gennd ended 26 Apal 2015

Sporrs Rercd  Presssm | Hestyh Broads Total
(€000} (£'000) (£'000) (£°000}
Operating profit / (loss) 283,347 {11,278) 23,512 295,581
Depreanon 57,855 2543 2,024 62,424
Imparrment 548 687 4127 5,357 <
Shara of profit / (loss} of ossocated undertokings 3,009 (50 2,959 §
Repnﬂad EBITDA 344,759 (8,048) 29,610 366,321 é
Charges for the share scheme 10,110 10,110 4
Exceptont vems (3395) 6,445 3,050 =
Reased FX gain / {loss) 5332 358 (1,973 317 E
Underlying £BITDA 356,806 (7.690) 34,082 383,198 =
Reconclionon of operating prafit to underng EBTTDA for the 52 week penod ended 27 Apnl 2014 a
Sperts Retcl]  Prevuinm Libstyle Bronds Tatal e
{€°000) {£°000) {£°000) {£"000) E
Operating profit / {loss) 251,762 {25,588) 22,957 249,131 a
Deprecaron 50,549 4,689 1725 56,963 4
Impairment 284 284 g
Amaortsation 1,348 687 4,797 6,837
Share of profit / {loss) of assounted undertokings 2,679 (413) 2,266
Reported £BITDA 306,338 {20,212) 29,350 315476
Charges for the share scheme 11,927 11,927
Excephional items 5,531 5.53)
Realsed FX (ioss) / gon {2,557} (141) B48 (1,830)
Underlying EBITDA 31,239 (20,353) 30,18 331,104
5. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
52 weeks anded
26 Aprdl 2015 27 bl 2014
{£°000) {£'000)
Rent recevoble 4,851 6,118
Other 349 2,445
8,345 8,583
6. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
52 weeks ended
26 Mpril 2015 27 i 2014
(€000 (£ 000)
Profit an sale of freehold property 10,288
Impoirment and accelerated deprecighon and omorhsation (13,338) {5,531)
(3,050) {5,531)

The impairment ond oceelerated deprecation and cmartisahon relates 1o 0 change i the eshmated useful kfe of certn tangible and infangible assets and imparment against goodwill In
the year Inuded wathin thus figure 1s an accelerated amortisahon chorge of £6m due to o change in the usefuf economic Iife of centain ntongibles in the year from 10 years 1o 5 yenrs

The profit on sofe of freehold property of €10 3m medudes to the sole of o fieehold worehouse fos €21 2m, reclising o profis of €17 Im
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7. OPERATING PROFIT
Operating prafit for the penod s stoted after charging / {crediting}
57 weels ended
26 Aprll 2015 27 dped 2004
(£'000) i 000)
Foreign exchange losses / {goins} 3N {1,830
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
owned ossets 62,424 56,963
Amortisanon of infangible assets 5203 4,832
Impowrnent of ntonghle ossers 204
Operating lease rentals
Lond and buddings 142,571 127,341
Qther 751 708
Aceeleroted deprecionon and amorhsahon included within excephonol items. ore excluded from the obove
SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE GROUP’S AUDITOR
For the 52 weeks ended 26 Aprl 2015 the remuneration of the ouditors, Gran: Thornton UK LLP and assoooted firms, wos us detoiled belaw
52 weeks eaded
26 Apri) 2015 27 bl 2014
{€'000) {E 000)
AUDIT SERVICES
Audnt of the Company’s ond the consolidated Finonca! Stotements 105 85
Audit of subsidiary compomees’ Finongial Statements 650 585
NON-AUDIT SERVICES
Other serices refanng fo foxahon 748 249
Al other serces 484 208
An explanahion of how oudtor objechity and independence 15 safequorded when nan-audit sences ore prowided by the ouditors 15 set cut in the Audit Commuttee Report on page 40
8. PAYROLL COSTS
The overnge monshly number of employees, mcluding Execunve Directurs, employed by the Group dunng the penod was
52 weeks ended
26 Aprd 2015 27 kol 2014
{Number) Norbary
Retoil stores 13,414 13,609
Dhstnbution, odmimstrohon and other 3,793 3556
17,207 17,165
The aggregate poyroll costs of the employees, nduding Executive Directurs, were os follows
52 weeks ended
26 Aprid 2015 27 ko 2014
{£'000) (5 000)
Wages ond salanes 290,769 778,714
Sool secunty costs 31,256 27,835
Pension costs 1,520 1399
323,545 307,948
& sharebosed payment choage of £10,110,000 (2014 €11,927,000) was recognised in respec! of share owaids during the year This 15 ndusive of the related charges for expected nanonal nsurance
tontnbutions
Aggregate emoluments of the Directors of the Compeny are summansed below
52 weeks ended
26 Rpell 2015 97 bk 2014
(£'000) (5 000)
_Mggregate emelyments 477 605

Further detoils of Dhrectors’ remunecahon are given in the Directors” Remuneration Repart on pages 44 to 52

Deturls of certoin key monagement remuneration we given in note 33




9. OTHER INVESTMENT INCOME

52 weeks ended
26 Agrl 2015 M A 2014
(£000) (£ 000)
Profit on disposal of availoble-forsgle finoncial ssets 3,678 5413
Foir volug gan on dervatve instruments 8,895
Dndend moome hom invesments 1,531 1,604
14,104 7,017
10. FINANCE INCOME
57 woeks eaded
26 April 2015 27 apel 2014
{£000) (£ 000}
Bank interest receivoble 929 761
Other interest recervoble 58 130
Faw volue adjustment to forward forergn exchange confracts ! 7,302
8,289 89!

™ The fou volue edgrstment to farwtird forexgn exchonge comtmcts relates to deferences between the fow valua of fosword forexgn cumency contracts not designated for heage occountiag from one penod end to the next

11. FINANCE COSTS
52 weeks anded
26 Apll 2015 7 Al 2014
{£'000) (€ 000}
Irterest on bank loans ond overdrafts 6,692 7513
Inferest on ather loans and fingnce leoses 153 600
Interest on refirement benefit obligations (note 24) 647 547
Four velue odjustment i forward foreign exchange contracts 0 11,193
7487 19,853

1 The four valus adwsiment o forwgrd foreign exchonge contmacts relates to differences between the foir volue of forward foreign aurrency controcts not deswnated for hedgs accounting from one pend end to the next

12. TAXATION
57 weeks ended
26 Aprll 2015 27 dpid 20M
{£000) {£°000)
Current fox 74,072 57,569
Adstment in respect of prior penods 5,140 (280)
19,12 57,289
Deferred tox (note 25) {7,119) 2,550
72,093 59,839
TAX RECONCILIATION
Profit before toxation 313,446 239,452
Toxation ot the standard rate of tax m the UK of 21% (2014 23%) 65,924 55,074
Tax effects of
Expenses not deducnble for tox purposes 2,178 1,445
(versegs ax losses 2,587 2,509
Other fox odjustments (4,205) 1,011
Adjustments i respect of prior penods Cument fox 514 {260)
Adwstments wn respect of pnor pencds  Deferred tox 3 80

72,093 59,839

FVERYTHING 1S CHANGING
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE FROM TOTAL AND CONTINUING OPERATIONS ATTRIBUTABLE

TO THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS

BaseC eormngs per share 1s calculated by divding the eamings attmbutable to ordinory shareholders of the pasent by the wexghted avercge number of ordinary shares autstonding dunng

the year

For dluted eornings per share, the weightad ovesage number of shares, 592,294,371 (2014 585,513,537), 15 adpusted to assume conversion of oll diutve potential ordmary shores

under the Group’s Share Schemes, being 24,200,000 (2014 32,676,278), to give the diluted weighted averoge number of shores of 616,494,371 (2014 618,189,815)

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

52 woeks ended
26 April 2015 26 April 2015 I dpd 2014 W hped 2014
Bash Diluted Basic Dilutad
{£7000) {E£'000) (£ 000} (£'000)
Profit far the penod 240,397 240,397 180,245 180,245
Nember in thawsonds Number m thoustnds
Weighted overage aumber of shares 592,294 416,494 585,514 618,190
Penca per shure Pance pes share
Earnings per share 406 390 308 292

UNDERLYING EARNINGS PER SHARE

The undertying emings per share reflects the underying performance of the business compared with the prior yeor and is calculoted by dmding undertying earmings by the weighted
averoge number of shares for the penod Underlying earnings 15 used by monagement os o measure of profitability wathin the Group Underlying earings ts defied as profit for the penod

attnbutable o equity halders of the porent for each finanal period but excluding the post tox effect of certain non-rading stems

The Directors believe that the undertying earnings before excephone! ttems end underyng eamings per share measures provide addinonal useful informanion for shareholders on the
undertying performance of the business, ond are consistent with how business performance s measured internaly Undedying earmings 15 ot o recognesed profit measure under FRS ond

moy not be duectly comporable with “adjusted” profit measures used by other companies

57 waeks eaded
26 Aprll 2015 26 Aprll 2015 27 tped 2014 27 A 2014
Bask Oitated Basic Whred
{£°000) {€°000) 15 000) {5 900}
Profit for the penod 240,397 240,397 180,245 180,245
Post tox odjustments 1o profit for the penod for the following non-rading ems
Reahsed loss / (gain) on forward exchange contracts 2,862 2,862 {1,379 {§,373)
Four value odjustment to forward foreign exchange confrocts (12479 (12,412 8,395 8,395
Profit on disposal of Iisted mvestments (2,832) (2,832 {4,060) (4,060)
Impairment of fixed assets 4148 4148
Profis on disposal of propersy (7,921} 7,921)
impmment and accelerahon omornsohan & depreciation 10,270 10,270 284 184
Undesyng profit far the penod 230,304 230,304 187,63% 187,639
Number bn thowsands Neornber i thousands
Weighted overage number of shores 592,294 516,494 585,514 618,190
Pence per share Panze per shars
Underlying earmings per shore 389 374 n 303




14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Frechokd kiad Long-temm kensebhald Skert-term lessebold Plaat ond

A “TE°000) o
osT
Ar 28 Apdl 2013 237,488 11,961 108,078 387,255 744,782
Exchange differences (3.634) 358 (8,884) {12,160
Acqusinons 48,448 ¥ 15,476 83,963 S
Addinors 70,308 904 £,59) 39,001 87,304 =
Ehminated on disposals {754) {430) {2,228) {6,956) (10,368) §
At 27 Ronl 2004 322,356 12,832 112,441 425,892 873,51 g
Exchange dfferences {785) 927 2 (9,458) (9,314 g
Arquisitians 79 779 o
Addittons 23,51 12 7.8%0 5,869 97 342 2
Elimingtad on disposols (21,740 (892 (2,86)) {12,502} {37,995)
A1 26 Apnd 2015 323,402 12,879 117,472 470,580 924 333 3
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT ﬁ
Ar 28 Aprit 2013 (33,504) (4,814} (74,380 (300,041) {412,748) a
Exchange diferences 137 (137) 186) 72 7,063 g
Charge for the peniod {7,567} (150} (6,444) (42,808 (56,943) a
IMPAIRMENT (5,531 {3,531
Elminated on dispasals 745 795 5,277 7017
At 27 Apnl 2014 {40,189) (5,101} {80,002) (335,868) {461,160}
Exchange differences 488 (203) 46 9,872 14,203
Charge far the penod (11,478 (140) (7,129 (42,177 (62,924}
Elimnated on disposais 1,035 127 162 10,946 12,290
A 26 Apnl 2015 (50,144) (5,317) (88,923) (357,207) (501,5%1) 73
NET BOOK AMOUNT
At 26 Apnl 2015 273,258 7.562 18,549 113,373 422,142
A 27 ol 2014 282,167 7,731 32439 90,024 412,341

Addinons in the year ndude £35 5m of assefs under constzuchar 1n relohon to our new Shirebrook warehouse
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Tredemarks and

Goadwill [iceaces Bronds Tatad

(E°000) {£°000} (€000} (£°000)
€0ST
A28 Apd 2013 146,938 57,895 50,99 285,824
Ansing on business combmahans 30,683 30,683
Addons through business combinohions 4,847 4,847
Other oddrhons 1,827 1,827
Disposals (4,053) (1,000) (5,053)
Exchange odjustment (8,348) (1,473} {7,705) {17,526)
At 27 Apnl 7014 145,220 62,096 73,286 300,602
Ansing on busingss combimahons 3,687 3,602
Other uddons 2937 1997
Disposals (7) {1,714} {1.716)
Exchange odjustment 5,908 599 6,599 14,106
At 26 Apnl 2015 175,808 63,518 79,885 319,611
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT
At 28 Apnk 2013 (17,133} (28,271) (45,404)
Amorhsohon choige (6,832) {6,832
Impuirment (284} (284)
Disposals 3.897 1,000 4,897
Exchonge odjustment 1,849 281 2,130
At 27 Agnl 2014 {11,671 (33,822 (45,493)
Amortsahon chorge (12,725) {12,725)
Impmrment {5,314 (5,314)
Disposals 1,607 1,607
Exchange odjustment {(2,289) {33) (2,322)
At 26 April 2015 {19,274) {44,973) {64,247)
NET BOOK AMOUNT
At 26 Aprl 2015 156,534 18,945 79,885 255,364
At 27 hpnl 2014 153,549 78,174 73,286 255,109

Amortisahon 15 charged to sefling, distnbution and admirisirative expenses in the consolidated income stotement

The carrying value of goodwill and brands that are considered to have an mdefiniie fe are llocated to the Group’s operating segments before aggregution With the excephon of Everlust,
none of the indnduc! cash-generating unis (CGUs} are considered matenal to goodwill or ndefinite Ife infangibles (Brands) The carrying value of goodwall and bronds oflocated to the
Group’s CGUs, {as oggregated except n the case of Everlast), s shown helow

Goadwill Broads

(£'000) (£°000)

UK Sports Retol 6,964 8,500
Intemational Sports Refol 33393
Premum Lifestyle 13,689
Brands (exd Everlast) 48,048

Everlosy 54,438 71,385

156,534 79,885

The Group tests e carrying amount of goodwill and assets with an indefinste hfe annually for impoirment ar more frequendy if there are mndicafions that thewr cairying value might be
impacred The carryng omounts of other mtangible assets are reviewed for impawrment if there 15 an indication of impairment

Imparment 15 cakeuloted by companng the carrying smounts to the value m use derved from discounted cash flow projactions for each CGU to which the intangible assets are llocated A
(6 15 deemed to be on indwidual foseis and these hove been grouped together ita smilar closses for the purpose of formulaiing operafing segments os reported m note 4

Yalue i use colculahons are based on five yeor management forecasts with o terminal growth rote apphed thereafter, represenfing management’s estimate of the long+erm growsh rate of
the sector served by the CGUs




The key assumphions, which ore equally apphicable to each (G, 1n the <osh flow projechons used to suppont the carrying amount of gosdwill and intangibles waih mdefinite ves as at 26

Apnl 2015 were os follows

UX Sperts  Internationdl Sparts Previsn Brasds (exd.
Retodl Retedl Everlast} Everkest
Sales growth 0%-5% 0% 10% 0% &% 0% S
Terminol soles growsh % 0% 2% 0% 2% 0%
Gross masgn 35% 45% 35% 50% 15% 50% 20% 30%
Capital expenditure NE €1m NIl £3m NIl £2m NI Sim
Discount rates 11 88% 11 88% 11 88% 17 33%

The Group Weighted Averoge Cost of Capral 1s used n UK Sports Retai, Internationa! Sports Retail, Premum Lfestyle and Bronds (exd Everlast) os these CGU's ore considered to hove

simifor nsk profles

The key assumphons ara based on monogement’s hustoncal expenence ond future plans for each CGU

A reosonably possible change m any key essumption would not couse the campng value of any (GU 1o exceed ifs recovercble omount

The infangeble ossets that have an ndefirute ife ore bronds and troding names ond ore considered to hove on indefinite [ife on the grounds of the proven longevity of the brands and

tiding nomes and the Group’s commifment to maintaining thosa brands

All key assumphans are consistent with known extemal sources of mformation

16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS

The Group uses the equity method of accounting for assoaates end jomt ventures The following table shows the oggregote movement in the Group's investment i associotes ond

[oint ventures
Assadiates (E£'000)
Ar 28 Apnl 2013 g
Exchonge differences {620
Adihons 8,000
Shore of profit 2,266
At 27 Apnl 2014 41,743
Exchonge differences {4,593)
Addinons 9
Disposals 750
Dindends paid {1,330)
Shore of prohit 2959
Ar 26 Apnl 2015 38,133
None of the Group’s ossoaotes are considered to be indradually materdl to the Group
The Group's share of assoaates” assets, liobdities and ncome statement, which 15 mncluded n the consohdoted Finanaig! Statements, 1s os follows
26 Aprll 2015 20 Joid 2014
{£+000) (€000
Share of non-current ossets 44,767 51,702
Share of cument assets 7,170 74,459
Shate of non-curent liohdites (13,79¢) {18,259}
Share of curent labiines {20,108} {16,139}
38,133 41,763
572 weeks ended
24 hprl 2015 27 hord 2014
(E000) (£/000)
Income 104,279 5,751
Expenses {101,509) (92,975}
Prokt before fmxshon 2,770 2774
Texohan 189 (510
Protit for the penad 2,959 2,266
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17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

25 Mgl 2015 Wi 2014
{£°000} € 000
tvonlableforsale finanaiol ossefs 140,795 116,504

The faur value of the avalableforsala mvestments 1s bosed on bid quoted market pnces of the balance sheet date or where market pces are nof ovailable, af monagement's shmate of

foir value

The following toble shows the aggregate movement in the Group’s finoncial assets durng the year

26 hprdl 2015 27 Apnl 2014

(E000} {£'000)

At hegmning of panad 116,504 47,645
Addinans 50,415 55467
Dispasals {48,017} (43,981)
Revatuotion through other camprehensive ncome 21,893 57,373
At end of penod 140,795 116,504

The disposal above relates to financiol ossets that were acquired In the year and therefore there 1s no reclassification adystment between equity ond the income statement on disposal

The finenciol gssets at 26 Apnl 2015 relate o sirotegic invesiments held of between 4 8% and 11 1% of share copital
At 27 Aprl 2014 and 26 Apnl 2015 the Graup had no investments in excess of 20% of shore coprial

18. INVENTORIES
26 April 2015 27 hpd 04
(€000} {£ 000)
Raw matenols 4 147
Goods far resale 517,050 545,332
517,054 585,479
The followang nventory costs have been recogmised in cost of soles
24 Apell 2015 27 hpri 2014
{£000) (€000}
Cost of nventones recognised as on expense 1,591,748 1,551,036
19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
26 April 2015 27 tprd 2014
{E000) {5 000)
Trode recevobles 65,335 60,851
Amounts owed by related parhes 13,094 7,450
Other debtors 80,514 19,060
Prepayments 31,781 35,653
190,726 123,014

The Diectors consider tha the corrying omount of trade and other recenvables approximates to thew for volue The maamum exposure to credit nsk of the reporfing date 15 the corrying

volue of each class of osset abave, plus ony cash balances

Qther debtors indudes uemitted sales receipts ond collateral in respect of denvative instiuments

Ageing of trode recevobles
25 Apell 2015 7 il 214
(£'000) (£ 000)
Current 58,364 34,667
(+30 days post due 744 18,467
30-60 doys post due 1,516 3,713
&0-90 doys post due 2,520 1,194
Over 90 days past due 2,191 2,810
65,335 40,851

The credi quality of assets neither past due nor impavied 15 considered to ba good




The movement in the bod debt prowston con be analysed os follows

57 weeks ended
28 Apri 2015 Mg 204
1£°000) {£ 000)
{pening position 8,336 6,674
Amounts chrged to the income sttement 1,238 2,343
Ampunts written off os untolletinble {1,330 (64%)
Amouats iecovered dunng the yeor (an 32
(losing posthon 7,232 8,334

The Group has no significant concentration of credit nsk, with exposure spread over o lorge number of customers These bad debt provisions / chorges have been determined by reference
10 post defoult expenence ond knowtedge of the ndwidual crcumstonces of certom recenvables

The ather clusses within trode and other recenvables do not mclude imparred assets

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

16 Aprll 201§ 7 dpl 2014
{E000) £700)
Cosh i bank ond in hand  Sterling 1,026 113,327
Cash in bank and in hand  US Dallars 49,194 15,874
Cosh m bank nd in hand  Euros 23,311 21,443
Cosh in bank gndin hond  Other 4,787 380
78,318 151,024
Bank overdraft (note 23) (813) {5,742
Cash and cash equrvalents including overdrafts of penod end 77,505 145,782
21. SHARE CAPITAL
26 April 2015 7 Al 7014
{£000) {5 000)
AUTHORISED
999,500,010 ordinary shares of 10p each 99,950 99,950
499 990 redeemoble preference shares of t0p each 50 50
100,000 100,000
ALLOTTED, CALLED UP AND FULLY PAID
640,602,369 (2014 840,602,369) ordmory shares of 10p eoch 4,060 64,080
SHARE CAPITAL
A1 27 Aprl 2014 and 26 Apal 2015 4,060 4,060

The Group halds 42,137 508 shores in Trsasury

CONTINGENT SHARE AWARDS

THE EXFCUTIVE SHARE SCHEME

Under the terms of the Executive Share Scheme, which was approved by Sharehelders an 10 September 2010 and 1s o Revenue approved scheme, the Board may make shore awards
in respect of the ordinary shares in the Company Awards may be made to Executrves and Persons Discharging Monogesal Responsibilives over o frxed number of shores subjedt to
performance conditions Further detouls are set out in the Remuneration Report on pages 44 ta 52

An oword of 8,073,036 shores was gronted on 10 September 2010 o a share price of 125 5 pence, 4,000,000 of these shores hove since vested and 1,000,000 have since Topsed
These shores will anly vest of all condinens are met No consideration 15 payable n respect of these awerds

SHARE SCHEMES
The 2011 Share Scheme wos approved by the Board on 10 September 2010 The fust award of 30,000,000 shares were granted on 10 September 2010 at an average price of 2000
pence per shore A 26 Apnl 2015 21,200,000 (27 Aprl 2014 22,672,000) remuined outstanding These shares wil anly vest f ol condinons are met

A share-bosed poyment chorge of £10,110,000 wos recognised wn respect of these shore awards for the 52 weeks ended 26 April 2015, based on the Directors” best eshmate of the
number of shares that will vest The charga 15 calevlated based on the fair valug on the gront date, which is deemed to be the date on which the enfity and counterparty reached o shared
understonding of the scheme

On 2 July 2014, a resatution was passed to implement the 2015 Share Schame No gronts hive been made under this scheme to date

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING
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22. OTHER RESERVES
Permasent Capital Reverse
Share Share coatribetion to denssti hinoth Hedging Totod ather
copital premiam capite! reserve reserve reserve reserves
(£000) (£°000) (£°000) (£°000) {£°000) {£°000} {£°C00)
At 28 Aprl 2013 64,060 874,300 50 8,005 (987,312) 16,00 (24,876)
Cash flow hedges
recognised un the penod {3,731 (3,737
reclossified and reported in net profit {17.90%) (17,909
At 27 Agul 2014 64,060 874,300 50 8,005 (987,312) {5,625) 46,520
Cash flow hedges
recagrused in the penod 77,181 77.181
relossrhied and reporied w net proft 7,240 7,240
At 26 Apn] 2015 64,060 874,300 50 8,005 (987,312) 78,796 37,899

The share premeum account 15 used to record the excess proceeds over nomunal value on the 1ssue of shares
The permanent contrbution to copital relates o o cosh payment of £50,000 to the Compony cn 8 February 2007 under o deed of capifal contbunon
The capitel redemption reserve arose on the redemphan of the Company's redeemable prefesenca shares of 10p each ot por on 2 March 2007

The reverse combiation reserve exists as a result of the odophon of the prnciples of reverse acqusition accounhng in occounting for the Group restructunng which occurred on 2 March
2007 and 29 March 2007 between the Compony and Sports World Interahonal Limired, Brands Holdings Limted, International Brond Management Limited and CDS Holdings SA with
Sports World International Limited as the acquirer

The hedging reserve represents the cumulafive omount of gains and losses on hedging instruments deemed effective in cosh flow hedges The cumulatrve deferred gain or loss on the
hedging mstrument 1s recogmised in the income statement onfy when the hedged fransachon impacts the mcome Statement

OTHER BALANCE SHEET RESERVES
The fareign currency translation reserve ts used 1o record exthonge differences ansing from the translanon of the Finoncial Stotements of fareign subsidianes and associates

The own shares ond fregsury shares seserve repeesent the cost of shares n Sports Direct Internotianal ple purchased in the market and held by Sports Direct Internahonel ple Employes
Benefit Trust to sahsfy ophans under the Group’s share ophons scheme, see note 21

23. BORROWINGS
26 April 2015 77 fprl 2014
{E000) 15°000)
NON-CURRENT
Bonk and ather foons 136,849 6,764
136,849 6,764
CURRENT:
Bank overdrafts 813 5742
Bank ond other loans N 350,484
1,204 356,226
TOTAL BORROWINGS
Bank overdrafts 813 5,742
Bank ond other loons 137,240 357,248
138,053 362,390
An analysss of the Group’s total borowings other than bank overdrafs 15 os follows
26 Aprl 2015 27 hpil 2014
(£000} (£000)
Bamowings — Sterling 95,808 240,731
Bomowings — Cihes 41,432 116,517
137,240 357,248

Loons are all at rates of nterest ranging between 1 15% ond 2 0% over the interbank rate of the country wathm which the borrowing ennty resides

On 28 May 2014 the Company enterad nto o new commited unsecured revolving fackity ogreement wath 13 financiol msttutions, with Bardays Bank plc oching as Agent This revobvng
faclity con be diown 1o on aggregate hmrt of €738 miflion and 1s available until 27 September 2018




The Group olso hos @ £250m working capita! Faclity wath Mike Ashley which con be diown down on request The foolity wos agreed of market terms ot its incephon and is not secured
ogainst any fixed ossets At yeas end no bolonce was due

The Group connnues to operate comfortably withn ts banking facdiies ond covenants
The corrying omounts ond fair volue of the borowings ore not motenally different
Net debt ot 26 Aprl 2015 was £59 7m (27 Apnl 2014 £217 Om)

24. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Group's defined benefit pension obligations relate to Dunlop Slazenger Group Holdings bimited ("DSGHL™), which wos acquired on 28 January 2004 DSGHL operates a number of
plans warldwide, the largest of which 15 of the funded defined benefit type The Scheme has been closed to new members since 2005

The amaunts for the current and prewious four penods followng the acquisinon of DSGHL are s follows

26 April 2015 27 Aol 2014

1E000) {5000

Totol feer vohue of plon ossets 59,939 49,498
Fresent volue of plon lobilites (74,808) (64,848)
Net plan obligarons (14,869) (15,350)
Expenence adustments on plon hubilies 1,226 {45)
Expenence adiusiments on plan assets (9719 3,906

The cumulative omount of actuanol goms and losses recogrused in other comprehensive income os at 26 Apnl 2015 was on actuonal loss of £12,688,000 (2014 actuanal loss of
£10,195,000)

There were no unrecognrsed octuanal gains or losses or past serice costs os of 27 Apnl 2014 or 26 Apnl 2015

Amoynts recogrised n the income statement are os follows

32 weeks ended
26 Aprd 2015 27 hpad 2014
{E'000) {50000
Cument serwice cost 2 21
Net inferest expense 332 547
353 549
The corrent service cost 1s ncluded within cost of sales The net interest expense 15 included wathin finance costs
Amounts recogrased in other comprehensive income s os follows
52 weeks ended
26 April 2015 97 hgel 2014
(£'000) (£ 000}
Actval refurn on scheme assess excluding amounts induded n net interest income 1,224 {46)
Actuonal {losses) /gains telohng to plan kobilines (9.9 3,906
(2493) 3,840
The actuol raturn on plan ossets for the 52 weeks ended 26 Apnl 2015 wos a gon of £9,377,000 (2014 gain of £1,855,000)
Fhe movements in the far value of plon ossets are s follows
52 weeks ended
26 Aprll 2015 27 ko 201
{£:000) (£1000)
At the start of the pened 49,498 4741
Interest mxcome besed on drscount rate 2,151 1,901
Actuanal gain/(Joss) 1,12 (46)
Employer conmbunons .18 yR[:)
Employee conmbungns 12 17
Benefits poid out {1,664) (2,488)
At the end of the penod 59.939 49 498

The Group expects to contabute £2,720,000 1o s defined beneftt pension plans for the 52 weeks ended 24 Apnl 2016
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The plan asser max was os follows

26 Aprid 2015 27 byl 2014

{£°000) (% 000}

Equines 27,867 2,807
Bonds 31,503 26,313
Cosh and other 569 378
59,93¢ 49,498

The forr values of the chove nvestments are determined bosed on peblicly ovailoble market prices wherever ovalable Unquated investments re stated at fai value eshmates prowded by
the manages of the mvestment or fund

The prncipal assumphans underlying the actuonial ossessments ore

26 Aprll 2015 27 hoed 2014
%) )
Inflonon rate 32 34
Future penston increases 31 33
Discount rate 33 43
Mortofity assumptions
26 Apedl 2015 27 kpd 2014
Life expectoncy at 65 of penod end
Futuie pensioners — mole 878 8117
Future pensioners — femple 503 902
Current pensiongrs — mole 861 850
{urrent pensianers — female 80 4 883
Sensiraty Anolysis
tm % thange
Liahility at 26 Apnl 2015 149
Sensitmaty of & 5% increase to
Discount rote (58) (389
Retail prce inflohon and salory ingrenses 38 255
Incrense in long-tesm mortolity rote of mprgvement to 1 5% po (Fom 1 25%) {1 74)
The movements in the present value of the plon habiines are os follows
26 Apell 2015 17 4pd 2014
(£000) 5 000)
At the stort of the penod (64,848) (67,351
Current service cost (21} (22)
Interest cost (2483} (2,429)
Actuana! (loss) / gain (N9 3,506
Employee contmbuhons (12) (12)
Banehts pad cut 1,666 2488
Exchange guin 609 804
Acquisons (note 29) (2,234)
A1 the end of the penod 74,808 (64,848)
The net movements in the net present valug of the plan hobilies were os follows
52 weeks ended
26 April 2015 27 dprd 2014
{£°000) (£ 000}
Net iobility at the start of the penod (15,350) (19,940
Mavement i foir volue of plon ossets 10,441 2087
Movements in the present valie of the plan hiabilines (9,960) 2,503
Net liohifity at the end of the penod (14,869 (15,350)

In addition 1o the omounts recogmsed i relation to the defmed benefit refrement plons, emounts of £1,207,000 ond £1,363,000 have been recogmised s the ncome statement far the
penods ended 27 Apnl 2014 and 26 April 2015 n relahion to defined contbution retirement beneht plans




The weighted ovesage years durafion of the defined benefit obligotron ot 26 Aprd 2015 15 28 3 yeors (2014 29 3 years)

25. DEFERRED TAX ASSET AND LIABILITIES

Accoants deprediation Tax bsses Peasiom plen Ot temporery
exceeding fox recoverble kichilities dilferences Yatel
depreciatios (£/000} (£000) (£°000) (£000) 1£°000)
At 78 Apel 2013 2,400 {(461) 6,601 14434 22,974
(redrred / (chorged) o the income sfofement 2,142 (24) (175 (4,393) {2,550)
(redited o the ststement of other comprehensive income - (698) (4,170) (4,868)
(redited o reserves in respect of Shore Scheme (11,214) (11,214)
Arrsing on acquisshan 2,742 2,742
At 27 Apal 2014 4,542 2,257 5,628 {5,343) 7,084
(redited / (charged) 1o the income statement 5,230 4,749 (3,178} 31 7,119
(redited / (charged) to the siotement of other comprehensive income 574 {17,118) {17,204)
(redted to reserves in respect of Share Scheme 1,266 1,266
At 26 Apnl 2015 9,112 7,006 1974 (21,488) (1,736)
26 hpell 2015 27 Jord 7014
(£000) 15 000)
Deferred tax assets 38,352 31,330
Deferred fox iohilibes (40,088) {24,044)
Net deferred tox bolonce (1,736) 7.084

The tox rate used to measure the deferred fox assets and kabilimes was 20% an the hosis this wos the tax rote that was substantively enacted ot the bolance shest dote

Deferred tox ssets are recogrised for tox losses recoveroble and pension plan habihes to the extent that realisation of the refated tax benefit 1s probabla on the bosis of the Group’s
curent expectations of future toxable profits

Included within ather temporary dfferences 1s a defemed tox asset i relahon to the Share Scheme and a deferred tax hability recogmsed on ather infangible ossets upan coquisiion

The deferred tax effects of the ocquismons made in the yeor were considered and it was deterrmned thot there wos no matenal impoct on the Gioup or the fou volue of net assets
acquired

26. PROVISIONS
Onerows controcts

Diupidetions pmpcﬂy:uh Tota!
(E'000) {£'000) {E'000)
A 27 Apnl 2004 33,843 3937 37,780
Amounts, provided 4,291 4,349 10,640
Amounts ufhsed (624) (3,149 {3773)
Amounts reversed (2.330) {4.612) (6,942
Ar 26 Apnl 2015 37,180 525 37,705

The diapidations provision is the best estimote of the present value of expenditure expected to be mcurred by the Group in arder o safisfy 1ts obhganens Te restore its leasehald premises
1o the condinion required under the lease agreements a the end of the legse discounted o 5% per onnum The provision 1s expected  be utihsed over the pencd to the end of each
specfic lease

The prowsion 1 respect of onerous lense conacts represents the net cost of fulfilling the Group's obligations oves the terms of these contracis. discounted at 5% per annum The provision
15 expected to be uhlised over the penod to the end of each speafic lease

The unwinding of the discount on prowsion over hme passes through the income statement
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The carrying values of finanaal assets and hobilities, which are principally denominated i Stering or US Dollars, were s follows

Assats af fair
Loans oad volve throwgh  Avallnble for scle
racetvables profil cad boss finoncial ossers  Mou-finqucio assers Total
[£'000) (£°000) (£°000) (£'000) {£'000)
ASSETS - 2015
Property, plont and equipment 422,742 422,742
Intangdble assets 255,364 255,364
Investments in gssonted underiakings 38,133 38133
Hwollobleforsals financial ossets 140,795 140,795
Deferred tox assers 38,352 38,352
[nventories 517,054 517,054
Denvatve finoncial assets 92,199 52,19%
Trade ond other recenvobles 65,335 125,391 190,726
Cash and cosh equivlents 78,318 78,318
143,653 52,199 140,795 1,397 036 1,773,683
ASSETS - 2014
Property, plont ond equipment 412,361 412351
Iangible assets 255,109 255,109
Investments i gssonated undertokings 41,763 41,763
Aveloble-farsale finoncal ossets 116,504 116,504
Deferred tox ossets 31,130 31030
Inventones 565,479 565479
Denvative financial ossets 4,355 4,355
Trade ond other secenvobles 60,851 62,163 123,014
(osh and cash equivalents 151,024 151,024
211,875 4,355 114,504 1,368,005 1,700,739
Lichilities at fair
woee throwgh profit Hea-finoadad
Loms ond poyalles and lass babilities Tatal
(£'000) [£'000) {£'000) (£°000)
LIABILITIES - 2015
Non-current barrowings 136,849 136,849
Refrement benefit obhganons 14,869 14,869
Deferred tax hinbilines 40,088 40,088
Provisions 37,7105 37,105
Denvatve financal habdines 5,629 5619
Trode ond ather povobles 170,090 170,846 340,535
Current borrowings 1,204 1,204
Current tax habilthes 34,852 34,852
308,143 5,629 298,340 $12,132
LIABILITIES - 2014
Non-urrent horigwings 6,764 6,764
Retuement benefit obhgotions 15,350 15,350
Deferred tox hobiines 24,046 24,046
Provesions 37,780 37,780
Denvunve financiol linbilines 18,465 18,665
Trade and other poyables 239,443 152,556 352,019
Current bomowngs 356,226 356,226
Corent tox fiobiines 32,335 32,335
602,453 18,665 262,067 883,185

Coirying values do not matenally differ from far volue



FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
The Group uses the following hreraschy for determining ond disclosing the fair volue of financl instruments by voluation techmgue

o Level 1 quoted (unodusted) prices in active markets for idenncol ossers or habilines,
® Level 2 othier technmues for which oll inputs which have o significont effect on the recorded far value are observable, etther duectly or mdirectly, and
® level 3 techmiques which use inputs which hove o signicant effect on the recorded fau value that ore not based on ebservable markes daro

As ot 26 Apnl 2015, the only financial mstruments held ot four volue were Dervative fingnoral assets ond liabilthes, which are classfied as Leve! 2, and Availobleforsala finonaia! assets,
which are classified as Leve! 1 except for Highland Group Holdngs, which 15 dasstfied os Level 3 Highland Group Holdings 15 held ot management's estimate of the far value of the
enterpnse based on publicly ovalable dato A 1% ncrease in profitabiity for the company would result m a £0 3m narease i value

The valuation of Denvotve financl assets and bobilives 15 performed using an ophion volughon model, bosed on the market dato avadable o the balance sheet dote, depending on
whether the mstrument 1s o foreign exchange or an equity denvatve

The Group has entered info o number of put options referenaing listed company shores To the extent thot the market pnce of these shores is fess than on agreed price on expiry of the
put ophon, the Group has the nght to elect whether to settle the put aphion by acquinng ordinary shares 1, by paying the cash sestlement value of the put optian Sports Direct 1s required
to fransfer cosh collateral to cover its obligahans under the Put Opton The amount of collateral required dunng the Ie of the Put Opfion con ncrease or decrenss by reference to the
undariying morket price of the shares

(b) DERIVATIVES: FOREIGN CURRENCY FORWARD PURCHASE CONTRACTS

The most signdicant exposure to foreign exchange fluctuntions relutes to purchoses made m forengn curencies, prncipally the US Dollar The Group’s policy 15 to reduce substannally the
nsk associated with foreign curency spot rates by using forward fixed rote currency purchase controcts, takmg into account any forexgn currency cosh flows The Growp does not hold or
issue denvove fmancial nstrments for trading purposes, however if dervatives do not qualify for hedge accounnng they ore accounted for as such and accordingly any gom or loss 1s
1ecognised immeduately 1n the income statement

The carrying volues of forward foreign currency purchose contracts were s follows

26 Aprll 2015 27 Apr 2014

{£°000) (£ 000)

Fair valu of denvonve finonciol instuments  ssets 92,199 4,355

Faur value of denvatwe finonciol inshuments — {lobilifies) (5,629 {18,665}
The sterling prncipal amaunts of frward foreign currency purchase contracts ond contracted forword rates were as follows

26 April 2015 27 fpd 2014

{£'000) (£ 000}

US Daller purchases 418,561 540,349

(ontracted rotes 154-171 1681-1171

At 26 Apnl 2015 £419m of forwerd US Dollar contracts qualified for hedge accounting and the goin en fo valuahon of these contracts of £84m has therefore been recognised in other
comprehenstve income: This amount 15 sph? between o profit of £77m recogmsed in the peniod and o profit of £7m redlassrfied in the penod

Forward foreign currency purchase ond sals contracts genesally have @ matunty of incephon of epproximately 12 months At 26 Apnl 2015 £419m of purchose contracts hed o matunly
at ncephon of greater than 12 months (2014 £245m of purchase contracts)

{c) SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

FOREIGN CURRENCY SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

The Group's prnapal foreign currency exposures are o US Dollors ond the fura The foble below ilustrates the hypothencal sensitvity of the Group's reparted profit ond equity to o

5% mrease ond decrense i the US Dollas / Sterling and Euro / Stering exchange rates ot the year end date, ossuming oll other vonobles remain unchonged The figures have been
talculated by companng the foir volues of outstonding foreign cuency contracts af the eurrent exchange rate to thase if exchangs rotes moved as ilustrated The income stotement figures
include the profit effect of ony relevont denvatves which ore not in o designated cash flow hedge The impoct on US Dollar reloted hedging mstuments «s included m equity

Positive figures represeat an ncrease / (decrease) i profit or equity

batome stafement Equity
28 dpril 2015 27 e 2014 26 Aprll 2015 2 i 014

{£°000) (£ 000) (E/050) {8 000
Steding strengihens by 5%
US Dobior (174) 812 {991) (5,205)
Furo {1,650) 2,118 (1,650) 208
Sterding weakens by 5%
US Dollar 813 (852) 1,041 5,465

Fuso 1,732 (2,319 1,732 (2,329}

FVERYTHING 1S CHANGING
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INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS
The followng table dlustrates the hypothencol sensitmaty of the Group’s reported profit and equity fo o O 5% increase or decrense in inferest rates, assuming oll ofher vancbles
ware unchanged

The analysis hes been prepared using the following assumpnons

o For floating rate ossets and habiimes, the omount of asset or lidility outstanding o the bolance shees dute 1s assumed o hove been cutstanding for the whole year
« Fixed rote financial mstruments that are camed ot amortised cost are not subyect 1o interest rote nsk for the purpose of this onolysis

Positve figures represent an incregse i profit o7 equry

Income stolement Ecuity
26 April 2015 27 hprd 2014 26 Aprll 2015 71 1pd 2014
{£'000) (] 1£°000) (£ 000)
Intecest rate increase of 0 5% (690) {1,690} (690) (1,690
Interest rate decrease of 0 5% 490 1,490 690 1,690
(d) LIQUIDITY RISK
The table below shows the matunty analysis of the undiscounted remainng contractual cash flows of the Group’s fingnainl hobrlines
Less than 1 yeor |t 2 years 210 5 yeors Over 5 yeors Total
(£000) {£'000) (E°000) (£°000) (£'000)
2015
Bark leans and overdrafts 1,204 135,277 5,677 142,158
Trode ond other payables 170,090 170,090
Denvatrve financnl habilimes
Cash inflows {513,393) {118,040) (631,433
Cash outflows 439,416 105,447 544,863
97,317 122,684 5677 225,678
2014
Bonk loons and overdrafts 356,236 1,731 5,237 363,193
Trade and other payobles 239,463 739,463
Denvative financiol iabilites
Cash inflows. {401,718) (105,177} {506,895)
{osh outflows 414,776 105,263 520,039
608,747 1,817 5,237 615,800
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The coputal stucture of tha Group consists of equity attnbutable ta the equity hotders of the parens, compromising 1ssued shase copital, share premsum and retoined earnings and cash

and borrowngs

I+ 15 the Group’s policy to mamtain o strong capital base so as to mantom mvestor, creditor and morker canfidence and fo sustai the development of the business

I respect of equity, the Bourd has deaded that, in erder fo moxmisa fexility w the near term with regards fo a number of morganic growth opportuninies under review, not to refurn any

cash by way of o dnadend ot this time

The Board 1s committed to keaping s pelicy under review and to looking to evaluate lteiative methods of refurning cosh to shareholders when appropnote

The objectve of the Share Scheme 15 to encoutoge emgployee share ownership and to link employee's remuneranon 1o the performance of the Company 11 1s not designed as  means of

managing capitol

in respect of cash and borrowings the Board regularly monitors the rano of net debt to underlying EBITDA, the warking capital requirements and forecasted cash flaws hawever no
MAIMUM o moximurn rofias are set The raho for et dabt to reported undertying EBITOA, excludng chorges for the Share Schemes, 15 0 16 (2014 0 64) The objectve 1s to keep this

figure: below 2 5

Based on this andlysis, the Board defermines the uppropnate return to equity holders whilst ensunng suficent caprial is retamed wathin the Group to meet its stotegic objectves, including

but not bmited to, acquisition epporfunities

These coprtl management polices hove remained unchanged from the pnor yeor




28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

28 April 2015

17 dpd 2014

{£000) {£.000)
Trade poyobles 170,090 239,463
Amounts owed 1o teloted underiakings M 22
Other taxes mchiding socl secury costs 31,365 22,230
(ther poyobles 17,479 10,263
Accruls 121,81 120,041
340,936 392,019
The Duectors consider thet the comyng amount of trade and other payables approximates to their far volue
29. CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
57 weeks ended
26 Aprl 2015 27 herd 2014
(£°000) (£000)
Prafit before taxaton 313,446 739,452
Net finance costs {802) 18,962
Orher investment income {14,104 .07
Share of profiis of essouted undertolangs {2,959} (2,266)
Operating profit 295,581 24913
Depreciohon™ £2.924 56,963
Amorhsghon ™ 12,725 6,832
Impaiment 5,314 5815
Profit on disposal of mangibles 107
Defined benefit pension plan cument service cost 21 1
Defined beneft pension plon employer conmbunions (N8 (2,708)
Share-based poyments 10,105 11527
Operoting cosh inflow before chonges in working copetal 354,059 321982
In¢reose m recevobles {66,368) (18,241)
Decreose/ (inrense) in inventores 49320 (52,521)
Decrease i payubles {52,349) (34,435
(ash nflows fram operaning acities 314,662 222,785
*£13,300,000 of depreciohon and omornsation 1s included within Excephonal tfems
30. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
As ot 24 Aprit 2015 the Group hod outstanding commitments for future minimum lease poyments under non-concellable operating leases, which fall due os follows
26 April 2015 27 dord 204
{£000) 15 000
LAND AND BUILDIRGS
Within one year 121,74% 99.041
In the second to fifth years mclusme 397,054 329,163
After fve years 330,114 242,297
943,91 670,500

The lsases have vorying fesms, escalanion clouses and renewal nghts There ore no clauses in relation 3o resichons concerning dvidends, addianal debt ond further lzosing wittin our
portfoha Confingent rents ore payable on certan store leoses hosed on store revenue: For those leases that ore tumoverveloted leases, the annual net lease commtment s calculated
using the eshmated lease liability and any changes in the rental charge are occounted for when known Amounts of €1,598,000 (2014 £2,213,762) were charged fo the income

statement in relanion fo conhngent rent

The Group sublets certom stond-olone retoil stores which ore no longer operated by the Group The property rental mcome egmed dunng the 52 weeks ended 25 Apnl 2015 wos

£4,832,000 (2014 £6,118,000)

FVERYTHING 1S CHANGING
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As at 26 Apnl 2015, the Group hod contracts with subrenants for the followmg future minmum leass rentals

26 Apfl 2015 27 k2014
{E7000) (£'000)
LAND AND BUILDINGS

Within ane year 3,24% 5,800
In the second to fifth yeors ndsive 10,847 17.812
After five years 10,134 22,388
24,231 46,000

31. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group hod capita! commitments of £26,899,000 os of 26 Aprit 2015 (2014 £Nily wn relahon to the construchon of our Shirebrook warehouse

32. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

There were no matenal contingent assets of lighilihes ot the baance sheet date

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group has token edvontoge of the exemphons contamed wathin IAS 24 - “Refoted Party Disclosures” from the requirement to disclose transactions between Group componres as these
have been ghminated on consolidanon

The Group entered into the following matenal transachons with related parties

52 weeks ended 26 Apnl 2015

Trody ond othes

Sdas Purchmses racovoties  Tiode ond ot payables

Relgnonship {£°000) (€000 {£ 000} {£000)

RELATED PARTY

Heatens Assouiote 19 412 4,926

The Flonnels Group Limrted Subsidiory 19,814 19,825 4,865 1,246
Brasher Leisure Limited Assotiote 12,482 5,057
MST Sports Subsidbary 329 7,699
Rangers Retal Limited Subsidiary 3,834 441
Robmsans Country ewsure Limited Subsidiary ]l 482 3251
Sondico Professional Limited Subsidiary 70 1,061 2,691
HNewcoste United Football Club Connected persons 2412 205
Yeomoens Oudoors Limited Subsidiary 38 3,027
Heaven or Hell Limited Subsidiory 2,152 2,581
Queensdown Assonates Limited Assaciote 981 1,149

52 weeks ended 27 Apnl 2014

Trode ond other Trode ond sther

Retationsklp Sudes (£000)  Perchases (£°000) Reccivobles (E'000)  payobles (£7000)
RELATED PARTY
Heatons Associnte 8,759 52N
The Hoanels Group Limited Subsidiory 15,601 13414 9,898
Brasher Letsure Limited Assotiote 11,508 09 2179
MST Sports Subsidiary 270 2,168
Rangers Retoil Limited Subsidiary 3,843 23
Rabinsons Country Leisure Limited Subsidary 83 61 1,014
Sondico Professional Limited Subsidiary 54 678 1,370 109
Newcastle United Football Club (onnected persons 3,395 337
Yeomans Qutdoors Lirmted Subsidiory 30 2,884
Heaven or Hell Limited Subsidiory 2,850 661 2,587
(Queensdown Associotes Limted Assoainte 823 948

On 6th October 2014, the Group made o drowdawn of £40 milhon o the £250 mulhon loon facliiy that 1s held with Meke Ashley through hus wholly owned ennty Mash Holdings Limited
Thus was fully repad on 20th October 2014




The Group mode further drawdowms of €50 million ond £80 mdtion on 315t October and 26th November 2014 respectvely and mode repayments of €90 milion on 7th Aprl 2015 and
€40 millon on 22nd Apnl 2015 At the year end date no balance was due
The Group has ogreemests with Rongers Retl bmited and Newcostle Unired Football Club, omongst athes foatball dubs, whereby the Group prowides procurement and warghousing
services on behalf of the club All soles ore recerved duectly by the dubs and sales disclosed above relate solely to goods bought from the Group at cost plus o small hondling fee
Al related party transachons were undertaken on an arms Jength bosis
LL
16 Agell 2015 27 todd 104 z
{E000) {5 000} z
KEY MANAGEMENT, EXECUTIVE AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR COMPENSATION T
Salanes and shortterm benefts 1,382 1,435 ﬁ
Sharedosed poyments 988 2,003 z
Totdl 2370 3,438 =
[
34. ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY §
The Group 15 controlled by Mike Ashley through his 100% shoreholding n MASH Bera Limited and MASH Holdings Limited, which own 303,507,460 (50 71% of the ssued odinory E
shore copitol of the Company) and 26,492,540 (4 43% of the issued ordinary shore coprtal of the Company} ordmary shores respectively g
35. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS £
These were no motenal post balonce sheer events after 26 Apnl 2015 up 1o the date of signing of these occounts g
36. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS
The subsidiary undertakings of the Company ot 26 Aprik 2015 were os follows
COUNTRY OF COMPANY PERCENTAGE OF ISSUED
NAME INCORPORATION NUMBER SHARE CAPITAL HELD
3237303 onado In (anado 3237303 160
Acre 653 Limited England & Wales 4579745 100 (o7
Actwotor Bronds Limited Englond & Wales 5344658 100
Actetor Products Limited England & Wles 42046 100
Aetove Appored New Carp United States 3770168 100
Amencan Fimess Products Inc Linited States 366835 100
Anhgua Enterpnses Inc United Stotes 26660 100
AP Brands Holdings Lid Molaysio LT 100
Beouty Brond Manogement Limted Englond & Wales 5258421 100
Bellomx Assoaates Limited Isle of Man 1671C 100
Bellainx Holdings Unhmited Isle of Man 11670C 100
Bronds & Fashion NV Belgwm D477 995 412 100
Bronds 901 Limzted England & Wales 5347540 100
Bronds Afaca Limited England & Wales 6836765 100
Bronds Holdings Limited England & Wales 4087435 100
Bronds Inc Limited England & Wales 3585719 100
(afico Comescio de Arhgas de Desporfos S A Portugal 503751804 50
Compn Limuted Englond & Wales 5398477 100
Corton Shutflecocks Limited Englond & Wales 4805482 100
Corlron Sparts Compeny Limited England & Wales 467684 100
(DSIPSA Belgum 406461077 100
(limber & Rornbler Limited Englond & Wales 3938414 100
Crwise Clothing Limited Scatlond 5382991 100
Dowd Geolrey & Assountes (UK} bumsted Englond & Wales 670530 100
Duedt Fishing Linited Englond & Wales 8203469 100
Donnay Infernananal N V Belgum 435392220 100
DSGL Spansorshup Limited Englond & Wales 9395448 100
Dunlop Austraha Linited England & Woles N 100
Dundop Bronds Lmited Englond & Woles 579419 100
Duniep Footwear Limsed Englond & Wofes 371672 100
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Dunlop Internanonol Limited England & Woles 4825179 100
Dunlop Licensing Limited Englond & Wales 6036773 100
Dunleg Slozenger (ESOP) Limited Englond & Wales 3408468 100
Dunlop Slazenger (For Eost) Sdn Bhd Maloysio 2070377 100
Dunlop Slozenger {HK) Umited Hong Kong 65306 100
Dunlop Slazenger {Philippines} Inc Phillippines SEC140084 100
Bunlop Slazenger 1502 Limited Englond & Wales 4983558 100
Dunlop Slazenger Group Holdings Limited Engfond & Wales 4051715 100
Dunlop Slozenger Group Limited Englond & Weles 3097977 100
Dunlop Slozenger Holdings inc United States 2596048 160
Dunlop Slazenger Holdings Lumited Englond & Woles 3139917 100
Dunfop Slazenger Internanonal Limited Englond & Woles 776384 100
Ounlop Stozenger Intemationol SA Fronce 39281229300034 100
Ounlop Slozenger Linnted Englond & Woles 2030941 100
Dunlop Slozenger Limred Hong Kong 2002 100
Dualop Slozenger Sports (Singapore) PTE Limited Singapore 198203096 100
Dunlap Stazenger Trust Company Umited Englond & Wales 3151573 100
Dunlop Sport GmbH Germany HRB5726 100
Dunlop Sports Company Linmited Englond & Woles 429750 100
Dunlop Sports Group Amencas Inc United States 2047393 100
Easthance Limited Hong Keng 174348 100
Etail Seraces Limited England & Wales 5146997 100
Europenn $randed Ciearance Company Liemited Englond & Wales 4359910 100
Eveddast Avstralio Limited Englond & Wales 8103912 100
121961 (43

Everlast Fitmess Mfg Conp United Stotes 0B65535) 100
Everlost Sports Infematonal Inc Corp Unsted States 132811380 100
Everlost Sports Mig Com Unsted States 131804772 100
Everlost World Boxing Headquarters {orporahon United States 131604773 100
Everlost Worldwide Acquisihons Inc United States 4379231 100
Everlast Worldwide Inc United Stutes 133672716 100
Exsparts Lmited England & Wales 2779040 100
Femger And Blackburn Limited England & Wales 639594 160
Freld & Trek (UK) Ltd England & Wales 5622577 100
Field & Trek Com Limited England & Wales 3943377 100
Firetrap Limited Englond & Wales 6836684 100
Fargver Media Limited Englond & Wales 8249185 100
Farever Sports Limised Englond & Wales 7489811 100
Gaelic Boats Limited ROI 520868 100
Gelert IF Limited England & Wales 3576185 100
Gelert Limited England & Wales 8576204 100
Galddigga Bronds Limited Englond & Wales 6636173 100
Goudie Squosh Intemational Limited Englond & Wales 980441 100
Gradidges Limuted Englond & Wales 7822 100
Graduate Clothing Limited Englond & Wales 1511038 9

Gul 1P Limited Englond & Wales 8612478 100
Gul Watersparss Limited England & Wales 7589714 100
Heatons Linuted Ireland 1122% 50

Hetven or Hell imited England & Wales 5859262 51

HK Sports & Golf Aknebolog Sweden 556510-8189 100
Hot Tuna IP Umnited England & Wales 4836791 100
1BML Brand Serwices SA (Phy) Limited South Afnc 2006/016700/07 100
Internghonal 8rand Manogement Limited Englond & Woles 514123 100
James Lillywhites Limited England & Walss 118840 100
Kangol Holdings Limrted England & Wales 337738 100




Kongol Limied England & Woles 3343793 100
Kangol Trustees Limeted Englond & Woles 3505512 100
Kommor Lmited England & Woles 5215974 100
Lo Jolla {UX) Limited England & Weles 5737550 100
Uiltywhites Lmited England & Woles 290939 100
Litesome Sportswear Limrted England & Woles 207867 100
Lonsdale Austrabo Lumited Englond & Woles 7665885 100
Lonséale Boxing Limited England & Wales 1912303 100
Lonsdale Sports Limited England & Wales 4430781 100
Masters Holdess Limited England & Woles 8787718 100
Megavalue com Limited Englond & Wales 9544485 100
Megovaluedirect com Limited Englond & Wales 9545879 100
Mussissipp Manufacturing LLC United States 3470413 100
MST Sports Rerail Sdn Bhd Moloysio 925116-M 51

Muddyfox Limited England & Wales 4187350 100
NDS ehf Iceland 6301121760 100
Newco IP Limited fnglond & Wales 4836778 100
Na Feor Brand Limued Englond & Wales 5568043 100
Na Fear Internanional Limited England & Wales 5532487 100
Na Fear USA hmited England & Wales 7712470 100
Qidca 10 Limited England & Wales 5541144 100
Olympos Ventures Limited Englond & Wales 3945752 100
Outdoor Sports Direct Liited Englond & Wales 2780756 100
P W P Sportbase Limized England & Wles 1933891 100
Poddle Sport Limited England & Wales 6836690 100
Propeller (HK) Limited Hong Kong 415094 100
Propeller (U K ) Limifed Englond & Wales 2170207 100
Queensberry Boxing IP Limited Englond & Woles 7929363 100
(ueensberry Rules Limited Englond & Wales 6723660 100
Rongers Rerel Limsted Englond & Wales 8142409 I

Rangers Retol Rights Limited England & Wales 5210817 100
Repubhe P Lnited Englond & Wales 5435015 100
Republic com Retol Limited Englond & Wales B2489%7 100
Robinsans Country Lersure Limited Englond & Wales 1204771 51

S&B Bronds bmited Englond & Wales 5635585 100
SD Equestmon Lsmited England & Wales 8692780 100
S Ovidoor I? Limited tnglond & Wales 8540252 160
S Qutdoot Linited Englond & Wales 8540260 51

SDB25A Belgum 0848 964 368 100
SOI (Aberwystwyth) Limited Englond & Woles 278999 100
SOI (Antree) Lmited Englond & Woles 3352462 100
SO (Ashford) Linuted Englond & Wles 7848440 100
SDI (Ashington} Limted Englond & Woles 7849231 100
SOl () Limited Englond 8 Woles 5528267 100
SOl (Bangor} Limted Englond & Woles 5529705 100
SDI (Barrow i Furness) Limited Englond & Wales 7851574 100
SOi (Busitdon) Limired Englond & Woles 8512592 100
SDI (Beddgelert} Limited Englond & Wales 8577551 100
SOt (Berwick) Limited Englond & Woles 2739957 100
SOi (Betwsy{oed) Limsted Englond & Woles 6836673 100
SI (Burkenhead) Limized Englond & Wales 7849198 100
SOl (Brshop Auckland) Limited Englond & Woles 3004246 100
SOl {Badgwater) Limited Englond & Wales 7852061 100
SDI (Brook BY) Limized Englond & Wales 9334830 100

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING

SPORTSDIRECT com




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 APRIL 2015

SDI (Brook ROW) Limited Englond & Woles 9336806 100

SDI (Brok UK} Limited England & Wles 9340379 100

SOI {Burtan) Limited Englond & Woles 8495432 100

SDI (Carlisle) Limited England & Wales 7851959 100

S0) (Chathom) Limited Englond & Wales £B36479 100

SDI (Clecton) Limited Englond & Wales 7852078 100

SDI (Cokhester) Lim:ted England & Woles 5632790 160

= SDI {Duntermiing} Limited Englond & Wales 8483479 100
E DI {Enst Kilbnde) Linited England & Wales 6656368 100
2 SDI {Epsorn} Limited England & Wales 6372181 100
; SDI (Exmouth) Limited England & Wales 6328505 100
2 SOI (Fulhom) Limitad England & Wales 7852037 100
] SO (Gainshorough) Limited Englond & Wales 46338907 100
SDI {(Galashiels) Limited Englond & Wales 7852091 100

& D! (Blouceste) Limited Englond & Woles 7852067 100
2 501 (Hartlepoal} Limited Englond & Woles 3972499 100
§ 501 (Hostings) Limited Engiand & Woles 8625893 100
2 SOl (Hofto) Limited Englord 8 Wakes 8319940 160
§ SOI (Iwy) 1 Limited Englond & Wales 9127160 100
SDI (lvy) 2 Limited Englond & Wales F127316 160

SDI (lvy) 3 Umited Englond & Wales F127170 100

SOt (lvy) 4 Urited Englond & Wales 9127387 100

SDi (tvy) 5 Umited Englond & Wales 7127295 100

SDI (hwy) 6 Limrted England & Wales 7127266 100

SDI {Ivy) 7 Limited England & Wales 9127286 100

%0 SDI {Ivy) 8 Limiteg England & Wales 9127300 100
SDI (Keighley) Limited Englond & Wales 6260239 100

S (Kendal) Lirnired England & Wales 6338918 100

SOI (Kiddermnster) Linuited England & Wales 9203731 100

SOI (Kilmarnock) Limited England & Woles 7853433 100

SDI (Kirkcoldy) Limited England & Weles 7852097 100

SOI (Leeds) Linited England & Wales 9293515 100

SOl (Lowestoft) Limited Engtand & Woles 7852245 100

S0l (Newth) Limited England & Woles 7853548 100

SOl (New Covendish Sreet) Limited Englond & Woles £306917 100

SO (Newark) Limited Englond & Wales 7853470 100

Sl (Newport) Limited Englond & Wales 8679118 100

SOI (Newton Abbat) Limited England & Woles 8836606 100

SDI {Northampton) Limited England & Woles 7852272 100

SDI {Nuneaton) Limuted England & Wales 7852249 100

SDI {Oswestry) Limited Englond & Wales 7852363 100

SDI (Passley) Lim:ted England & Woles 2933408 100

SOF (Penzance) Limured England & Woles 1052257 100

SDI (Peterlee) Limited England & Wales 7852401 100

SOI (Plymouth) Limited England & Wales 9470468 100

SDI (Poole) Limuted Englond & Wales 5654295 100

SO (Ramsgute) Limited England & Wales 7852250 100

SOl (Redear) Limited England & Wales 7731451 100

SOI (Ralte St) Limited England & Wales 7852669 100

SO (Scorhorough) Limited England & Wales 6328463 100

SDI (Scwnthorpe) Limited Englond & Wales 7852055 100

SDI {Slough Limited England & Wales 7852417 100

SDI {Southampton) Limited England & Wales 8512480 100

SDI {St Austell) Limited Englund & Wales 7852284 100

SD {St Helens) Limited Englund & Wales 7852281 100




SDI (Stafford} Limited England & Woles 8566481 100
SOl (Stoke Longtan) Limited Englond & Wiles 7853877 100
SDI (Stoke Newangton) Limuted England & Wales 7852207 100
S0 (Strood) Limited Englond & Wiles 7852251 100
SO (Surderond} Limited Englond & Woles 8755347 100
SOI {Tounton) Limited Englond & Wales 7852191 100
SDF {The Lion Hatel) bimited England & Wales 4336880 100
SOI (Wokefield) Limired Englond & Woes 8483711 100
SDI (Walsall) Limted England & Wotes 1852289 100
SOI (Weymouth) Limited Englond & Woles 6716652 100
SOI (Wigan} IP Lymited England & Woles 6835407 100
S0 {¥hgon} Retal Limited Englond & Widles 8208933 100
SOl (Wishaw) Limited England & Wales 6456365 100
SDi (Worksap) Limited Englang & Woles 931001 100
SDI Fitness (Armagh) Limuted Englond & Wales 9038768 100
SDI Frmess (Bedford) birmited Englond & Wales 9038839 100
SD¥ Friness (Betfost) Lirmited Englond & Wales 9038724 100
SDI Fimess (Bminghom) Limited England & Wales 9038982 100
DA Fimess (Bury St Edmunds) Lirnted Englund & Wales 9038949 100
SOi Fitness {Combndge) Limited Englond & Wales 9038881 100
SOI Freness {Cheltenham) Limted Englond & Woles 9039840 100
SOI Fitness {Chester} Lmited Englond & Wales 9038943 100
SDI Fimess {Colchester) Limired Englond & Wales 9039011 100
SDI Fitmess {Croydon) Limited England & Wales 9039243 100
SOI Frimess {Dartry} Limited Englond & Wales 2039023 100
SO1 Fimess {Epsom) Limited Enggand & Woles 9039043 100
SDI Fitmess (Foreham) Limited Englond & Wales 9039057 100
SDI Fimess (Formby) Limited England & Wales 9039845 100
SDI Fimess (Glosgow) Limited England & Wales 9038811 100
SDI Fiimess (Guldford) Limuted England & Wales 9039269 100
SDI Frness (Hove) Limited England & Wales 9039030 100
SDI Friness (Huntingdon) Limited Englond & Woles 9039881 100
SDA Fitmess (% Heash) Lmited Englond & Wales 9039717 100
SDI Fitnass (K Lynn) Limited tnglond & Wales 9039847 100
SDI Fitngss (Kertenng) Limited Englond & Wales 5039852 100
SDI Fitness {Lincoln Ciy) Umited Englond & Wales 5039331 100
SDi Fitmess {Lincoln South West) Limired England & Wales 5039319 100
SDI Fitness (Liverpool) Limited Englard & Wales 9039347 100
SO Fitness (Maidstone) Limited Englond & Wales 9039343 100
SDI Fimess (Manchester} Limited Englond 8 Wales 9039339 100
SOI Fimess {Milngowa) Limited Englond & Woles 90395140 100
SO Fitmess {Newark) Limited England & Whles 9037640 100
SDI Fimess (Northfield) Lumured Englond 8 Woles 9039412 100
SDI Fimess {Poole) bmred Englond & Woles 9039481 100
SO Fitness {Rugby) Limded Englund & Woles 9039408 100
SOI Frmess {Sole) Limited England & Woles 2039405 100
D Finess {Sohshury) bimted Englond & Woles 903942% 100
SO Golf Larured fnglond & Wales 9083512 100
SDI Lifestyle Limuted Englend & Wales 8293814 B0

SDI Newca N 10 Limited England & Wales 8578774 100
SDI Newo No 2 Limsed England & Wales 8158699 100
SDI Newro No 4 Limited Englond & Wales 8249185 100
SDI Newco No 5 Limited England & Wales 9062747 100
SDI tewio No 8 Limited England & Woles 612647 100

FVERYTHING IS CHANGING
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SDI Newce No 9 Limired England & Wales 8576472 100
SOl Newco Shire Limited England & Wales 8177495 100
SOI Properties {USA) Inc United States 535872 100
SDI Praperhes (Wigan) Limited England & Wales 4836522 100
SDI Property Limrted Englond & Wales 7767493 100
SDI Retail Services Limited England & Wales 8143303 100
SO Reterling Limited Englond & Wales 9283231 100
E SDI Shirebrook DC Limited Engtand & Wales 2963189 100
E 5D1 Shirebraok Lienited England & Walas 3016549 100
g SDI Shirebraok Shop Limuted Englond & Wales 3018210 100
; SDI com Fitness Pasent Limited Englond & Wales 9082454 100
S SOILS A Belgium 8§10 198 636 100
= Serverange Limited Englond & Weles 1997208 100
SIA Sportlond Lotvin 40003530961 80
E Sk ond Outdoor Warehouse Limited England & Wales 917223 100
2 Slozengers Austrolio Limited England & Wales 9N7NY 100
g Slazengers Linited Englond & Woles 116000 100
E Smith & Brooks {Germony) Limuted Englond & Wales 5427463 100
§ Smith & Brooks (Indi) Limited England & Wales 2964578 100
Suth & Brooks Limited Englond & Wales 2073720 100
Smith And Brocks Group Limited England & Wales 4079331 100
Smith And Brocks Holdings Limited Englond & Wales 4983573 100
SNO Spost Vertnighs GrbH Austria 2% m 100
Sendico IP Limtted Englond & Wales 6546121 160
Sendico Professional Limited Englond & Wales 7258332 51
9 Spart Eybl & Sparrs Experts Logistikbetmebs GmbH Austnio 95024 m 100
Sport Eybl Holding GmbH Austno 180095 x 100
Spartland Eeshe A.S Estonio 10677712 60
Spartland Infemational Group & S Estonia 10993195 60
Sports Commission Limited England & Wales 48244 100
Sports Direct Brands Limited Engond & Wales 6026039 100
Sports Direct Estomo A.S Estonia 124954564 40
Sports Direct Holdings Limited Englond & Wales 4464317 100
Sports Direct Hong Kong Holdings Ltd Hong Keng 1216339 100
Sports Direct Infernational Holdings Limited Englond & Wales 6027131 100
Sports Durect Retor! Limited Englond & Wales 6026013 100
Spoats Essentials Limited Englond & Wales 4409470 100
Sports World Internahonal Limited England & Wales 6531266 100
Sports Worid The Netherlands B V Nethedands 34056291 100
Sportsdirect com Ausina GmbH Austno 309738 y 100
Sportsdirect com Balgum S A, Belgum 4146 268 4N 100
Sportsdirect com {yprus Limied Cyprus HE 230340 100
Sportsdirect com {zech Republics 1o (zech Repubhc 24268933 100
Sportsdurect com Fitmess Limited England & Wales 9028577 100
FR?7373062813
Sportsdurect com France Fronce R(5379062813 100
Spartsdirect com Hungary Kft Hungory 0109986824 100
Sportsduect com Immokilen GmbH Austmo 104151 p 100
Sparssdirect com Luxernbourg Luxembourg 2700 3200 297 100
Sportsdirect cam Media Limited Englond & Wales N27526 00
Sportsdirect com Polond Sp 700 Poland 452610 100
Sportsdirect com Pty Lid Austrolio 403 187 319 100
Sportsduect com Retal (Furope} S A Belgum 458883046 100
Sportsdirect com Retarl Limited Englond & Wales 3406347 100




Sportsdwect com Slovokio s 1o Slovakio 47240 458 100
Sportsdirect com SN d o o Slovenio 1198157000 100
Sportsdirect com Spain S U Span B 84567880 100
Sporsdinect com Swnzerlond &S Switzetong (HE33) 683991 00
S5 Sport GmbH (5SD) Germany HRB 7134 100
Sterling Resources (Holfings) Limited Englond & Woles 4651701 100
Stering Resources Limited Englond & Wales 1413254 100
Stidings (Argyle Street) Limited Scotlond S(086108 100
Straub (omoranon Limited England & Wales 3003584 100
Summercombe 147 Lid England & Wales 6217909 100
SWimmo Fupen SA Belgium 8785673904 100
Tabte Tennis Pro Europe Linuted Englond & Wales 5003853 100
Taksway Limited Heng Kong 323181 100
The Antigoo Group Inc United States (07346794 100
The Flonnels Group bimited Englond & Wales 2318510 51

The Trademark Licensing Company Limited Englond & Wales 4477879 100
Tota) Estates Limited Englond & Woles 4958714 100
UAS Sportiond LT Lithuorin 135039834 5

Universal Cycles Limured Englond 8 Woles 1339467 100
UP Bronds Limited Englond & Woles $5214633 100
LUSA Pro IP Limed Englond 8 Woles 6497914 100
USC IP Limted Fngland & Woles 68345804 100
USC co uk Retml Limited England & Woles 8617068 100
Used Tockle Limited fnglond 8 Woles 7989154 100
Van Mildert (Lifestyte) Limiteg England & Wales 8319959 100
Vesionfigure Linired Englond 8 Woles 2951733 100
Voodoo Dofls Brond Limzted England 8 Woles 5323305 100
Waterkine Anghing Products Limuted England & Woles 2696374 100
Wast Coost Coprtol (HOFCO) Limited Scofland S(437614 100
Westmnstes Manubochunng LLC United States 44358 100
Wildlow Limted England & Wales 4571478 100
Willam Sykes limited Englond & Walas 123129 100
World of Service Internononal Limited England & Wales 1202465 51

Warld of Service Limifed England & Wales 6020729 51

Worthyfund Limered England & Wales 2955978 100
YUV Limited Englond & Wales 9350127 100
Yeomans Outdoors Limited Englond & Wales 8058714 51

On 13th Jonuary 2015 one of the Group's subsidiary entrhes, West Coost Cepitel (USC) Limited, went ito administration The ossets of the business were subsequently purchased by

Republic com Retail Limited

EVERYTHING IS CHANGING
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Sports Direct Intermational plc will provide @ parental quarante for the following United Kingdom incorporated subsidianes thus entithing them to exemption from staktory audit under
sechon 4794 of the Compantes Act 2006

NAME COMPANY NUMBER COMPANY NAME COMPANY NUMBER
Dhrect Fishing Lirmted 08203469 SDI (Leeds) Limted 09293515
Bunlop Austrolia Limved 0917409 SDI (Lowestoft} Limited 07852265
Everlast Australia Linnted 08103912 SDI (Neath) Limited 07853548
Gelert 17 Limited 08576185 SDI (New Covendish Street) Limited 06306917
Gl IP Limited 08612478 SOI (Newark) Lirmited 07853470
Hot Tuna 1P Limted 06836792 SDI {Newpart) Limited 08679118
S Equestnon Lmited 08692780 SOl {Hewton Abbot) Limted 06836666
SD Outdoor IP Limited 08560252 SOl (Rorthampton) Limted 07852272
SDI {Aberwystwyth} Limited 02789996 SDI {Nuneaton) Limited 07852249
SO (Aintrea} Limited 03352462 SDI {Oswestry) Limited 07852363
SDI (Ashtord) Limited 07348440 SOI (Puisley) Limited (12933408
SOI (Ashungton) bimited (7849231 SOI {Penzonce) Limuted 07852297
SOI (Ayr) Limuted 05520267 SOI (Peterlee} Limited 07852401
SOI {Bangor} Limited 05529705 SOI (Plymouth) Umited 09470468
SI (Barrow i Furness) Limuted 07851574 S (Ramsgate) Lmited 07852750
SDI (Bogilgon} Limited 08512592 501 (Redcor) Limited 02731452
SH (Beddgelert) Lmited 08577551 SD; (Relle St) Limited (07852469
SOl (Berwck) Limited (02739957 501 (Scarhoraugh) Limited (06328443
SDI {Betws-yLoed) Limited (6836673 SDI (Scunthorpe) Umited 07852055
SOI {Bikenheod) Linited 07849198 SDI {Slough) Limited 07852417
SO {Bishop Auckland) Limited 03004246 SDI (Southampton) Limited (8512480
SOI (Bndgwater) Limited 07852061 S (St Austell) Limired 07852284
SOl (Burton) Linited (8495632 SDI (St Helens) Limired 07852281
SO (Carbsle) Lirnited 07851959 S0 (Srafford) Limited (08568681
SOl (Chathom) Limited (6836679 SOl {Stoke Longton) Limited 07853877
SDI (Clacton) Limited 07852078 SOI {Stoke Newangton} Limited 07852207
SO} (Colchester) Limited 05632790 SDI {Strood) Limited 07852251
SDL (Dunfermline) Limited 08483679 SDI (Sunderdand) Limeted 08755347
SDi (st Kilbride) Umited 06656358 SDI (Taunton) Limited 07852191
SDI {Fulham) Limited 07852037 SDI (Wokeheld) Limited 08483711
SOI (Gmnsborough} Lmited 06338907 SOF (Walsall) Limited 07852289
SDI (Golashiels) Limited 07852091 SBH (Weymouth) Limired 06716652
SOI (Gloucester) Limired 07852067 SOt (Wishaw) Limited 06656365
SDI (Hortlepool) Limired 08972499 SOI (Warksep) Linited 0931003
SOl {Hostings) Lirmted DBA25893 SDI Golf Limited (9083512
SDI (Keighley) Lrmited 04240239 SDI Property Linmted 02767493
SOl (Kendal) Limited 04338918 SDI Rerad Services Limited 08143303
SDI (Kiddermmster) Limited 09203731 SOI com Fitmess Porent Limsted 09082454
SOl {Kilmarnock) Limited (070853433 Slazengers Austraha Limited 09217319
SOl {Kurkcoldy) Limited 07852097 Shrings {Aigyle Steet) Limited 5088108




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

We hove oudited the parent company Financial Statements of Sports Direct Internatonal PLC for the 52 week penod ended 26 Aprd 2015 which compnse the porent company balance
sheet and the relaied notes The financal seporting fromework that has been applied n the prepaiation of the porent company Financial Staternents 15 applicoble low and Urited Kingdom
Accounting Standards (Uneted Kingdom Genarally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This repart 1s made solely to the Company's members, os o body, in accordonce with Chopter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undericken so that we
might state ta the company’s members those motters we ore required to state to them in on auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permutted by low, we do not
oceept of ossume responstbdity to anyone other than the Company ond the Company’s members as o body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opimans we have formad

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR

As explomed more fully in the Directars” Responsibilines Statement, the directors are: responsible for the preporanon of the Fingnaol Statements and for bemg sanshied that they grve o
trua and fai view Qur respansibility ts o audd ond express an opmion on the Fingnciol Statements m accordance with appheable law ond internahonal Standards on Audiftmg (UK ond
lreland) Those standords require us fo comply with the Auditing Prochces Boord's Ethueal Stondards for Auditors

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A descriphon of the scope of an oudit of Financial Statements s prowided on the Finanaol Reporing Counal's website at www frc org uk /ouditscepeukpmvate

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In our opimon the porent compony Financal Statements

* gwve 0 fue ond fur view of the state of the Company’s affors as at 26 Apnl 2015,

* hove been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generofly Accepted Accounting Practice, ond
 have heen prepared in accordance wath the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

OTHER MATTER

We hove reported separotely on the Group Financia! Statements of Sports Direct International PLC for the 52 week penod ended 26 Apnl 2015

OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opinion
® the part of the Directors” Remuneration Report o be audited has been propery prepored in occordance with the Compantes Act 2006, and

» the iformation grven in the Strategic Report and Duectors’ Report for the financial penod for which the Financial Statements are prepared 15 consistent wth the porent company
Finonawal Statements

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

We hove nothing to report i respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us 1o report 10 you if, 1n our opinian

* gdequote occounting records hove rot been kept by the porent company, or retuns adequate for our audt have not been receved from bronches not visited by us, or

# the parent compony Financiof Statements and the part of the Directors” Remuneration Report to be cudited ore not in agreement wath the accounting records ond retums, or
» certoin disclosures of durectors’ remuneration specdied by low are not mode, or

* w have nat recerved all the informaton ond explanations we requue for our oudit

Philip Westerman

Senior Statutary Auditor

For and on behalf of Grant Thornton UX LLP
Statutory Audutor, Chortered Accountants
London

16 July 2015
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

AT 26 APRIL 2015

Nates (o o
FIXED ASSETS
Investments 2 1,083,119 1,077,408
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors 3 25,513 14,984
(ash of bank and in hond 1418 186

26,991 15,170

Crefitors: amounts folling due within one year. 4 {112,458) {114.018)
Net current linbilities (85,557) (98,548)
Net assels 997,562 978,560
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(afled up share copial 5 44,060 64,060
Share premium ] 874,300 874,300
Treasury shares reserve b (56,234) (56,234)
Permanent connbunon to copital ] 50 50
Caopital redemphon reserve ] 8,005 8,005
Qwn share reserve ] (13,251} (13,251)
Profit ond loss account [} 120,632 101,630
Shareholders funds I 997,562 978,560

The occompanying accoumting policies and notes form pait of these Financiol Statements

The Financici Stotements were approved by the Booed on 16 July 2015 and were signed on its behalf by

Dave Forsey
Chief Execuive

Compony number 08035106



NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 APRIL 2015

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
These accounts have been prepated in accordance wath appiicable Unrted Kingdom accounting standards A summory of the matenal accounting policies odopted ore destnbed below

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
The occounts have been prepored under the histoncal cost convention

As permutted by Sechon 408 of the Compares At 2006, ¢ profit ond loss account of the Company 1s not presented The Company’s profit after taxation for the 52 week penod 26 Aprl
2015 was £1,824,000 (2014 £417,000 loss)

INVESTMENTS
Fixed osset investments ore stated of cost less any prowision for impairment

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES
Loons ond recevables are recogrised inmally a1 fau volue plus transachon costs less provision for impairment Provision for impoirment 15 estoblished when there 1s objectve evidence that
the company will not be able to collect omounts due occording to the enginal terms of the recenvable

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trode and other payobles ore sninglly megsured of fair value, ond are subsequently meusured af omortised cost, using the effective inferest methed

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT TRUST
An Employes Benefut Trust has been established for the purposes of sonsfyng certon shore-based owards The Group has “de facto’ control over the special purpose enty The Trust s fully
consolidated wathin the occounts

The cost of shares acquired by the Sports Direct Employee Benefit Trust s recognised wathin ‘Own share-teserve’ in equity

DEFERRED TAXATION

Defened tax 15 prowided for on o full provision basss on ll ting differences, which have onsen but not reversed of the balance sheet dote No timing diffesences are secognised i respect
of gains on sala of ossets where those gains have been rolled over inio replacement assets A deferred tox ossef is not recognised to the extent that the ransfer of economic benafit in
future 15 more unlikely than not

Deferred tox 15 colculated on o nondiscounied basis at the tox sfes that are expected to apply m the penods i which nming differences reverse, based on tox rates and lows enacted or
substanirvely enacted of the balonce sheet date

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

tems ansing from monsachions denomnated in foreign curenaes me ransloted of the rate of exchangs rukng ot the dote of the transachon At the bolance sheet dote oll monetary assers
and labimes denominated in foreign currencies ore translated ot the dosing rote or ot the rafe of exchange at which the mansachon is controcted to be setiled in the future All exchonge
differences are recogmsed in the profit ond loss account

DIVIDENDS
Dredends on the Company’s ardinary shares are recognised os a habdity i the Company’s Finanoal Stotements, and as o deduchon from equiy, n the pertod in which the dwidends are
declored Where such dwdends are proposed subject to the approval of the Company's shareholders, the dradends ore only declored once shareholder epprovel has been obtained

FQUITY INSTRUMENTS
An equity nstryment 15 ny contract that ewdences a residual inferest n the assets of the Company ofter deducting oll of s habilites Equiy mstruments issued by the Company, with the
excephon of those occounted for via merger refief avalobls under Secton 612 of the Componies Act 2006, ore recorded o1 the proceeds recewved, net of any direct issue costs

INCOME FROM GROUP UNDERTAKINGS
Income from Group undertokings 15 recognised when qualifying consideration rs receved from the Group undertaking

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Compony has token advantage of the exemphion contmned m FRS 8 and has therefore not disclosed transactions or balances with whollyowned subsidiones which form par of the
Qroup

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
The Company hos appled the requiements of FRS 20, “Shorebased Poyments™ The Compony ssues equitysetiled shore-bosed poyments to certain Directors and employees of the
Company and its subsidianes

The foir volue of the shara options on the date of the grant 15 charged to the profit and loss account over the veshng penod of the shore ophon, bosed an the number of ophons which are
expected to become exeraisable A conesponding adjustment 1s mads to equity At each bolance sheet date the compony revises its estimatas of the number of options that ore expected
o become exeraisable and recognises the impact of any rewsion of angingl eshmates i the: profat and loss occount

FVERYTHING 1S CHANGING
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 26 APRIL 2015

The expected life used in the model has been adyusted, bosed on management’s best estmate, for the effects of non-ransferability, exerciss restctions, ond behavoural considerahons
A sharebased poyment charge of £10,110,000 was recogmised for the 52 weeks ended 26 Apnl 2015 based on the Drectors” best estimate of the number of shores that wil vest

£9.901.000 of this sharebosed payment wos recharged fo subsidiary undertokings of the Company

2. INVESTMENTS
2015
(£7000}
As gt 27 Aprl 2014 1,077,408
é ADDITIONS:
= Listed mvestments 45,020
g Copital contributon i subsidiary 5,711
= DISPOSALS: (45,020)
=
= As ot 26 Agnl 2005 1,083,119
3 None of the Company’s investments at 26 Apnk 2015 ore fisted
E The Compeny ts the prancpal holding company of the Group The prncipol subsdiary undertakungs of the Company are set out n nate 36 to the Group Financil Staternents
g During the year the company acquied and disposed of £45,020,000 of shares in Debenhams ple
5
3. DEBTORS
2015 2014
[£000) {8°000)
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 318 318
(ther debtors 20,8 14,512
Other tuxes and sovol secunty costs 126 154
98 Prepayments 4,178
25,513 14,984
4. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
015 2014
{£/000) {£.000)
Trode areditors 7 74
Amagunts owed to Group undertakings 111,567 112,554
Accruols 476 123
Other texes ond souol secunty costs 71
112,488 114,018
5. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL
2015 2004
{£:000) i€ 000)
AUTHORISED
999,500,000 ordinary shares of 10p eoch 99,950 99,950
499,990 redeemable preference shares of ¥0p eoch 50 50
100,000 100,000
CALLED UP AND FULLY PAID
640,602,369 (2014 £40,602,369) acdinary shares of 10p each 44,060 64,060
SHARE CAPITAL
At 27 Apnl 2014 and 28 Apnl 2015 4,060 44,060




6. RESERVES

Share premivm Treosury share ch: Copitcl redecption (o cerve Prefit cadlass

wcconat feserve wopiid Feittve [£000) E'mlf

{£°000) {£000) (E000) {£'000) (£7080)

A1 27 hprl 2014 874,300 (54,234 50 8,005 (13,251) 101,630

Prafit for the hnoncal penod 1,824

Share bosed payments 17,178

At 26 hprl 2015 874,300 (56,234) 50 8,005 (13,251) 120,632

The Company holds 42,137 508 ordinary shares in freasury

7. RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT ON SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

2008

(£°000)

(penung shoreholders” funds 978,560

Profit fos the financinl penod 1,824

Share based poyments 17178

Closing shareholders” funds 997,562

8. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

No matenal post batance sheet events occurred after 26 Apnl 2015 1o the date of this Annual Report

FVERYTHING IS CHANGING
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CONSOLIDATED FIVE YEAR RECORD
UINAUDITED INCOME STATEMENT

52 weeks ended 57 wasks ended 53 weeks ended 52 wasks endsd 52 woeks ended
76 April 2015 27 Al 2004 28 kol 2003 Cresteted) 29 il 2012 24 dgri 2011
(E000) {£.000) (£°000) (£ 000} (< 000)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS-
Revenuve 2,832,560 2,705,958 2,185,580 1,835,756 1,599,237
Cost of sales (1,591,748} (1,551,036) (1,290,872) (1,091,480) (940,330)
Gross profit 1,240,812 1,154,922 894,758 744,276 658,907
. Selling, distbunon and ndmnistrofive expenses (950,526) (908,843 (689,578} (594,368) (527,2713)
,_.5. Other cperating income 8,345 8,583 7199 3,268 5,289
§ tegul dispute 2,309 (3,128)
& tmpuimment ond occelerated depreciation (13,338) (5,531)
-g' Profit on disposal of groperty 10,288 1,686
E Prafit on disposal of mtongble osset 625 1,604 874
Excephional items (3,050) (5,531) 625 5619 (2,252)
Operating profit 295,581 24913 213,004 158,795 134,671
é Investment income / {casts) 14,104 1017 1,473 (5,800) (9,481)
o Finance income 8,269 891 107 6,426 1,560
8 Fingnee costs (7,487 (19,853) (9,688) (8,481 {8,953)
E Shore of prafit of associated undertakings and joint ventures 1,959 2,266 1,320 558 (8)
g Profit before taxation 313,445 239,452 207,226 151,498 118,789
Taxahen {72,093) (59.839) {55,569} {45,867) (35,566)
Profit for the penod 241,353 179,613 151,657 105,631 63,223
Equity holders of the Group 240,397 180,245 151,596 106,198 84,173
Non-confioliing inferests 954 (632) 61 (567) (950}
m.. Profit for the period 741,353 179.613 151,657 105,631 83,223

*Restatement relates fo the odoption of the revsed 1S 19 “Employee Benefits”
Notes to the consohdoted income statement five yeor record
1 Al informanian 15 presented under IFRS

2 The five yeor record has been prepared on the same basis as the Fnanccl Stotemens for the 57 weeks ended 26 Apnl 2015, as se out in note 1, bosis of preparotion, of the
consafidated Financil Statements




COMPANY DIRECTORY

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Computershare Investor Senwces ple

The Powlions

Brdgwater Rond

Bristol

BS13 BAE

COMPANY SECRETARY AND REGISTERED OFFICE
Sports Duect International plc

Unit &, Brook Park Eost

Shirebrook

NG20 BRY

Telephone 0344 245 9200
Sports direct International plc 15 registered i England ond Wales (No 6035106}

SOLICITORS
Frashfiedds Bruckhous Dennges
65 Fleet Street

Lendon
EC4Y THS

BROKERS

(igroup Global Markets Limited
(in Centre

Conada Squore

Conary Whaod

London

E14 5B

Espinto Sonto Invesiment Bank

The Lordon Stock Exchange Bullding
10 Patesnoster Square

tondon

ECAM 7AL

Goldman Sechs Limuted
Peterborough Court
133 Fleet Street
London

EC4A 288

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Bardoys Bank pic

5 The North Colonnode
Canory Wharf

{ondon

£14 488

HSBC Bank ple

8 Conoda Square
London

£14 5HQ

AUDITORS
Gront Thornton LK LLP
Gront Tharnton House
Melton Street
Fuston Square

London
NW1 267

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annuol General Meeting of the Company will be held ot 110m on Wednesdoy §
September 2015 at Sports Direct Internotional ple, The Audsonum, Ut D, Brook Park
Fost, Shirebrook, NGZ0 8RY Each sharehalder 15 enitled to ottend and vote at the
meeting, the arrangements for which aro descrbed m o seporote notice

RESULTS

For the year o 24 April 2014

Half yeor results announced 10 December 2015
Prehminary announcement of full yeor results 7 July 2014
Annuc! Report ciculoted July / August 2016

SHAREHOLDER HELPLINE

The Sports Direct shareholder register 1s mantained by Computesshare who ore responsible
for making dnidend poyments ond updoting the register, mcluding detoils of changes to
shoreholders” addresses f you have a query about your shareholding in Sports Direct, you
should contact Computershare's Sports Direct Shareholder Helphne on 0370 707 4030
Calls ore chorged of stondard geogrophu rates, olthough network chorges moy vary

Address The Pawilions, Bndgwater Road, Bustol, BS99 677
Website www computershare com

WEBSITE

The Sports Direct website ot www sportsdirectplc com prowides news ond detks of the
Company’s aciangs plus information for shareholders and contains real ame shore price
data as well as the lotest results and announcements

UNSOLICITED MAIL

The Company 15 oblkaed by law to make its shore register publicly ovarlable and g5 0
consequence some shareholders moy recerve unsohcted mail, including from unouthansed
investment firms

For more iwformation on unouthorsed nvestment frms torgeting UX mvestors, visit the
website of the Finoncial Conduct Authonty af www fca org uk

If you wish 1o imit the amount of unsohaited mall you recewve contact

The Mmhing Preference Service
DMA House

70 Margaret Street

London

WiW 8ss

Telephone 02017291 3310

Fax 0207323 4226

Email mps@dma org uk or register onine at
www mpsonling org vk




SPORTSDIRECT.com

Sports Durect Intetnatianal plc Unut A, Brook Park East, Shurebrook, NG2Q BRY
0344 7459200

www.sportsdirectplc.com



